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CORPORATE INFORMATION (CONTINUED)
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
B

2020 2019
—EC-EEF —E-NF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHET
RESULTS e
Revenue WA 1,469,237 1,554,364
Profit attributable to owners of the Company  ANRA A EzE B A B F 123,991 88,705
EBITDA REFFIE - FBE - - HER
BRI AT 252,302 201,650
PER SHARE DATA srEs
Basic earnings per share (HK cent(s)) FRERER CEM) 13.87 9.92
Total dividends per share (HK cent(s)) BRABIRE CEL) 4.0 2.0
— Interim dividend paid per share (HK cent(s) — DAHERFERE C&ML) 1.0 -
— Proposed final dividend per share — BERERKARE OFL)
(HK cent(s)) 3.0 2.0
Dividend payout ratio R B L& 28.8% 20.2%
Revenue (HK$ million) Profit attributable to owners of the Company (Hk$ milion)
WA (B##T) RARE=FE AR RN (5E%71)
1,469 1,504 124
I I I I I |
2020 2019 2020 2019
Basic earnings per share (HK cent(s)) Total dividends per share (HK cent(s))
SRERZRF GEMW) BRBIE cEl)
4.0
13.87
9.92
I I 2.0
2020 2019 2020 2019
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS (CONTINUED)
MEBEGE)

Revenue percentage by business segments

B SBHKNE S E
3.0% 2.9%
7.7% 9.0%
7.6% 10.2%
53.3% 46.0%
28.4% 31.9%
2020 2019

Magnesium alloy die casting Plastic injection Zinc alloy die casting
BESEE BRpEE HEEEE
Aluminium alloy die casting Others
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Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the Board of Directors of Ka Shui
International Holdings Limited (the “Company” or “Ka
Shui”), | am pleased to present you the audited annual
results of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively the
“Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2020 (the
“Year”).

The COVID-19 pandemic had created uncertainty for the
global economy throughout 2020. Its magnitude reached
the initial peak in first half of the Year, when an alarming
number of infected cases began to flare in multiple
regions. Many countries reacted accordingly by shutting
borders and locking down cities, resulting in business
suspension among various industries. The suspension in
production led to a contraction in international trade
activities, with market sentiment and consumers’ motivation
to purchase remained relatively low in the first half of the
Year. However, driven by the pandemic being gradually
brought under control and with governmental financial
stimulus measures, economic activities have gradually
returned to normal, and it is expected that market demand
for consumer goods will gradually recover.

CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT (CONTINUED)

FE®E(HE)

For the Year, the Group recorded a 5.5% year-on-year
decrease in revenue to HK$1,469,237,000 (2019:
HK$1,554,364,000). Nevertheless, profit attributable to
owners of the Company increased by 39.8% year-on-year
to HK$123,991,000 (2019: HK$88,705,000). Despite the
unprecedented challenges faced by the Group during the
Year, the Group was able to achieve a growth in the profit
mainly attributable to () an increase in operational
efficiency and gross profit margin as a result of continuous
integration of the Group’s resources and optimisation of
information systems, from which the Group achieved
reduction in manufacturing overhead; (i) a decrease in the
Group’s operating cost due to process improvement and
enhancement in product mix, which has led to a drop in
cost of sales; and (i) one-off utility and government
subsidies received by the Group in China and in Hong
Kong during the Year as a result of COVID-19 pandemic,
as well as the satisfactory progress of the Group’s
resumption of operations after the Group had received
permission from the relevant authorities in China.

The Board of Directors recommended the payment of a
final dividend of HK8.0 cents (2019: HK2.0 cents) per
share for the Year after due consideration of our Group’s
future business development as well as our financial.
Taking into account the interim dividend of HK1.0 cent
(2019: Nil) per share, the dividend payout ratio for the Year
would be approximately 28.8% (2019: 20.2%).

After the outbreak of COVID-19 in early 2020, prevention
and control measures announced by national governments
had put most commercial and industrial activities to a halt.
Global economy worsened as this unprecedented market
uncertainty suppressed consumer confidence and product
demands. Ka Shui was also affected by this trend and saw
a weakening of demand from our customers. Yet our
diversified customer base has somewhat mitigated the
impact of the pandemic to us. The implementation of lock-
down and social distancing measures during the outbreak
of pandemic sustained the demand for mobile device and
its accessories. Moreover, the Group accelerated its
internal optimization by imposing a set of stringent cost
control initiatives and prudent financial management, which
gave us strength and made us resilient to endure the
economic downturn. In view of global uncertainties and
macroeconomic downturn, China announced a new

Annual Report 2020
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT (CONTINUED)

strategy to reposition its market focus on domestic
consumption and innovation. The new development
direction of “Dual Circulation Strategy” opened business
channels and expansion possibilities for the Group. For
over 40 years, Ka Shui has relied on its established
business networks around the globe for a sustainable
business growth. Whilst the Group remain focused on
expanding its global business, the Group will also continue
to support of China’s strategic approach. The emergence
of the middle-class has given new impetus of growth to
the domestic market. The Group will capture potential
growth in the new economic pattern and further develop
the Chinese market in order to develop a more balanced
business mix.

With Ka Shui being at the frontier of research and
development of materials, the Group has continued to
impress the market with new inventions and applications.
During the Year, we continued to fulfil the growing demand
of our customers across numerous business areas. In
particular, the Group’s proficient technologies in alloy die
casting and capability in surface finishing have allowed us
to obtain the business opportunity to collaborate and
supply magnesium and aluminum alloy die casting
components to a leading new energy vehicle manufacturer.
In addition, to cater for the trend and demand from 3C
products and automotive parts for lighter weight and
higher standards on thermal conductivity for improving
product service life and stability, the Group has proactively
developed new materials with high efficiency on heat
dissipation. This material has been successfully applied to
the bottom casings of notebooks and has yielded
satisfactory results. Moreover, in response to this
COVID-19 pandemic, the Group will apply its self-
developed and patented germ-repellent technology
microbeFENCE® to develop health care products. This
once again demonstrated Ka Shui’s expertise and
determination in providing new material and new
technology solutions and devising innovative applications to
meet the ever-changing market needs.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT (CONTINUED)

FE®E(HE)

The Group has been well recognized by the market for its
expertise in providing light weight solutions for over four
decades. The Group’s self-developed invention patented
Micro-arc Composite Ceramic Technology (“MCC”), is used
in the production of road wheel and has significantly
enhanced its corrosion resistance, surpassing those road
wheels that are made of aluminum. Moreover, the “Metal
Liquid Die Casting Cum Forging Dual Forming Method”
and “Fiber Reinforced Magnesium Alloy Luggage Case and
its Manufacturing Method” has won us the “Asia
International Innovative Invention Award” awarded by Hong
Kong Federation of Innovative Technologies and
Manufacturing Industries in November 2020. These awards
have once again recognized our efforts in the area of
innovative technology. Ka Shui will strive to promote new
material and new technology development through
innovation in order to enhance product quality and
efficiency for our customers.

Eﬂ%ﬂ]i‘aﬁﬁﬁﬂﬂ?‘tﬁ
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT (CONTINUED)

While pioneering new materials and technologies, Ka Shui
has also proactively participated in forming industry
standards to improve the overall industry quality. The
Group have participated in drafting Guangdong Plastics
Industry Association Standard “Testing Method of Germ-
repellent Adhesion Ability for Plastic Products” (T/GDPIA
1-2019), in which we were the main unit responsible for
drafting. The testing method in this standard allows
quantitative evaluation of the material’s ability to repel
bacteria adhering on the surface of the material and allows
for the quantitative evaluation of germ-repellent efficacy for
the germ-repellent plastic products. This standard has been
officially implemented since September 2019. In addition,
the Group had also participated in the formulation of
“Testing Method of Measuring Energy Consumption of Die-
casting Machine JB/T12554-2016" and our effort was
awarded with the second prize of the Guangdong
Mechanical Engineering Society Science and Technology
Award and the second prize of the Guangdong Mechanical
Industry Science and Technology Award in September
2020. The implementation of this standard can facilitate the
die casting industry to achieve energy saving, emission
reduction and industry upgrade as well as to enhance
competitiveness of products. Ka Shui has been proactively
participating in formulating various industry standards for
many years with an aim to promoting technology
innovation, industry upgrade and transformation and
sustainable growth of the industry as a whole.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT (CONTINUED)

FE®E(HE)

The COVID-19 pandemic along with its impact on the
market had disrupted the traditional business models, but
had simultaneously brought new business opportunities in
the field of personal electronics, consumer goods and
electric vehicle development. Ka Shui will leverage on its
experience and insight on material solutions, notably in
magnesium, aluminum and zinc alloy die casting and
plastic injection molding, and devote greater effort into
research and development to stay at the forefront of the
global competition. The Group will continue to expedite the
implementation of “Industry 4.0” in its production bases in
China to expand the Industrial Internet of Things (“lloT”) for
machine interface, and use lloT data for more in-depth
data analysis so as to continuously improve production
efficiency. The global pandemic and market uncertainties
may have presented us with different challenges, but the
Group is positive that we will overcome them through our
resilience and persistent innovation.

On behalf of the Board of Directors, | would like to take
this opportunity to express my heartfelt gratitude to the
shareholders, business partners, and customers for their
unfailing support regardless of the challenges. | would also
like to thank my fellow directors and all employees for their
unwavering commitment. The Group will continue to deliver
our promise and never cease to innovate.

By order of the Board
Lee Yuen Fat

Chairman

Hong Kong, 29 March 2021
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

FINANCIAL REVIEW

The outbreak of COVID-19 pandemic in 2020 had
brought various challenges and uncertainties for the
global market as suspension of economic activities
has weakened the worldwide consumer market
demand. Against this backdrop, the Group’s overall
revenue for the year ended 31 December 2020 (the
“Year”) decreased mildly by approximately 5.5% to
HK$1,469,237,000 (2019: HK$1,554,364,000) when
compared with the previous year. However,
notwithstanding the tough business environment for
the Year, the Group has achieved a year-on-year
increase of 39.8% in the consolidated profit
attributable to owners of the Company from
HK$88,705,000 in 2019 to HK$123,991,000 mainly
due to (i) an increase in operational efficiency and
gross profit margin as a result of continuous
integration of the Group’s resources and optimisation
of information systems, from which the Group
achieved reduction in manufacturing overhead; (i) a
decrease in the Group’s operating cost due to
continuous improvement in process and product mix,
which has led to a drop in cost of sales; and (jii)
one-off utility and government subsidies received by
the Group in China and in Hong Kong during the
Year as a result of COVID-19 pandemic, as well as
the satisfactory progress of the Group’s resumption
of operations after the Group had received
permission from the relevant authorities in China. The
Group’s gross profit for the Year also increased by
approximately 4.8% to HK$447,303,000 (2019:
HK$426,671,000) and gross profit margin was
approximately 30.4% (2019: 27.4%).

The Group’s EBITDA, computed as profit before tax,
depreciation, amortisation and finance costs,
amounted to HK$252,302,000 (2019:
HK$201,650,000).
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)
BEEE W R D (&)

(B)

BUSINESS REVIEW

Plastic injection moulding business

Benefitting from the increase in market demand for
mobile devices and its accessories due to quarantine
and social distancing measures imposed by various
countries as a result of COVID-19 pandemic, the
revenue of plastic injection moulding business
segment had recorded an increase of approximately
9.6% to HK$783,500,000 (2019: HK$714,815,000),
which accounted for approximately 53.3% (2019:
46.0%) of the Group’s overall revenue. The Group
will continue to further expand its customer portfolio
and product solutions to maintain the growth
momentum of this business segment.

Magnesium alloy die casting business

During the COVID-19 pandemic, the revenue of the
magnesium alloy die casting business for the Year
dropped by approximately 15.9% to
HK$417,495,000 (2019: HK$496,168,000),
accounting for approximately 28.4% of the Group’s
overall revenue (2019: 31.9%). In view of the
increasing application of lightweight components in
new energy vehicles, the Group has always
committed to the development of magnesium alloy
materials and advanced molding technology in order
to increase the application of automobile and
precision components, and to realise the growth
potential for magnesium alloy die casting business in
the future development of new energy vehicles.

Aluminium alloy die casting business

During the Year under review, the revenue of the
aluminium alloy die casting business was
approximately HK$112,859,000 (2019:
HK$140,665,000), representing an approximately
19.8% decrease when compared with that of the
previous year. This business segment accounts for
approximately 7.7% of the Group’s overall revenue
(2019: 9.0%). The Group will continue to explore
different applications of aluminium alloy with an aim
to expand its customer base and enlarge the market
share.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

Zinc alloy die casting business

Due to the sluggish consumer demand caused by
COVID-19 pandemic, the revenue of the zinc alloy
die casting business for the Year was
HK$111,498,000 (2019: HK$158,745,000),
representing a decrease of approximately 29.8%
when compared with that of 2019. This business
segment accounted for approximately 7.6% of the
Group’s overall revenue (2019: 10.2%). The Group
will continuously broaden its customer portfolio in
order to increase the revenue derived from this
business segment.

Others

The revenue of other businesses (trading of lighting
products and home appliances and provision of
motor vehicle repairing services) dropped by
approximately 0.2% to HK$43,885,000 (2019:
HK$43,971,000) when compared with that of the
previous year. This business segment accounted for
approximately 3.0% of the Group’s overall revenue
(2019: 2.8%).

PROSPECTS

The outbreak of the COVID-19 pandemic and the
subsequent measures imposed by different countries
had impacted the Group’s operation in 2020, and
the unpredictability associated with the global
pandemic and any further emergency prevention and
control measures that may be implemented by
governments may also lead to new challenges in
2021. However, we anticipate that there will be a
trend for recovery across different industries in 2021,
as vaccination programs are gradually implemented
and the market gradually adapts to the new norms
under the pandemic. The Group will continue to stay
vigilant in the ever-changing market while reinforcing
its competitive edges in innovation, especially in the
field of light material application and precision mould
development, and timely prepare for business
rebound once market condition improves.
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With increased effort and determination from the
Chinese government to promote “green commuting”,
along with the goal to have all new car sales in
China to be eco-friendly and improve the energy
efficiency and travel distance of vehicles, the Group
will devote more resources into research and
development to create higher quality material and
advanced production technologies to satisfy the
needs for durable and light weight material solutions
and solidify the Group’s leading position in the
industry.

Despite the challenges and disruption caused, the
pandemic has introduced new ways of life to the
society. One of these is the rapid transition towards
digitalisation, where remote working and studying has
become a new norm for daily life, and social
distancing measures have boosted the use of online
communication through electronic devices. In
addition, the improving internet infrastructure and
speed have also propagated the trend of personal
computer replacement, especially evident for users
are who are looking for advanced hardware
upgrades. Based on these factors, we remain
cautiously optimistic about the market demand for
personal computers for 2021. On the other hand, the
roll-out of comprehensive 5G network worldwide is
expected to sustain the smart device replacement
trend for the foreseeable future, thus bringing market
demand for smart devices. The Group will continue
to maintain its research and development efforts to
contribute to the rapid development of smart
devices.

Facing the international trend on focusing on
environmental protection and sustainable
development, with more stringent requirements on
environmental protection being promulgated by
governments, the Group has committed to
promoting green production technologies and it is
expected these technologies will be launched to the
market in this year gradually.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

The outbreak of COVID-19 pandemic in early 2020
has caused a surge in demand for anti-pandemic
products. The Group will apply a biocide-free plastic
antibacterial material, is germ repellent and is safe for
use in personal health care products. We will
continue to develop the application of germ repellent
plastic in different fields, and will create new value for
the sales platform of our own brand.

Ka Shui has accumulated industry insight and
technical experience through years of effort. Moving
forward, our Group will continue to focus on
delivering best-in-class product development
solutions for customers in various industries by
enhancing our capability in research and
development and further enriching our people-
oriented corporate culture through acquisition and
cultivation of talents. We will also place significant
emphasis on client rapport building in their new
product development and business ideas in order to
provide timely advice on material and production
technology to ensure a cost-efficient execution plan.
In terms of internal optimisation, through the
implementation of “Industry 4.0”, the Group aims to
achieve data management and smart manufacturing,
and we will also apply real time analysis to
management decision-making and improve internal
production efficiency. Moreover, the Group strives to
further strengthen the Group’s business operations
and financial position by seeking investment and
development opportunities that would broaden the
Group’s existing business portfolio and its sources of
income, and will endeavour to strive for sustainable
development through its strong customer
relationships and 40 years of hands-on experience.

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES
As at 31 December 2020, the Group had restricted
bank balances as well as bank and cash balances of
approximately HK$258,661,000 (2019:
HK$264,087,000), most of which were denominated
in either US dollars, Renminbi or Hong Kong dollars.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)
BEE®R 2 (&)

The interest-bearing borrowings of the Group as at
31 December 2020 were all bank loans with an
aggregate amount of approximately HK$153,458,000
(2019: HK$259,046,000). All of these borrowings
were denominated in Hong Kong dollars and Euros
(2019: Hong Kong dollars) and which were primarily
subject to floating interest rates. The bank
borrowings with maturities falling due within one year,
in the second to fifth year with repayment on
demand clause and in the second to the fifth year
without repayment on demand clause amounted to
HK$40,997,000, HK$65,961,000 and HK$46,500,000
respectively (2019: HK$201,532,000, HK$nil and
HK$57,514,000 respectively).

As at 31 December 2020, the net gearing ratio (a
ratio of the sum of the total bank borrowings less the
pledged bank deposits, restricted bank balances (if
any) and bank and cash balances divided by the
total equity) of the Group was not applicable since
the Group had net cash (pledged bank deposits,
restricted bank balances (if any) and bank and cash
balances less total bank borrowings) of
HK$105,203,000 (2019: net cash of HK$5,041,000).

As at 31 December 2020, the net current assets of
the Group were approximately HK$467,632,000
(2019: HK$351,936,000), which consisted of current
assets of approximately HK$901,021,000 (2019:
HK$889,093,000) and current liabilities of
approximately HK$433,389,000 (2019:
HK$537,157,000), representing a current ratio of
approximately 2.1 (2019: 1.7).

EXPOSURE TO FOREIGN EXCHANGE
RISK

Most of the Group’s transactions were conducted in
US dollars, Hong Kong dollars or Renminbi. As such,
the Group is aware of the potential foreign currency
risk that may arise from the fluctuation of exchange
rates between US dollars, Renminbi and Hong Kong
dollars. The Group will closely monitor its overall
foreign exchange exposure with a view to
safeguarding the Group from exchange rate risks.

Annual Report 2020

AEFBR-_ZE-_ZEF+_-_A=1+—HH&
EER2AERTER BLENBE
153,458,000 . (=& — L &F
259,046,000 7T) - Z E B R 2 EAB T
MET(ZZE—NF - Bn)sHE - TR
MFEEZEZEHE - 1 —F N E E
UERE_EFRFIH(BRERERES
B ERE - EFREINH(TREL
BEEBKRF)IZETERSED I A
40,997,000/ Jt * 65,961,000/ 7T &
46,500,000 L (ZE—NF : 55l A&
201,532,000/ 7t * T /& 7T 57,514,000
JT) °

RZZEZZEF+_A=+—H BARAE
B 2R & FE (BEPIRITER - BRHIR
IERE) ARIBITRBESEHRER
1THEE) /105,203,000 T (ZE— N
&F IR FEEA5,041,00087T) - Bt 0 F
EELL R (ARITERBAN BB IRFIRITT
Mo BREIRITER(E) MIETT KRS
HERBAESABEZLR)TEARAE
°

R-ZE-ZTE+-F=+—H A&EER
BB EFMEL B467,632,0008 T (= F
— L4 : 351,936,000/8 L) * BIERHE
E #)901,021,0008 t (=T — AL F ¢
889,093,000 L)k n® B EY
433,389,000 (=& — L F :
537,157,000 70) * MBI R4 B2.1 (=
T—AF:17)e

S BEE JeRL B R HfE

REBORBPRHHAET - BILHA
REHET - Atk > ARERIERET - A
R o8 TTIE R 1R B A B 5| AR KO B A S
PE LB A - AR BT R A BB
PEE [, B 7 HE LA S % 7R 62 (B8 2 O R A B P

B HE -



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
As at 31 December 2020, the Group had no material
contingent liabilities.

CHARGE ON ASSETS
As at 31 December 2020, none of the assets of the
Group were pledged.

HUMAN RESOURCES

As at 31 December 2020, the Group had
approximately 4,400 full-time employees (31
December 2019: 3,500). The Group attributes its
success to the hard work and dedication of all staff,
therefore, they are deemed to be the most valuable
assets of the Group. In order to attract and retain
high caliber staff, the Group provides a competitive
salary package, including retirement schemes,
medical benefits and bonuses. The Group’s
remuneration policy and structure are determined
based on market trends, the performance of
individual staff as well as the financial performance of
the Group. The Group has also adopted a share
option scheme and a share award scheme as
incentives and rewards for those qualifying staff who
have made contributions to the Group.

The Group provides regular training courses for
different levels of staff and holds various training
programs together with PRC institutes and external
training bodies. Apart from academic and technical
training, the Group also organises different kinds of
recreational activities, including New Year gathering,
various sports competitions and interest groups. The
aim is to promote interaction among staff, establish a
harmonious team spirit and promote a healthy
lifestyle.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

ESREREEAER

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Lee Yuen Fat, aged 65, founded the Group in 1980
and is the Chairman of the Group. Mr. Lee was appointed
as an Executive Director of the Company since 2 June
2007 and is a director of certain subsidiaries of the
Company. He is also a director of Precisefull Limited,
which is the controlling shareholder of the Company. Mr.
Lee is responsible for the formulation of the overall
business strategies of the Group. He has over 40 years of
experience in the die casting industry. Mr. Lee holds a
Master of Science Degree in Materials Engineering from the
Yanshan University in the PRC. He was conferred an
award of Honorary Fellowship and Fellowship of
Management and Business Administration by the
Professional Validation Council of Hong Kong Industries
and is the Vice Chairman of the Professional Validation
Council of Hong Kong Industries. Mr. Lee has been
appointed by the Foundry Industry Association,
Guangdong Province as an Expert of the Casting Industry
and is selected for its Expert Database. He has been
appointed by Shenzhen Longgang District Municipal
People’s Government as an excellent expert of Longgang
District, Shenzhen and is the Professorate Senior Engineer
conferred by the Human Resources and Social Security
Department of Guangdong Province of China.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

Mr. Lee was one of the founding members and was the
Chairman of the Hong Kong Diecasting Association (now
become the Hong Kong Foundry Association (the “HKFA”))
in 1989. He was elected as the first Chairman of the
HKFA and Hong Kong Federation of Innovative
Technologies and Manufacturing Industries (formerly known
as Federation of Hong Kong Machinery and Metal
Industries) in 2008 and 2011 respectively. Mr. Lee is
currently the Chairman of Hong Kong Federation of
Innovation Technologies and Manufacturing Industries, Vice
Chairman of the PRD Council of Federation of Hong Kong
Industries, Shenzhen Division, a member of the Fifth
Industry Training Advisory Committee of Manufacturing
Technology (Tooling, Metals & Plastics) of Hong Kong
Qualifications Framework and a member of Vocational
Training Council Manufacturing Technology Training Board.
Mr. Lee is currently the Chairman of Die Casting Branch of
the China Foundry Association, Executive Director of the
China Foundry Association, Deputy Director of Technology
of Plasticity Branch of Chinese Mechanical Engineering
Society, Managing Vice Chairman of the Fourth General
Committee of the Guangdong Foundry Industry
Association, Executive Director of the Seventh General
Committee of Guangdong Mechanical Engineering
Association and the Vice-Director General of Foundry
Technology Branch of the Guangdong Mechanical
Engineering Association. Mr. Lee is currently Deputy
Director of the Domestic Technical Correspondence
Working Group Expert of the International Organization for
Standardization Foundry Machinery Technical Committee
ISO/TC306, and a member of the Light Alloy Industry
Technology Innovative Alliance Expert Committee of
Guangdong Province. Mr. Lee is the brother-in-law of Ms.
Chan So Wah, the executive director of the Company.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

ESkEREEAE(E)

Mr. Wong Wing Chuen, aged 59, joined the Group in
1988 and was appointed as an Executive Director and Vice
Chairman of the Company on 2 June 2007 and 1 January
2017 respectively. He is a director of certain subsidiaries
of the Company. Mr. Wong is also currently the director of
manufacturing of the Group and is responsible for the
Group’s manufacturing activities. Mr. Wong has over 35
years of experience in die design and manufacturing and
the die casting industry. He is an Associate of the
Professional Validation Council of Hong Kong Industries.

Ms. Chan So Wah, aged 62, joined the Group in 1999
and was appointed as an Executive Director of the
Company on 1 April 2019. She is a director of certain
subsidiaries of the Company. Ms. Chan is currently the
director of operations of the Group and is primarily
responsible for overseeing the human resources and
administration management of the Group. She has over 35
years of experience in sales, marketing and management.
She holds a master’s degree in business administration
obtained through distance learning education from the
Centenary College in New Jersey, USA and she is a
Fellow of the Professional Validation Council of Hong Kong
Industries (Die Casting and Foundry Industry). Ms. Chan
was awarded Asian Outstanding Leadership Award for
Women in September 2019 by Asian College of
Knowledge Management. She is the sister-in-law of Mr.
Lee Yuen Fat, the Chairman of the Group.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Professor Sun Kai Lit CIiff BBS, JP, aged 67, was
appointed as an Independent Non-executive Director of the
Company on 2 June 2007. He is the chairman of the
remuneration committee as well as the nomination
committee of the Company. Professor Sun has over 40
years of experience in the household products
manufacturing industry. Professor Sun was appointed by
the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region Government
(the “HKSAR Government”) as Justice of the Peace in July
2003 and was awarded the Bronze Bauhinia Star by the
HKSAR Government in July 2006. He had been a member
of the Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference
of Shenzhen, Ningbo & Zhejiang Committee for over 20
years. He is currently the Honorary President of the
Federation of Hong Kong Industries, Honorary Chairman of
The Hong Kong Exporters’ Association, Honorary Chairman
of the Hong Kong Q Mark Council, the Honorary President
of the Hong Kong Plastics Manufacturers Association, the
Supervising President of Guangdong Overseas Chinese
Enterprises Association and an Adjunct Professor of the
City University of Hong Kong. Professor Sun is currently an
independent non-executive director of Wisdom Education
International Holdings Company Limited (Stock code:
6068), which is listed on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange.
He was a non-executive director of China South City
Holdings Limited (Stock code: 1668) from September
2009 to July 2017; and an independent non-executive
director of Ming Fai International Holdings Limited (Stock
code: 3828) from July 2007 to March 2016.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
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Ir Dr. Lo Wai Kwok sBs, MH, JP, aged 68, was appointed
as an Independent Non-executive Director of the Company
on 2 June 2007. Ir Dr. Lo holds a doctoral degree in
engineering, master’'s degrees in engineering and in
business administration respectively and a bachelor’s
degree in engineering. He is a Chartered Engineer and
Fellow of the Hong Kong Institute of Engineers. Ir Dr. Lo
was awarded the “Young Industrial Awards of Hong Kong”
and the “Ten Outstanding Young Persons Selection” in
1992, the Medal of Honour of the HKSAR Government in
July 2001, and was appointed as Justice of the Peace by
the HKSAR Government in July 2004. Ir Dr. Lo was also
awarded the Bronze Bauhinia Star and the Silver Bauhinia
Star in July 2009 and July 2015 by the HKSAR
Government, respectively. Ir Dr. Lo is currently a member
of the Legislative Council of Hong Kong, representing the
Engineering functional constituency. He has over 40 years
of experience in the electronic and power supply industry
and is an Adjunct Professor of the City University of Hong
Kong. Ir Dr. Lo was an independent non-executive director
of Glory Mark Hi-Tech (Holdings) Limited (Stock code:
8159) from November 2016 to June 2020.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

Mr. Andrew Look, aged 56, was appointed as an
Independent Non-executive Director of the Company on 16
December 2009. Mr. Look holds a bachelor's degree in
commerce from the University of Toronto, Canada and has
over 30 years of experience in the equity investment
analysis of Hong Kong and China stock markets. From
2000 to 2008, Mr. Look served in Union Bank of
Switzerland (“UBS”) as the head of Hong Kong research,
strategy and product. He was rated as the best Hong
Kong strategist and best analyst by the Asiamoney
magazine, a leading monthly financial and capital markets
publication for corporate and finance readers and
investors, in 2001, 2002, 2003, 2005, 2006 and 2007. Mr.
Look is currently an independent non-executive director of
Hung Fook Tong Group Holdings Limited (Stock code:
1446), CITIC Resources Holdings Limited (Stock code:
1205) and Union Medical Healthcare Limited (Stock code:
2138), all of which are listed on the Hong Kong Stock
Exchange. He was an independent non-executive director
of TCL Communication Technology Holdings Limited (a
company delisted on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange on
30 September 2016) from September 2010 to September
2016. He was also an independent non-executive director
of Man Sang Jewellery Holdings Limited (now known as
Affluent Partners Holdings Limited) (Stock code: 1466) and
Cowell e Holdings Inc. (Stock code: 1415) from
September 2014 to December 2016 and from April 2017
to December 2018 respectively.

Mr. Kong Kai Chuen, Frankie (formerly known as Kong
To Yeung, Frankie), aged 57, was appointed as an
Independent Non-executive Director of the Company on 11
May 2015. He is the chairman of the audit committee of
the Company. Mr. Kong is an associate member of the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and a
fellow member of the Chartered Association of Certified
Accountants (the United Kingdom). He has accumulated
over 27 years’ experience in accounting, auditing,
corporate finance and project administration mostly from
Hong Kong listed companies and multinational business
conglomerates. Mr. Kong is currently a consultant of a
company providing company secretarial, risk management
and financial advisory services and is an independent non-
executive director of Auto Italia Holdings Limited (Stock
code: 720), a company listed on the Hong Kong Stock
Exchange.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Chu Weiman, aged 63, joined the Group in 2021 and
is currently the Chief Executive Officer of the Group. He is
primarily responsible for the overall management and
supervision of the execution of the overall business
strategies of the Company. Mr. Chu holds a Master of
Business Administration degree from the University of
Southern California, USA, a master’s degree of science in
engineering from the University of California, Los Angeles,
USA and a bachelor’'s degree in power mechanical
engineering from National Tsing Hua University, Taiwan. He
is a licensed professional engineer of California, USA. Prior
to joining the Group, Mr. Chu was an executive director
and the chief executive officer of trading division of
Leeport (Holdings) Limited (Stock code: 387), a company
listed on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange, from February
2015 to December 2020 and from September 2016 to
December 2020 respectively. Mr. Chu has held various
senior positions in multi-national companies with operations
in Hong Kong and China and worked as the branch
director for Innovation Process and Automation Branch and
branch director for Manufacturing Productivity Branch of
Hong Kong Productivity Council during the years between
2000 and 2007. He is currently a general committee
member of The Chinese Manufacturers’ Association of
Hong Kong.

Mr. Lo Hin Fai, aged 58, joined the Group in 2012 and is
currently the director of finance and corporate strategy of
the Group. He is primarily responsible in overseeing the
Group’s finance, investment, strategic development and
capital market financing activities. Mr. Lo holds an M.B.A.
degree in finance, corporate accounting and organisation
from the University of Rochester, USA. He has over 25
years of experience in banking, corporate finance and
investment. Prior to joining the Group, he has served
finance, investment and management functions within both
financial institutions and corporate businesses, working
closely with different multinational and local companies in
Asia, covering mergers and acquisitions, equity and project
investments.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

Ir Mr. Chan Sin Wing, aged 48, joined the Group in 2004
and is the director of enterprise development of the Group.
He is primarily responsible for overseeing the research and
development as well as new business development of the
Group. Mr. Chan holds a master’'s degree in industrial
engineering and industrial management and a bachelor
degree in engineering from the University of Hong Kong.
He is currently a Fellow of the Hong Kong Institution of
Engineers and the Professorate Senior Engineer conferred
by the Human Resources and Social Security Department
of Guangdong Province of China. Prior to joining the
Group, he worked as a senior consultant of the Hong
Kong Productivity Council for over nine years.

Mr. Chan Man Fu, aged 49, joined the Group in 2016 and
is currently the financial controller of the Company. Prior to
joining the Company, Mr. Chan has held senior financial
positions in different listed companies in Hong Kong and
has over 20 years of experience in the areas of audit,
finance and treasury management. He holds a master’'s
degree in business administration from the Hong Kong
Baptist University and is a member of the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EEEHRSE

The board of directors of the Company (the “Board”) have
the pleasure in submitting its report together with the
audited consolidated financial statements of Ka Shui
International Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively the “Group”) for the year ended 31
December 2020.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Group is principally engaged in the manufacture and
sale of zinc, magnesium and aluminium alloy die casting
and plastic injection products and components, which are
mainly sold to customers engaging in the household
products, 3C (communication, computer and consumer
electronics) products, automotive parts and precision
components. The principal activities of the subsidiaries are
set out in note 22 to the financial statements.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A fair review of the business of the Group, together with a
description of the principal risks and uncertainties facing
the Company, particulars of important events affecting the
Group that had occurred since the end of the financial
year 2020, as well as indication of likely future
developments in the business of the Group are set out in
the sections “Business Review” on pages 14 to 15,
“Principal Risks and Uncertainties facing the Company” on
page 60 and “Prospects” on pages 15 to 17 of this report
respectively. An analysis using financial key performance
indicators is set out in the sections “Segment Information”
on pages 201 to 205 and “Five-Year Financial Summary”
on page 264 in this report.

As an innovative high-tech enterprise, the Group is
committed to offering one-stop solutions and professional
services to meet the various needs of our customers, while
building an environmentally-friendly corporation that pays
close attention to conserving natural resources. The
management will review the Group’s environmental
practices from time to time and will consider implementing
further ecology friendly measures and practices in the
operation to enhance environmental protection and
sustainability.
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DIRECTORS” REPORT (CONTINUED)

During the year, as far as the Board is aware, there was
no material non-compliance with applicable laws and
regulations by the Group that has a significant impact on
the Group’s business and operations.

The Board recognises that our employees are invaluable
assets contributing to the Group’s future success. The
Group provides competitive remuneration package to
attract, motivate and retain our employees. The Board also
regularly reviews the remuneration package of our
employees and makes necessary adjustments to conform
to the prevailing market practices. The Board also
recognises that maintaining good relationships with our
customers and suppliers is vital to achieve the Group’s
long-term goals.

It is the Group’s environment policy to () observe all
applicable national and local laws and regulations strictly;
(i) establish, implement and strengthen our environmental
management system, as well as setting of goals for
environment achievements; (iii) introduce cleaner production
in steps, and striving to conserve resource uses and
reduce waste or effluent; (iv) provide training and education
to promote the idea of sustainable development across the
supply chain; and (v) provide channels for relevant
interested parties and the public to get access to our
environmental performance tracking.

The Board considers that the Group has conducted its
operations in accordance with the environmental policy in
all material respects during the year ended 31 December
2020, and the Group’s business has complied with the
relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact
on the Group as a whole.

Detailed discussions on the environmental policies and
performance, compliance with the relevant local laws and
regulations that have a significant impact on the Group and
the account of the key relationships of the Group with
employees, customers and suppliers are set out in the
section headed “Environmental, Social and Governance
Report” on pages 64 to 107 of this annual report.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT (CONTINUED)
EEEHE(HA)

EMOLUMENT POLICY AND RETIREMENT
BENEFITS SCHEME

The Group’s emolument policy, including salaries and
bonuses, is in line with the local practices where the
Company and its subsidiaries operate. The Group has also
adopted a share option scheme and share award scheme
as incentive and reward for those qualifying staff who have
made contribution to the Group. The Remuneration
Committee of the Company makes recommendations to
the Board on the Company’s policy and structure for the
remuneration of directors and senior management. It also
reviews and determines the terms of remuneration
packages, the award of bonuses and other compensation
payable to directors and senior management of the Group,
having regard to the Group’s financial performance,
individual performance and comparable market statistics.

The Group has joined a mandatory provident fund scheme
(“MPF Scheme”) for all employees (including the executive
directors of the Company) in Hong Kong. The MPF
Scheme is registered with the Mandatory Provident Fund
Schemes Authority under the Mandatory Provident Fund
Schemes Ordinance. Under the MPF Scheme, the
employer and its employees are each required to make
contributions to the MPF Scheme at rates specified in the
rules of the MPF Scheme. The employees of the
Company’s subsidiaries established in the PRC are
members of a state-managed retirement scheme operated
by the PRC government. These subsidiaries are required to
contribute certain percentage of payroll costs to the
retirement benefit scheme. No forfeited contribution is
available to reduce the contribution payable under the
above schemes.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS
The results of the Group for the year are set out in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss on page 116.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT (CONTINUED)

INTERIM AND FINAL DIVIDEND

An interim dividend of HK1.0 cent was declared and paid
during the vyear. The Board had recommended the
payment of a final dividend of HK3.0 cents per share for
the year ended 31 December 2020 to the shareholders
whose names appear on the register of members of the
Company on Thursday, 10 June 2021. Subject to the
approval of the shareholders of the Company at the
forthcoming annual general meeting to be held on
Monday, 31 May 2021, the final dividend will be paid on or
about Friday, 18 June 2021.

The register of members of the Company will be closed
from Wednesday, 26 May 2021 to Monday, 31 May 2021,
both days inclusive, during which no transfer of shares will
be registered. In order to be eligible to attend and vote at
the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company,
all share transfer documents accompanied by the relevant
share certificates and transfer forms must be lodged with
the Company’s branch share registrar and transfer office in
Hong Kong, Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services
Limited, at 17M Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s
Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong for registration not later
than 4:30 p.m. on Tuesday, 25 May 2021.

The register of members will be closed from Monday, 7
June 2021 to Thursday, 10 June 2021, both days
inclusive, during which no transfer of shares will be
registered. In order to qualify for the final dividend, all
share transfer documents accompanied by the relevant
share certificates and transfer forms must be lodged with
the Company’s branch share registrar and transfer office in
Hong Kong, Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services
Limited, at 17M Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s
Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong for registration not later
than 4:30 p.m. on Friday, 4 June 2021.

RESERVES
Movements in reserves during the year are set out in the
consolidated statement of changes in equity on page 120.

As at 31 December 2020, the Company’s reserve available
for distribution amounted to approximately
HK$208,099,000 (2019: HK$226,852,000).

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in property, plant and equipment of
the Group during the year are set out in note 19 to the
consolidated financial statements.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT (CONTINUED)
EEEHE(A)

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year, the percentage of the Group’s major
customers and suppliers attributable to the Group’s total
sales and total purchases was as follows:

Sales

—  the largest customer 43.4%
—  five largest customers combined 77.7%
Purchase

—  the largest supplier 11.3%
—  five largest suppliers combined 41.7%

None of the directors, their close associates or any
shareholders (which to the knowledge of the directors
owns more than 5% of the number of issued shares of the
Company) had an interest in the Group’s five largest
customers and suppliers.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results of the Group for the past five
financial years ended 31 December 2020 and assets and
liabilities of the Group as at 31 December 2016, 2017,
2018, 2019 and 2020 are set out on page 264.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in share capital of the Company
during the year are shown in note 35 to the financial
statements.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Save for the share option scheme and share award
scheme described below, the Group has not entered into
any equity-linked agreements during the year.

DONATIONS

During the year, the Group made charitable and other
donations amounting to approximately HK$49,000 (2019:
HK$55,000).

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Company’s Articles of Association and the Companies Act
of the Cayman lIslands, which would oblige the Company
to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing
shareholders.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT (CONTINUED)

TAX RELIEF AND EXEMPTION

The Company is not aware of any tax relief and exemption
available to the shareholders of the Company by reason of
their holding of the Company’s securities.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
LISTED SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY
During the year, neither the Company nor any of its
subsidiaries has purchased, sold or redeemed any of the
Company’s listed securities of the Company.

THE BOARD
The directors of the Company during the year and up to
the date of this report were:

Executive Directors

Mr. Lee Yuen Fat (“Mr. Lee”) (Chairman)
(appointed as Chief Executive Officer with effect from 31
December 2020 and stepped down as Chief Executive
Officer with effect from 1 February 2021)

Mr. Wong Wing Chuen (Vice Chairman)

Ms. Chan So Wah

Independent non-executive directors
Professor Sun Kai Lit, Cliff BBS, JP
Ir Dr. Lo Wai Kwok SBS, MH, JP
Mr. Andrew Look
Mr. Kong Kai Chuen, Frankie
(formerly known as Kong To Yeung, Frankie)

The biographical details of the directors are set out on
pages 20 to 27 of this annual report.

During the year under review, no director resigned from his
office or refused to stand for re-election to his office due
to reasons relating to the affairs of the Company.

In accordance with the Company’s Articles of Association,
Dr. Lo Wai Kwok, Mr. Andrew Look and Professor Sun Kai
Lit, CIliff will retire at the forthcoming annual general
meeting and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-
election.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT (CONTINUED)
EEEHE(HA)

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

A permitted indemnity provision for the benefit of the
directors is currently in force and was in force throughout
the financial year.

The Company has taken out and maintained directors’
liability insurance throughout the year, which provides
appropriate cover for the directors of the Group.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

The directors being proposed for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting do not have any
service contract with the Company which is not
determinable by the Group within one year without
payment of compensation, other than statutory
compensation.

DIRECTORS’ AND CONTROLLING
SHAREHOLDER’S INTERESTS IN
TRANSACTIONS, ARRANGEMENTS OR
CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

There were no transactions, arrangements or contracts of
significance (inclusive of provision of services to the
Company or any of its subsidiaries), to which the
Company, its holding company, any of its subsidiaries or
fellow subsidiaries was a party and in which a director and
the controlling shareholder of the Company had a material
interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted during or
at the end of the year.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and
administration of the whole or any substantial part of the
business of the Company were entered into or existed
during the year.

DISCLOSURE PURSUANT TO RULE 13.21 OF
THE LISTING RULES

In accordance with the requirements under Rule 13.21 of
the Listing Rules, the Board reported the following details
of loan facilities which exist at any time during the year
ended 31 December 2020 and up to the date of this
report and include covenants requiring specific
performance obligations of the controlling shareholder of
the Company.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT (CONTINUED)

On 21 December 2018, Ka Shui Manufactory Co.,
Limited (the “Borrower”), the indirect wholly owned
subsidiary of the Company, entered into a facility
agreement with a bank, under which a term loan
facility for an aggregate amount of up to HK$100
million was extended to the Borrower (the “2018
Facility Agreement”). Any draw-down of the loan
under the said facility would be repayable by eight
quarterly instalments commencing the 15th month
after its own draw-down date. The Borrower may
drawdown the 2018 Facility Agreement for a period
of 18 months from the date of the 2018 Facility
Agreement. The 2018 Facility Agreement contains a
specific performance obligation that Mr. Lee, a
controlling shareholder (as defined in the Listing
Rules) and an executive director of the Company,
shall at all times beneficially own (whether directly or
indirectly) not less than 50% of the shareholding and
equity interest in the Borrower and the Company and
maintain management control over both the Borrower
and the Company. A breach of the aforesaid specific
performance obligation will constitute an event of
default under the 2018 Facility Agreement. If an event
of default under the 2018 Facility Agreement occurs
and is not remedied in accordance with the terms of
the 2018 Facility Agreement, the bank may (among
other things) cancel its further commitments under
Facility Agreement, and/or declare that all or part of
the loans together with accrued interests under the
2018 Facility Agreement would become immediately
due and payable.

On 22 September 2017, the Borrower entered into
the facility agreement with a bank comprising the
following facilities up to an overall limit of HK$160
million to the Borrower (the “First Facility
Agreement”). On 30 November 2018, the Borrower
and the bank agreed to revise the First Facility
Agreement (the “Revised First Facility Agreement”).
Under the Revised First Facility Agreement:
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(@)  Trade related facility and revolving loan facility
up to an aggregate maximum amount of
HK$80 million, with a sub-limit of (i) HK$20
million for the revolving loan facility; (i) HK$40
million for the aggregate outstanding amount
for the utilisation of import invoice financing by
PRC value added tax invoices; and (i) a
treasury credit limit up to HK$5 million for the
purpose of hedging the Borrower’s foreign
exchange rate, shall be made available. The life
of these facilities are not specified, but is
subject to the bank’s overriding right of
repayment on demand;

(o)  Term loan facility of HK$40 million (the “1st TL
Facility”) had been repaid by the Borrower in
full before 30 November 2018; and

(c)  Term loan facility of HK$40 million (the “2nd TL
Facility”) remains unchanged. The purpose of
the 2nd TL Facility is to finance the Group’s
working capital expenditures with a loan period
of 36 months from the date of the 2nd TL
Facility being made available.

The Revised First Facility Agreement contains a
specific performance obligation that Mr. Lee, a
controlling shareholder (as defined in the Listing
Rules) and an executive director of the Company,
shall remain as the single largest shareholder of the
Company. A breach of the aforesaid specific
performance obligation will constitute an event of
default under the Revised First Facility Agreement. If
an event of default under the Revised First Facility
Agreement occurs, liabilities payable under the
Revised First Facility Agreement and the relevant
security documents shall become immediately due
and payable.
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(i) On 2 January 2015, the Borrower entered into the
facility agreement with a bank to finance the Group’s
capital expenditures for a term loan facility up to
HK$150 million consisting of two tranches, both
repayable by sixteen equal quarterly instalments
commencing the 15th month after the first utilisation
date. The facility agreement contains a specific
performance obligation that Mr. Lee must at all times
maintain substantial shareholdings (directly or
indirectly) interest in the Borrower. A breach of the
aforesaid specific performance obligation will
constitute an event of default under the facility
agreement. If an event of default under the facility
agreement occurs, the bank may terminate the
facility agreement and liabilities payable under the
facility agreement and the relevant security
documents shall become immediately due and
payable. This term loan facility had been fully repaid
by the Borrower in May 2020.

(iv)  On 20 June 2017, the Borrower entered into the
facility agreement with a bank to finance its working
capital for a term loan facility up to HK$130 million
repayable by 36 months after the first utilisation date.
The facility agreement contains a specific
performance obligation that Mr. Lee (including shares
under his family trust) must maintain as the major
shareholder (with at least 50% shareholding) of the
Company. A breach of the aforesaid specific
performance obligation will constitute an event of
default under the facility agreement. If an event of
default under the facility agreement occurs, the bank
may terminate the facility agreement and liabilities
payable under the facility agreement and the relevant
security documents shall become immediately due
and payable.

Save as disclosed above, the directors are not aware of
any circumstances which would give rise to a disclosure
obligation pursuant to the requirements under Rule 13.18
of the Listing Rules as at 31 December 2020 and as at
the date of this report.

)

(iv)
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REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND FIVE
HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS

Details of the emoluments of the directors and the top five
highest paid individuals of the Group are set out in notes
15 and 16 to the consolidated financial statements.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY AND ITS
ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS

As at 31 December 2020, the interests and short positions
of the directors and chief executives of the Company in
the shares, underlying shares and debentures of the
Company and its associated corporations (within the
meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures
Ordinance (the “SFQ”)) which were required to be notified
to the Company and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) pursuant to Divisions 7 to
9 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests and short
positions in which they are taken or deemed to have
under such provisions of the SFO); or were required,
pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the
register referred to therein; or were required to be notified
to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the
Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of
Listed Companies (the “Model Code”) in the Rules
Governing the Listing on Securities on the Stock Exchange
(the “Listing Rules”) were as follows:
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Long Positions in the Shares

Capacity

6

Executive Directors

EEEHS(A)

iy zRkE

Approximate
percentage of
interest in the

Company

BEATER

L EON=E 07 4

Number of
Shares

30 L 4=

BITEE
Mr. Lee Interest in controlled company! 440,000,000 49.23%
T E SYEH A B RO
Founder of a discretionary 127,980,000 14.32%
trust®
ZREEFTZAIA®
Mr. Wong Wing Chuen Beneficial owner 11,050,000 1.24%
EoKEEE EEEA A
Independent Non-Executive
Directors
BIAERITES
Mr. Andrew Look Beneficial owner 8,800,000 0.98%
B 51 S A EmEA A
Ir Dr. Lo Wai Kwok SBS, MH, JP Beneficial owner 1,000,000 0.11%

[E (& B8 126 - SBS, MH, JP

Notes:

EmEAA

Mr. Lee holds the entire issued share capital of Precisefull Limited
(“Precisefull”). As such, Mr. Lee is deemed to have a controlling
interest in Precisefull and is therefore deemed to be interested in the
interests of Precisefull in the Company.

The 127,980,000 shares, in which 77,980,000 shares and
50,000,000 shares are held by Beautiful Crystal Development
Limited (“Beautiful Crystal”’) and Beautiful Colour Assets Limited
(“Beautiful Colour”) respectively (both companies are wholly-owned
by YF Lee Family Trust). YF Lee Family Trust is a discretionary trust
set up by Mr. Lee as settlor and UBS TC (Jersey) Limited (“UBS
TC”) as trustee on 20 February 2014. The discretionary objects are
family members of Mr. Lee. Mr. Lee is the settlor of YF Lee Family
Trust and is deemed to be interested in the 127,980,000 shares
held by Beautiful Crystal and Beautiful Colour under the SFO.

Wit -

25 4 4 3% A Precisefull - Limited ([ Precisefull]) 2 #F 2 2%
FTRRA o B - 3 5 A 3 4R 73 B Precisefull B9 12 il 1%
WS o 0 R I T 4R AR B 1 B Precisefull R AR R BT A
2 HEw o

#%127,980,000% i& 15 9 B B3 Beautiful Crystal
Development  Limited ([ Beautiful Crystal]) } Beautiful
Colour Assets Limited ([Beautiful Colourl) %A
77,980,000 }250,000,0008% f& 1 * It 5 A A AYF Lee
Family Trust2 & # A& ° YF Lee Family Trust 7y Z 4
ERBEEZ s ARUBS TC (Jersey) Limited ([UBS
TCHEAZFHARZE—NF_RA=+HRKRIZZE
B ESBYHRATREZRIERE - THEEAYF
Lee Family TrustZ{SsEEsEA « IRIFFEH LA KD -
1% 3048 B Beautiful Crystal 2 Beautiful ColourFi#E 2
127,980,000% A& 15 # 7 5 #E % o
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Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2020, none
of the directors and chief executives of the Company had
any interests or short positions in shares, underlying
shares and debentures of the Company and its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO)
which were required to be notified to the Company and
the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 to 9 of Part
XV of the SFO (including interests and short positions in
which they are taken or deemed to have under such
provisions of the SFO); or were required, pursuant to
section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the register
referred to therein; or were required to be notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange, pursuant to the Model
Code in the Listing Rules. In addition, save as disclosed
above, at no time during the year ended 31 December
2020 was the Company or any of its subsidiaries a party
to any arrangements to enable the directors of the
Company or any of their spouses or children under the
age of 18 to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition
of shares in or debentures of the Company or any other
body corporate.

INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS OF
SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS IN SHARES,
UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES
OF THE COMPANY AND ITS ASSOCIATED
CORPORATIONS

As at 31 December 2020, the following persons, other
than the directors or chief executives of the Company,
who had interests or short positions in the shares or
underlying shares of the Company which would fall to be
disclosed to the Company under the provisions of
Divisions 2 to 5 of Part XV of the SFO or, who were,
directly or indirectly, interested in 5% or more of the
nominal value of any class of share capital carrying rights
to vote in all circumstances at general meetings of the
Company, or which were required, pursuant to Section
336 of the SFO, to be entered in the register referred to
therein, were as follows:
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Long Positions in the Shares

Capacity

St

Precisefull Beneficial owner™
H2RBEH A
Beautiful Crystal Beneficial owner®
EEER AR
Beautiful Colour Beneficial owner®
EmERAR
UBS TC Trustee®
2 A0
Notes:
1. Mr. Lee holds the entire issued share capital of Precisefull. As such,

Mr. Lee is deemed to have a controlling interest in Precisefull and is
therefore deemed to be interested in the interests of Precisefull in
the Company.

2. 77,980,000 shares and 50,000,000 shares are held by Beautiful
Crystal and Beautiful Colour respectively (both companies are wholly
owned by YF Lee Family Trust). The YF Lee Family Trust is a
discretionary trust set up by Mr. Lee as settlor and UBS TC as
trustee on 20 February 2014,

Save as disclosed above, at no time during the year, the
directors and the chief executive of the Company were
aware of any other persons (other than the directors or
chief executives of the Company) who had interests or
short positions in the shares and underlying shares of the
Company which would fall to be disclosed to the
Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 to 5 of Part
XV of the SFO, or, who were, directly or indirectly,
interested in 5% or more of the nominal value of any class
of share capital carrying rights to vote in all circumstances
at general meetings of the Company, or which were
required, pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO, to be
entered in the register referred to therein.
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Approximate
percentage of

Number of interest in the
Shares Company
LR AT LS

iy 4= BmyaaEatt
440,000,000 49.23%
77,980,000 8.73%
50,000,000 5.59%
127,980,000 14.32%
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME

A share option scheme (the “Share Option Scheme”) was
adopted by ordinary resolution of shareholders of the
Company at the annual general meeting of the Company
held on 19 May 2017.

The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to provide
incentives and rewards to selected eligible persons for their
contributions to the Group. The Share Option Scheme will
remain valid until 18 May 2027 and each option will be
granted at a consideration for HK$10.

The participants of the Share Option Scheme may include
directors, employees, consultants, professionals,
customers, suppliers, agents, partners, advisors and
contractors of the Group or a company in which the
Group holds an interest or a subsidiary of such company.

The maximum number of shares which may be issued
upon the exercise of all options to be granted under the
Share Option Scheme and under any other share option
scheme(s) adopted by the Company must not in aggregate
exceed 10% of the shares in issue as at the date of
approval of the Share Option Scheme. In addition, the
maximum number of shares which may be issued upon the
exercise of all outstanding options granted and yet to be
exercised under the Share Option Scheme and any other
schemes involving the issue or grant of share options by
the Company must not, in aggregate, exceed 30% of the
shares in issue from time to time.

The total number of shares issued and to be issued upon
exercise of the options already granted or to be granted to
each participant under the Share Option Scheme and any
other share option scheme(s) of the Company (including
exercised and outstanding share options) in any 12-month
period up to and including the date of such grant should
not exceed 1% aggregate of the shares in issue as at the
date of such grant. Any grant of further options above this
1% limit shall be subject to approval of the shareholders of
the Company at general meetings, with such participant
and his associates abstaining from voting.
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The total number of shares in respect of which options
may be granted under the Share Option Scheme shall be
89,376,140 shares, representing 10.0% of the issued
share capital of the Company as at the date of this annual
report.

The period within which the options must be exercised will
be specified by the Board at the time of the offer of grant,
and must expire no later than 10 years from the date of
grant. There is no general requirement on the minimum
period for which an option must be held or the
performance targets which must be achieved before an
option can be exercised under the terms of the Share
Option Scheme.

The subscription price for any share under the Share
Option Scheme will be a price determined by the Board
and will be not less than the highest of:

(i) the closing price of a share as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotations sheet on the date of
grant of the relevant option, which must be a
business day;

(i) an amount equivalent to the average closing price of
a share as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily
quotation sheets for the five business days
immediately preceding the date of grant of the
relevant option; and

(i)  the nominal value of a share on the date of the grant.

There were no options granted under the Share Option
Scheme since its adoption on 19 May 2017.
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SHARE AWARD SCHEME

On 10 January 2013 (the “Adoption Date”), the Board
adopted a share award scheme (the “Share Award
Scheme”) under which the shares of the Company (the
“Awarded Shares”) may be awarded to selected persons to
recognise the contributions by certain employees and
persons to the Group and to provide them with incentives
in order to retain them for the continual operation and
development of the Group and to attract suitable
personnel for further development of the Group. The Share
Award Scheme will be valid and effective for a term of ten
years commencing on the Adoption Date until 9 January
2023.

The participants of the Share Award Scheme may include
executives, officers, employees, directors of the Company
or any of its subsidiary, any business or joint venture
partner, investor, consultant, adviser or agent of any
member of the Group.

The Share Award Scheme shall be subject to the
administration of the Administration Committee in
accordance with the rules of the Share Award Scheme
and the terms of the Trust Deed.

Pursuant to the Share Award Scheme, the Board shall
select the eligible persons for participation in the Share
Award Scheme and determine the number of shares to be
awarded. Shares will be acquired by an independent
trustee at the cost of the Company or shares will be
allotted to the independent trustee under the general
mandate granted or to be granted by the shareholders of
the Company at general meetings from time to time and
be held in trust for the awarded persons until the end of
each vesting period. Vested shares will be transferred at
no cost to the awarded persons.
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Where any Awarded Shares are proposed to be offered to
a connected person of the Company (as defined under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules), such offer of Awarded
Shares has to be first approved by the independent non-
executive directors of the Company and the Company will
comply with the applicable requirements of Chapter 14A of
the Listing Rules in respect of such offer (including but not
limited to the obtaining of independent Shareholders’
approval if necessary).

Based on the 890,435,400 Shares in issue as at the
adoption date, the maximum number of Awarded Shares
under the Share Award Scheme would be 44,521,770
shares and the maximum number of shares which may be
awarded to an awarded person under the Share Award
Scheme would be 8,904,354 shares.

For the year ended 31 December 2020, no Awarded
Share was granted, vested or cancelled pursuant to the
Share Award Scheme.

COMPETING BUSINESS

None of the directors of the Company had any interest in
any competing business with the Company or any of its
subsidiaries during the year under review. Each of Mr. Lee
and Precisefull (the controlling shareholders (within the
meaning of the Listing Rules) of the Company) has
provided a written confirmation, which has been reviewed
and confirmed by the independent non-executive directors
of the Company, confirming that they have complied with
the terms of a Deed of Non-competition entered into
between them and the Company for the year ended 31
December 2020.

PUBLIC FLOAT

As at the date of this report, the Company has maintained
the prescribed public float required under the Listing Rules,
based on the information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of the directors.
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EEEHE(HA)

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Details of the Group’s related party transactions are set
out in note 42 to the consolidated financial statements.
Save for the purchase of machinery and machinery parts
from and maintenance cost to a related company, Chit
Shun Machinery Limited, in prior years (and which the
applicable requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules had been complied with), the related party
transactions set out therein do not fall within the definition
of connected transactions under Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

On 29 March 2021, the Board has recommended the
payment of a final dividend of HK3.0 cents per share
(2019: HK2.0 cents per share) for the year ended 31
December 2020 to the shareholders whose names appear
on the register of members of the Company on Thursday,
10 June 2021. Subject to the approval of the shareholders
of the Company at the forthcoming annual general meeting
to be held on Monday, 31 May 2021, the final dividend will
be paid on or about Friday, 18 June 2021.

AUDITOR

At the last annual general meeting of the Company, RSM
Hong Kong was re-appointed as the auditor of the
Company.

The consolidated financial statement has been audited by
RSM Hong Kong who will retire and, being eligible, offer
themselves for re-appointment.

The Company will propose a resolution in relation to the

re-appointment of RSM Hong Kong at the forthcoming
annual general meeting.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT (CONTINUED)

OTHER CHANGES IN DIRECTORS’
INFORMATION

Other changes in directors’ information for the year ended
31 December 2020 are set out below:

1. Ir Dr. Lo Wai Kwok sBs, MH, JP, an independent non-
executive director of the Company, retired as an
independent non-executive director of Glory Mark Hi-
Tech (Holdings) Limited (Stock code: 8159), a
company listed on the Hong Kong Exchanged on 30
June 2020.

Save as the information disclosed above, there is no
change in directors’ information required to be disclosed
pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules.

By order of the Board
Lee Yuen Fat
Chairman

Hong Kong, 29 March 2021
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

TRERBE

The board of directors of the Company (the “Board”)
believes that good corporate governance practices are
essential for promoting investors’ confidence and
maximising shareholders’ returns. The Board is committed
to maintaining a high standard of corporate governance
and reviews its corporate governance practices on a
regular basis.

With the above in mind, the Company has applied the
principles and adopted corporate governance practices as
set out in the Corporate Governance Code (the “CG
Code”) contained in Appendix 14 to the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities (the “Listing Rules”) on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) in
its corporate governance. In accordance with the
requirements of the Listing Rules and also to enhance its
corporate governance practices, the Company has also
adopted a number of corporate governance policies,
including but not limited the board diversity policy, the
shareholders’ communication policy, the director
nomination policy, risk management policy, inside
information policy and the dividend policy.

Save for the matters discussed in the paragraph headed
“Chairman and Chief Executive Officer” in this section, for
the year ended 31 December 2020 and up to the date of
this report, the Board is of the view that Company is in
compliance with all the applicable code provisions of the
CG Code, which is explained in the relevant paragraphs
below.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

THE BOARD

The Board is collectively responsible for formulating the
Group’s overall business strategies, monitoring and
evaluating its operating and financial performance and
reviewing the corporate governance standard of the
Company. The day-to-day management, administration and
operation of the Company are all led by the chief
executive officer of the Company. The Board has
delegated a series of responsibilities to the senior
management of the Company, which include the
implementation of decisions of the Board, the coordination
and direction of day-to-day operation and management of
the Company in accordance with the management
strategies and plans approved by the Board, formulating
and monitoring the production and operating plans and
budgets, and supervising and monitoring the control
systems. The Board has the full support of the senior
management to discharge its responsibilities.

As at 31 December 2020, the Board comprises seven
members as follows:

Executive Directors

Mr. Lee Yuen Fat (Chairman)
(appointed as Chief Executive Officer with effect
from 31 December 2020 and stepped down as
Chief Executive Officer with effect from
1 February 2021)

Mr. Wong Wing Chuen (Vice Chairman)

Ms. Chan So Wah

Independent Non-executive Directors

Professor Sun Kai Lit Cliff, BBS, JP

Ir Dr. Lo Wai Kwok, SBS, MH, JP

Mr. Andrew Look

Mr. Kong Kai Chuen, Frankie (formerly known as Kong To
Yeung, Frankie)

Biographical details of the directors of the Company
(“Directors”) as at the date of this report are set out on
pages 20 to 27 of this annual report.

Save as disclosed in the section headed “Directors and
Senior Management” in this annual report, the Board
members have no financial, business, family or other
material/relevant relationships with each other as at 31
December 2020.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

TREREE (F)

Each of the independent non-executive Directors has
confirmed in writing his independence from the Company
in accordance with Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. On this
basis, the Company considers all such Directors to be
independent.

All the independent non-executive Directors were
appointed for a term of two years and are subject to
retirement by rotation and re-election at the annual general
meeting of the Company in accordance with the provisions
of the Articles of Association of the Company. To further
strengthen the standard of corporate governance, the
Company follows the CG Code and requires any re-
appointment of an independent non-executive Director who
has served on the Board for over nine years to be subject
to a separate resolution to be approved by shareholders.
In such cases, the Board will set out in the annual report
or circular the reasons why it considers such Director to
continue to be independent and should be re-elected.

The Board conducts four regular scheduled meetings a
year on a quarterly basis generally and ad hoc meetings
are convened when circumstances require. Notice of at
least 14 days is given to all Directors for all regular Board
meetings and all Directors are given opportunity to include
matters for discussion in the agenda. Draft minutes of
Board meetings are circulated to all Directors for
comments. Minutes of Board meetings with details of
matters considered by the Board and decisions reached
are kept by the Company Secretary and open for
inspection by the Directors.

During the year, seven Board meetings and one annual
general meeting were held and details of attendance of
Directors are set out in the table on page 57 of this
annual report.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER
Pursuant to Code Provision A.2.1 of the CG Code, the
roles of Chairman and Chief Executive Officer (“CEO”)
should be separate and should not be performed by the
same individual. Currently, the roles of chairman and CEO
of the Company are separate and are not performed by
the same individual.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

Mr. Lee Yuen Fat (“Mr. Lee”), the Chairman and an
executive director of the Company, has temporarily taken
up the duties of CEO after Mr. Leung King Kwok, Godfrey
SBS has resigned from his position as CEO of the
Company on 31 December 2020 until a suitable candidate
is appointed. After the appointment of Mr. Chu Weiman
(“Mr. Chu”) as the CEO of the Company with effect from 1
February 2021, Mr. Lee stepped down from his role as the
CEO of the Company on the same date but he remains as
an executive director and the chairman of the Board.
Through Mr. Chu’s appointment, the Company has
recomplied with Code Provision A.2.1 of the CG Code. Mr.
Lee, the chairman of the Company, is responsible for the
leadership and effective running of the Board while Mr.
Chu, the CEO of the Company, is responsible for the
overall management and supervision of the execution of
the overall business strategies of the Group.

LIABILITY INSURANCE FOR THE DIRECTORS
The Company has in force appropriate insurance coverage
on Directors’ and officers’ liabilities arising from the
Group’s business. The Company reviews the extent of
insurance coverage on an annual basis.

CONTINUOUS PROFESSIONAL
DEVELOPMENT

The Directors are regularly briefed on the amendments to
or updates on the Listing Rules, corporate governance
practices, applicable regulatory regimes and the business
development of the Group. To keep abreast of the
responsibilities of the Directors and infuse them with new
knowledge, an in-house seminar was conducted during the
year and all Directors attended the seminar. Apart from
what the Company had arranged, some of the Directors
also attended other external training seminars.
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TREREE (F)

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company established the Audit Committee in June
2007. The primary duties of the Audit Committee are to
review the Company’s financial reports, make
recommendations on the appointment, removal and
remuneration of independent auditor, approve audit and
audit-related services, supervise the Company’s internal
financial reporting procedures and management policies,
review the Company’s risk management and internal
control systems as well as the internal audit function, and
other duties under the CG code. The Audit Committee
comprises four independent non-executive directors,
namely Mr. Kong Kai Chuen, Frankie (formerly known as
Kong To Yeung, Frankie), Professor Sun Kai Lit, Cliff 8BS,
JP, Ir Dr. Lo Wai Kwok sBS, MH, JP and Mr. Andrew Look
and is chaired by Mr. Kong Kai Chuen, Frankie (formerly
known as Kong To Yeung, Frankie), a qualified accountant
with extensive experience in financial reporting and
controls.

During 2020, the Audit Committee held three meetings to
review the interim and annual results of the Group, risk
management and internal control systems of the Group,
the effectiveness of the Company’s internal audit function
and to make recommendation to the Board on the re-
appointment of the auditors of the Company.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Nomination Committee was set up in June 2007 and
is mainly responsible for reviewing the structure, size and
the composition of the Board and making
recommendations on any proposed change to the Board
to complement the Company’s corporate strategy;
assessing the independence of independent non-executive
Directors; making recommendations to the Board on the
appointment of Directors and succession planning for
Directors. The members of the Nomination Committee are
Professor Sun Kai Lit, Cliff BBS, Jp, Ir Dr. Lo Wai Kwok sBs,
MH, JP, Mr. Andrew Look and Mr. Kong Kai Chuen, Frankie
(formerly known as Kong To Yeung, Frankie). Professor
Sun Kai Lit, Cliff BBS, JP is the Chairman of the Nomination
Committee.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

During 2020, the Nomination Committee held two
meetings to recommend the directors to be re-elected at
annual general meeting, assess the independence of
independent non-executive directors of the Company,
review the structure, size and the composition of the
Board.

DIRECTOR NOMINATION POLICY

The Board has adopted a director nomination policy (the
“Director Nomination Policy”) as required by the CG Code
which sets out selection criteria in evaluating and selecting
candidates for directorships. The Nomination Committee
shall consider various factors, including but not limited to
objectives of nomination committee, the character and
integrity, qualifications, ability and independency
requirements of the selecting candidates, the board
diversity policy and the needs of the Company.

The Nomination Committee shall evaluate and assess
whether such candidate is qualified for directorship based
on the selection criteria upon receipt of the proposal on
appointment of new director. It may engage external
service provider(s) as it considers appropriate in making the
determination and recommend to the Board to appoint the
appropriate candidate for directorship. The Nomination
Committee shall also evaluate candidates based on the
selection criteria to determine whether such candidate that
is nominated by a shareholder is qualified and appropriate
for election as a director at the general meeting of the
Company.

The Nomination Committee shall review the overall
contribution and service to the Company of the retiring
director and determine whether the retiring director
continues to meet the selection criteria. The Board, with
the recommendation from Nomination Committee, shall
then make recommendation to shareholders in respect of
the proposed re-election of the retiring director at the
general meeting. The Board shall have the final decision on
all matters relating to its recommendation of candidates to
stand for election at any general meeting.

The Nomination Committee will continue to review the
Director Nomination Policy from time to time and may
adopt changes as appropriate at the relevant time.
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TREREE (F)

BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

The Board has adopted a board diversity policy (the
“Board Diversity Policy”) as required by the Listing Rules
which sets out the approach to achieve diversity on the
Board. The Company recognises that increasing diversity at
the Board level will support the attainment of the
Company’s strategic objectives and sustainable
development. The Company seeks to achieve Board
diversity when selecting candidates from a number of
perspectives through the consideration of a number of
factors, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural
and educational background, ethnicity, professional
experience, skills, knowledge and length of service. The
Company will also take into consideration its own business
model and specific needs from time to time.

The Nomination Committee will review and monitor the
implementation of the Board Diversity Policy to ensure its
effectiveness as appropriate.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Company established the Remuneration Committee in
June 2007. The major duties of the Remuneration
Committee are to make recommendations to the Board on
the Company’s policy and structure for the remuneration of
directors and senior management. It also reviews and
determines the terms of remuneration packages, the award
of bonuses and other compensation payable to individual
Directors and senior management with reference to the
Board’s corporate goals and objectives. The Remuneration
Committee consists of Professor Sun Kai Lit, Cliff BBS, JP,
Ir Dr. Lo Wai Kwok sBS, MH, JP, Mr. Andrew Look and Mr.
Kong Kai Chuen, Frankie (formerly known as Kong To
Yeung, Frankie). The Chairman of the Remuneration
Committee is Professor Sun Kai Lit, Cliff BBS, JP, an
independent non-executive director.

During 2020, the Remuneration Committee held one

meeting to approve the bonus payable to executive
directors of the Company.
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ERERES (H)
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The remuneration of the members of senior management
(excluding directors) who were employed by the Group
during the year ended 31 December 2020, shown by
band, is set out below:

Number of individuals
A8

HK$500,001 — HK$1,000,000 500,001 7C — 1,000,0007% 7T 1
HK$1,000,001 — HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 7T — 1,500,000/ 7T 2
HK$1,500,001 — HK$2,000,000 1,500,001 7C — 2,000,000 7T 3
HK$2,000,001 — HK$2,500,000 2,000,001 7t — 2,500,000 7T -
HK$2,500,001 — HK$3,000,000 2,500,001% 7T — 3,000,0007% 7T 1

RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE

The Company has set up the Risk Management
Committee with terms of reference in October 2020. The
main responsibilities of the Risk Management Committee
include monitor and review the process of the risk
management and internal control, and advise the Board on
the appropriateness, effectiveness of and the proposed
improvements to be made to the existing risk management
and internal control systems; provide recommendations to
the management on risk management and internal control,
and set up procedures to unveil, assess and manage
material risk factors and ensure that management
discharges its responsibility to implement effective risk
management and internal control systems; and review with
the Group’s management, external auditor and the internal
audit function, the adequacy of the Group’s policies and
procedures regarding risk management and internal control
systems and any relevant statement by the directors to be
included in the annual accounts prior to their endorsement
by the Board. The Risk Management Committee currently
comprises the Chief Executive Officer of the Company
(namely Mr. Chu Weiman) as its chairman, and Director of
Manufacturing (namely Mr. Wong Wing Chuen), Director of
Operations (namely Ms. Chan So Wah), Director of Sales
and Marketing and Director of Finance and Corporate
Strategy as its members.

During 2020, the Risk Management Committee held one
meeting to discuss the potential risks exposed to the
Group in its operations and the Group’s internal control
procedures.
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TREREE (F)

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTION
The Board is responsible for the corporate governance
functions with the following duties:

° to develop and review the Company’s policies and
practices on corporate governance and make
recommendations on changes and updating;

° to review and monitor the training and continuous
professional development of Directors and senior
management;

° to review and monitor the Company’s policies and
practices on compliance with legal and regulatory
requirements;

° to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct
and compliance manual (if any) applicable to
employees and Directors; and

° to review the Company’s compliance with the CG

Code and disclosure in the Corporate Governance
Report.
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XERBE (&)
ATTENDANCE OF MEETINGS HEEE
A summary of attendance of Board meetings, committee TEREIWR-Z-_EFEEELEDL  ZEELH
meetings and general meetings in 2020 are detailed in the EBRRERRE T HEERE

following table:

Number of attendance/Number of meetings
HERE/ERRY
Risk
Audit  Nomination Remuneration Management Annual
Committee Committee Committee Committee General

meeting meeting meeting meeting Meeting
BEREEE REZFEE HFMEEE B EE RE
B ] E ZEEEH HEXE

Executive Directors

BITES

Mr. Lee Yuen Fat 77 - - - - 11
TEELE

Mr. Wong Wing Chuen 7 - - - 01 11
Ms. Chan So Wah 77 - - - 1/1 11
BERELT

Independent Non-Executive Directors

BUFHITES
Professor Sun Kai Lit, Cliff 88s, Jp 77 3/3 2/2 11 - 11
HE RIS s, 0P
Ir Dr. Lo Wai Kwok $BS, MH, JP 777 3/3 2/2 11 - 11
EREE LTRGBS, MH, P
Mr. Andrew Look 77 3/3 2/2 11 - 11
RSt
Mr. Kong Kai Chuen, Frankie

(formerly known as Kong To Yeung, Frankie) 77 3/3 2/2 1/1 - 1/1

ITRERAFRETER)

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES ERETESRINELESE
TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities RAREHEM ETMRAMEE TS 2 EFETE
Transactions by Directors (the “Model Code”) as set out in HERGHHEAEFR| ([ZAEFR]]) - KME2EES
Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules. Having made specific ELERBERERER  RERNEIBFEN—ESR
enquiry of all Directors, all Directors have confirmed that 38 <P AR 2E <7 Bl P8k 4R E 228 -

they have fully complied with the required standard set out
in the Model Code throughout the year under review.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

TREREE (F)

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for the
preparation of the financial statements of the Company for
the year ended 31 December 2020. The statement of the
external auditor of the Company in relation to their
reporting responsibilities on the financial statements of the
Group is set out in the Independent Auditor’'s Report on
pages 108 and 115.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROL

The Board has overall responsibility for maintaining and
reviewing the effectiveness of the risk management and
internal control systems of the Group in order to safeguard
the Group’s assets and shareholders’ investments. The
systems of risk management and internal control of the
Group are designed to manage rather than eliminate the
risk of failure to achieve corporate objectives and only
provide reasonable but not absolute assurance against
material misstatement or loss.

The Audit Committee assists the Board in fulfiling its role
in reviewing the Group’s financial, operational and
compliance controls and reviewing the adequacy of
resources, staff qualifications and experience, training
programmes and budget of the Group’s accounting,
internal audit and financial reporting functions, and the
adequacy and effectiveness of the Group’s internal control
procedures on the continuing connected transactions.

The management assists the Board regularly in the
implementation of the Group’s policies, procedures and
limits within the Board’s approved risk appetite by
identifying and assessing the risks faced and monitoring
the design and operation of the relevant internal control
measures to mitigate and control these risks.

During the year, the Group has engaged an external
independent professional firm to review its internal control
system covering all relevant financial, operational and
compliance control functions within an established
framework. Reports prepared by this firm are submitted to
the Audit Committee of the Company twice a year for
review to ensure that an effective and adequate internal
control system is in place.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

The Group has also engaged an independent professional
consultant to identify, evaluate, manage and prioritise the
significant risks exposed to the Group through reviewing
the implemented system and procedures, including areas
covering financial, operational and legal compliance
controls and risk management functions. In addition, the
Group has adopted a risk management policy which
contains a structured approach to risk management and a
risk-based three-year internal audit plan was introduced
through restructuring of internal control system in order to
address the significant risks identified and assessed by the
Group.

The Board has set up the Risk Management Committee
comprising the CEQ, Director of Manufacturing, Director of
Operations, Director of Sales of Marketing and Director of
Finance and Corporate Strategy with a specific term of
reference. The Risk Management Committee will report to
the Audit Committee regularly and assist the Board and
the Audit Committee to review the Company’s risk
management and internal control systems.

During the year, the Board has conducted a review on the
effectiveness of risk management and internal control
systems through the Audit Committee and the outsourced
internal auditor. The scope of review was previously
determined and approved by the Audit Committee.

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the Board
considered that the Company’s internal control and risk
management systems are adequate and effective and the
Company has complied with the code provisions on
internal control and risk management of the CG Code.

EXRERHE(R)

AEECKRERBLEXBEREERNCETH
HIERER  SEREME  L2ENEEARE
R EARERBEEE  ABA - FE - BER
BHFASEESZEARR BF  ARECRK
MEAAEBCRARER AN EARERHR
WiEBEHARNMERRGEIAARRSERHA
MBEZ=FRE AR ASK B EWE B TS
ZEXER

EEeRUTRREEZES  ATTHAS #
1RARE - SEME  EHEENMBERERERE
REEHER YREBEWRERE -RREER
BEeRNEHnERZEQER  YHBESEM
EZZ B e AR EREIEM AT RS

FR - EEZEEBERZBERIINERNHER
HAKENRRE R R ABRPEE RGBT
R - A BEELRBEZRZ BERE L
JE ©

HE_Z-_FF4+_A=+—HIFE E£&
RERNABNAIEERRBREERE TR R
B MARARINBETEEERTA BRI
BEE K R B B EE A SR AR ST o
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

TREREE (F)

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES
FACING THE COMPANY

Business Risk

The COVID-19 pandemic had created uncertainty for the
global economy throughout 2020. Many countries reacted
accordingly by shutting borders and locking down cities,
resulting in business suspension among various industries.
The suspension in production of schedule led to
contraction in international trade, while market sentiment
and consumers’ willingness to purchase remained relatively
low in the first half of 2020. The unpredictability associated
with the global pandemic and any further contingent
prevention and control measure that may be implemented
by governments may lead to new challenges to the
Group’s business and its operations. The Group will
closely monitor the development of the aforesaid issues
and evaluate its impact on the financial position and
operating results of the Group, and to implement stringent
cost control measures and to make necessary adjustments
to its strategies and operations so as to mitigate their
effects to the Group and our customers.

Foreign Exchange Risk

Most of the Group’s transactions were conducted in US
dollars, Renminbi or Hong Kong dollars. As such, the
Group is aware of the potential foreign currency risk that
may arise from the fluctuation of exchange rates between
US dollars, Renminbi and Hong Kong dollars. The Group
will closely monitor its overall foreign exchange exposure
with a view to safeguarding the Group from exchange rate
risks.

Competition Risk

Competition risk arises from the emergence of a number of
competitors in the industry. Price cut from competitors
intensifies the risk. The Group believes that the provision
of quality products and after sales service to customers
are the only way to gain and maintain customer
confidence and loyalty.

Annual Report 2020

RABFESEERRR AHABPREE

e
FARRKRSEBAERA S _SFEMNDHE
EERT TR - SEME THENRERTE
BB ERHERT  ERSTEENFE - £
EREANEESEBESEZR AT -_Z2F
FEFMBBEMHEENBEERDARK -
B2 2 BRo% 15 AR A A9 N BT BRI DA K BT AT BE B e
BT {A] 3 — 2 X 2 TR B FN 42 5 1 1) BE A& $’§I
ZEBREBERFORE - REBBRYER
FEEFmERE - I%ﬁﬁﬁ$E@%$#R&
MERENFE  UREHERE 2 AIZES S
kEBSE M%W%WﬂMiuﬁﬂﬁ@l%ﬂ
REERERFZEE

Y EE &L P
REBABHRZYUET - AREESE T
TRt KEBEEEIET ARBRET

PE X R R B A RE S A BEIMNERR - REEAE
) B R ERR A HINIE [ B LA Bk o2 AR R [ B R FE XK
RS REE -

o F LB

GEEBKRETERBERAERFHTF - HFHTF

RESEBNE - AEEHE ARFREED
ERREERENIESRESEFEORERZ
ME—R 1 o



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

PROCEDURES AND INTERNAL CONTROLS
FOR HANDLING AND DISSEMINATION OF
INSIDE INFORMATION

The handling and dissemination of inside information of the
Group is strictly controlled to avoid unauthorised use of
inside information. All staff are required to sign the
employee confidentiality agreement and access to inside
information is restricted to employees on a need to-know
basis. In addition, the Group has adopted an inside
information policy to set out the procedures of inside
information identification, reporting and disclosure. The
Group will review the effectiveness of the policy from time
to time to ensure the compliance of the relevant regulatory
requirements.

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

The total auditor’'s remuneration in relation to statutory
audit work and non-audit services of the Group payable to
the Company’s external independent auditor, RSM Hong
Kong, is set out as follows:

ERERES (H)

REREMRABEEENEFREZER

AEEBREHEEREHRAKEARHEE
BERERBERARNTHEE ° Fﬁﬁfilﬂﬁ‘ﬁg
EREREREHZLRH E TIRAMNEERETAR
HE - BE  AEBECDRARNEBEBRASE
AEHEBR - mERBERT - AREHETE
WA EBREFNAERN  AERETHBARER

Eo

AN 2 B =
AEEEN FINEBLZBMERESHER
FrBRAE B MIFE RS BT 20 T

2020 2019

—g-®s  —T a5

HK$’000 HK$'000

FETT FETT

Statutory audit ETE B 1,917 1,800

Non-audit services!" FEZRBED 277 357

Total BB 2,194 2,157

Note: HtaE -

1. Non-audit services mainly included agreed-upon procedures on 1. IECREEFEZERFEFHEAEZLNERF LREE AR

interim results and tax advisory services.

COMPANY SECRETARY

The Company Secretary of the Company is a full time
employee of the Company. For the year ended 31
December 2020, the Company Secretary has duly
complied with the relevant professional training requirement
under Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules.

¥ o

ARWE
$"ﬁ2"ﬁ%i%$"ﬁ2%ﬁr‘ﬂ§§ cHE—Z
ToTFFT_A=T—RHILEFE AawEDLE
SEEMRAIEI2EMIBEEEEEIHEE -

“ECEEFER EHERERERLA
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

TREREE (F)

DIVIDEND POLICY

The Company has adopted a dividend policy (“Dividend
Policy”), pursuant to which the Company may declare and
distribute dividends to the shareholders of the Company
(the “Shareholders”), provided that the declaration and
payment of dividend shall remain to be recommended by
the Board and any final dividend for the financial year will
be subject to shareholders’ approval.

In proposing any dividend payout, the Board shall take into
account, among other things, the Company’s current and
future operations, corporate development plans, liquidity
position, capital requirements and future expected capital
needs, as well as dividends received from the Company’s
subsidiaries and associates. Any payment of the dividend
by the Company is also subject to any requirements under
the Cayman Islands law, the Listing Rules of Stock
Exchange and the Company’s Articles of Association.

The Board will continue to review the Dividend Policy from
time to time and may adopt changes as appropriate at the
relevant time as part of its commitment to maximizing
shareholder value, taking into consideration the financial
performance of the Company and market conditions.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Procedures for convening extraordinary general
meeting on requisition

Pursuant to Article 64 of the Company’s Articles of
Association, an extraordinary general meeting may be
convened on the requisition of one or more shareholders
holding, at the date of deposit of the requisition, not less
than one tenth of the paid up capital of the Company
having the right of voting at general meetings. Such
requisition shall be made in writing to the Board or the
Company Secretary for the purpose of requiring an
extraordinary general meeting to be called by the Board for
the transaction of any business specified in such
requisition. Such meeting shall be held within two months
after the deposit of such requisition. If within 21 days of
such deposit, the Board fails to proceed to convene such
meeting, the requisitionist(s) himself (themselves) may do so
in the same manner, and all reasonable expenses incurred
by the requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of the
Board shall be reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by the
Company.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

Procedure for putting forward proposals at
general meeting

A shareholder shall make a written requisition to the Board
or the Company Secretary at the Company’s office in
Hong Kong, specifying the shareholding information of the
shareholder, contact details and the proposal he/she
intends to put forward at the general meeting regarding
any specified business and its supporting documents.

Shareholders’ enquiries

The Company has adopted a Shareholders’
Communication Policy to enable shareholders to engage
actively with the Company and exercise their rights as
shareholders in an informed manner. The Board will review
Shareholders’ Communication Policy on a regular basis to
ensure its effectiveness.

The Company’s Shareholders Communication Policy sets
out, amongst other things, shareholders should direct their
questions in relation to their shareholdings to the
Company’s share registrar. Shareholders may make a
request by writing to the Company Secretary for the
Company’s information to the extent that such information
is publicly available. Shareholders may also send written
enquiries to the Board by writing to the Company
Secretary at the Company’s Hong Kong office at Room A,
29th Floor, Tower B, Billion Centre, 1 Wang Kwong Road,
Kowloon Bay, Kowloon, Hong Kong.

Constitutional Documents

There has been no change in the Company’s
constitutional documents during the year ended 31
December 2020.

e
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

RiZ - HGRERRSE

Ka Shui International Holdings Limited (the “Company”) is
delighted to publish this environmental, social and
governance (“ESG”) report, covering the period from 1
January 2020 to 31 December 2020 (the “Reporting
Period”).

REPORTING SCOPE

The report focuses the ESG management approaches,
environmental and social performance of the Company and
its major manufacturing facilities (collectively, the “Ka Shui
Group” or the “Group”) in Huizhou City of Guangdong
Province, the PRC, as listed below:

o Ka Fung Industrial Technology (Huizhou) Co., Ltd.
(“Ka Fung”)

° Ka Yi Technology (Huizhou) Co., Ltd. (“Ka Yi”)

° Ka Shui Technology (Huizhou) Co., Ltd. (“Ka Shui
Technology”)

It covers the principal operations of the Company — die
casting and plastic injection. The reporting scope is in line
with the 2019 ESG report which was included in 2019
Annual Report of the Company.

REPORTING STANDARD

The report has been prepared in accordance with the
“Comply or Explain” provisions of the ESG Reporting
Guide under Appendix 27 to the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited. It has been reviewed and approved by the board
of directors of the Company. The board of directors has
acknowledged its responsibility to oversee the Company’s
sustainable development and review the truthfulness,
accuracy and completeness of the ESG report and our
management has provided a confirmation to the board of
directors on the effectiveness of ESG risk management
and internal control systems.

CONTACT & FEEDBACK

We believe continuous improvement is essential for a better
society and environment; therefore, we welcome your
feedback on this ESG report and please contact us
through email at enquiry@kashui.com.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT &
MATERIALITY ASSESSMENT

Ka Shui Group always gives top priority to stakeholders’
interests and value their view as we believe that the
participation of stakeholders is crucial for corporate social
responsibility (“CSR”) implementation and the overall ESG
management.

To learn and improve, we need to understand how our
stakeholders think towards our sustainability efforts and
identify the ESG areas where we have to strengthen to
address their needs and priorities. We have been
maintaining regular communication with stakeholders
through various channels, which are illustrated in the table
below:

Types of stakeholder group

Rz - HERERHRE(R)

KM EZSERERMNG

EhEERELEEERKNENG  WERMFMN
ER AARMARRFOHENSELELEMEE
TOEEHEEE)MEBMERR - HEHER
MEBEREREHEE -

ﬁiﬁ'ﬁﬁ?é‘éT%ﬁ%fﬁ%”ﬁﬁiﬁ’ﬁEﬁT%%iE%‘”éEIf’EE’\J
BE - WHERRRMSAEMBHIRE - L EEER
#E DA@JTETMFEJE’JEE&TE%%IE fiéﬁﬁf_ﬁ
SBERME B BERBSEREEAFNEL
TTEHER MTRAR:

Communication channel

FirEHENER BERE
Investors and shareholders o Company website A &) 48 1k

BREERER .

Company’s announcements A &) A ff

e Annual general meeting A% B A F A&
e Annual and interim reports 4 %R & i B3R &

Customers °

ENS .

Company website 72 &) 4835
Customer satisfaction surveys B jm = EfH S

o Customer service hotlines & F iR 7% 20 45

Employees o

=3 .

Training and orientation 314k & 553l
Intranet PB4

. Opinion box = i*ﬁ

e Annual appraisal & (&

. Relationship building activities 737 B & 8 /E &)
e Whistle-blowing mechanism 2 3 1 4

Suppliers and business partners o
g KRB R .
Non-governmental organizations .
JF BT 4B 8K J
Communities o
ol .
Media o
e .

Monthly and annual assessments A & & & E ¥4
Tendering and procurement processes HR1Z K & im i

Charity donations ZZ 183k
Voluntary services & T R %%

Company website 2 7] 48
Community activities 4t [& & &

Company website A 51484
Company’s announcements A

PN

TECZEFR RHEREZEREARAA
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

Rz - 4 2RERKRE (R)

Identification

- ;néagement -

Prioritisation

&5

« |dentify and » Conduct
map a list of stakeholder
ESG topics engagement

o bRl R ARl — exercises
RV - AL EITHRES
FEERTE fiEb=0)

~— ~—

In order to identify the ESG issues that are material to the
Group in formulating appropriate ESG strategies, we have
conducted a materiality assessment through an online
questionnaire. Key stakeholders were invited to fill in the
online questionnaire, which consists of twenty-seven rating
questions covering ESG topics regarding environmental
protection, community investment, operational practices
and employment. Stakeholders rated the importance of
these ESG topics from the stakeholders and business
perspectives.

Based on the materiality of each of the ESG topics
expressed by the stakeholders, the ESG topics are
prioritised into three categories — high, medium and low
and shown in the materiality matrix below. The topics
which fell in the upper right corner of the matrix were
defined as the topics that matter most to the Group’s
business operations and our stakeholders as far as they
are concerned.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

Rz - HERERHRE(R)

Significance to Stakeholders
HEGENEEMS

Medium Priority
hELIRF

%

oY
§0" °
@96 ’

Low Priority
EEERT

High Priority
BERIRF

®
8 ®
22]18

Medium Priority
hELRF

. Environment &S

1 Air emission
RESHE K

2 Greenhouse gas emissions
= R EEHE

3 Climate change
FRE(

4 Energy efficiency
BE IR A

5 Water & effluents
KK 557K

6 Use of materials
ML A

7 Waste management
REYE B

8 Environmental compliance
REAR

A 4

Significance to the Group’s Business & Operation

HAREXBEREENEEY

® Employment #t %

9 Labour rights
& THER

10 Labour-management relations
BTEERER

11 Employee retention
EERME

12 Diversity and equal opportunity
Zrlt R TFERE

13 Non-discrimination
RIEAR

14 Occupational health and safety
BERERRZR

15 Employee training
& B 3IAR

16 Employee development
EE#ER

17 Prevention of child labour &
forced labour
A ETI REAET

. Community #E

27 Community support
e

. Operation 2i&

18 Customer satisfaction
EPWER

19 Customer service quality &
complaints handling
BEFREEERIRFERE

20 Customer health and safety
EPREERES

21 Marketing and product and service
labelling compliance
EHH AN Em MR IRES R

22 Intellectual property rights
HBERE

23 Customer privacy and data
protection
BEPLERBBRE

24 Responsible supply chain
management
BEEOHERER

25 Business ethics
[EE3EEES

26 Socio-economic compliance
HERBEER

TECZEFR RHEREZEREARAA
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

Rz - 4 2RERKRE (R)

With these results in mind, we have disclosed our
management approaches and performance in this ESG
report. We will continue to review our existing strategies
and initiatives in order to improve our ESG performance.

OUR SUSTAINABILITY APPROACH

As a leading one-stop service provider specialised in zinc,
magnesium and aluminium alloys die casting, and plastic
injection moulding, Ka Shui Group recognises sustainability
as an integral part of our business sustainability and
SUCCesS.

To better manage our ESG performance, the Group has
formulated the CSR Policy Statement, endorsed by the
Chairman of Ka Shui Group and implemented at all levels
of staff. In line with our core values — “pursuit of
excellence, creation of values, unity and mutual trust,
harmonious development, green production and
contribution to the community”, it serves as a group-wide
guiding policy in the corporate decision-making process
and monitors material ESG issues in our day-to-day
operation. We focus on four key areas to foster the well-
being of our employees, customers, environment and
community through leveraging our technology, innovation
and expertise.

ERIBAGER  RMSRAERER
BERBRMANEETERKRR - RAOGEER
A HPIRIR A KBS L - URERPIHERE
HEEERARS -

R AIFE RS =

ERBINE  BRAEGSEEAREBBIIEN
BE—MAIRBHER  RihKER B AIREN
RBFIEB AR EER IR A e — &R0

HEgEER

B X

AT EFERRMMNERE HEREA/ARR
AEEDHECEELEEERRER)  ARE
FihEEEENIR  ASRETHT - £EH
SEMEBREBRTERMEREY - 2lEEE -
BELRE NHEER SEeREROBELE]IN
ZOEES  REEKENARIRFBRIEMRE
5 WEERFMEBLENERNRE HEHE
A o WA TN EEZEE - EBH AR
BB REERNBARERE BFP -RER
ALl B AR AL

Creation of
values

BIERE \

Unity and
mutual trust

Contribution to
the community

ORI & E#&EE

Pursuit of
excellence

Bk

Green

production

RERE

.

Harmonious

development
MERE
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)
RiE - HEHERRE(H)

CSR Policy Statement CEHEEXBREHR

1. A Responsible Producer B& 14 &R

e Uphold the highest standards of governance with core ethical values
RAEREAMBRERZVEREBEE

e Integrate sustainability concepts into our product designs
KA HEERESBARMNERRF

¢ |nvest in new technology research and development
BE F B ot E%

e Take environmental and social considerations in managing our supply chain

EEERMNEEREZBRREMTEERER

2. A Responsible Employer BEHI{EE

e Foster a dynamic, supportive and safe workplace for our people
REMONEILE—@ARMEN  XBERLEHNIIESAH

e Ensure our employee practices are strictly abided by local labour laws and regulations, and international
standards such as SA8000 Standard
BREMOESITRERKESTE S TEAEER KBIFRRAE - fI21SAS0001F £

e Support employee wellness and family obligations
xHEERERREERE

e Treat our people fairly with no discrimination

AHERE A FHEFRMNET

Offer diversified programmes for employees’ growth and advancement

REHESEANTENREREENRIER

3. Responsible for Our Environment #IRER S

e |mprove and refine our environmental management system
HERTERMANREEREBR

e Maximise energy and natural resources efficiency
RERSHERIARE RN

e Achieve low-carbon manufacturing
BRI RS

e Minimise negative impact on the environment
BAOBRENEETE

4. Responsible for Our Community #1# ER S

e Make positive contributions to the community
AREBELTEEER

e Focus on supporting local education projects for youth development
BRTRHMNREFERNBEER

e Collaborate with local charities on poverty and disaster relief initiatives
HEMBEESRBAEETRE RBETH

CECZEFR ERERZERAERAT
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1. A RESPONSIBLE PRODUCER 1. BENEERD
As a responsible corporate, we endeavour to build a ERBEANDLE  BRMBABBUIEER
long-term relationship with our customers and supply AIEMREERBEEEREEER  HEF
chain by providing quality services and products with FitEERE s REBAERER -

integrity and trust.

Product Responsibility EmEE

Ka Shui Group upholds product excellence as its top =hEERKREEEEMRABEEK -
priority. To satisfy customers’ expectations and to AmEREFPMBERESEE  BRMAEZ
build trust, we have established robust quality control BB MITENREEREEUAREPERE
and assurance processes with reference to VERBMNREETERRERRE - ROANE
international and industry-specific standards, as well B ks Is BHE B & 151SO 9001 : 2015
as customers’ requirements. Our manufacturing IATF 16949 : 2016 E TR ZRF B
facility, Ka Shui Technology, was accredited to 1SO HHRMEREEENS S -

9001:2015 and IATF 16949:2016 Quality
Management System, demonstrating our
commitments to product quality control.

FREARILLE PR RS

Group Quality Policy & B & & B

e Provision of adequate training to our employees
RETRHEFTEHFI

e Advance planning to prevent occurrence of quality matters
TR A ETEI AR 1E o B R R A A

e Good relationship with our customers and suppliers
B A R PR B R AT R AR

e Continuous improvement on customer satisfaction

TEREEFREE
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We monitor the entire production cycle, from
incoming raw materials to final products, to ensure
our products meet our quality standards and
customers’ expectations systematically. Additionally,
Ka Shui has passed various audits required by
customers, such as Responsible Business Alliance
(“RBA”), IWAY, Sedex Members Ethical Trade Audit,
UL Social Responsibility Audit. Corrective and
preventive procedures are in place to handle any
product non-conformity to our quality standards. All
of our employees are devoted to working according
to their job responsibilities defined in the Group
Quality Policy and do the best to satisfy our
customers. We are also committed to providing
accurate and complete information about our
products and services, marketing, advertising and
labelling to protect the interests of our customers.

We ensure our products do not impose any safety or
health issues by identifying and evaluating risk factors
of our services and products; and thus effectively
controlling those risks. All raw materials and ancillary
products procured should be complied with industrial
and international standards such as the Restriction
on Hazardous Substances Directive (“RoHS”) and the
Registration, Evaluation, Authorization and Restriction
of Chemicals (“REACH”), as well as customers’
requirements. If our products are found to have any
safety or health issues, we will recall the products
immediately and stop the related production. We will
also carry out a comprehensive investigation in order
to avoid similar occurrence in the future.

At the same time, we prevent the disclosure of false
or misleading information in advertisement, financial
and non-financial details by complying with the
relevant national laws and regulations, aiming to
provide genuine information to its customers.
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Drafting Plastic and Die-casting Industry
Standards

Ka Shui Group has been proactively participating in
process of industry standard drafting, aiming to
foster the development of the plastic and die-casting
industries as a whole.

Plastic products including food containers, personal
care products and various medical supplies have
always been anti-bacterial. However, such function is
mainly attained by adding biocides which bring side
effects including environmental pollution, damage to
ecological balance and also possibly superbugs
which are harmful to our health. Therefore, we have
developed an eco-friendly and non-toxic germ-
repellent technology by adding or embedding in
specific germ repellent additives to plastic raw
materials. This largely reduces the adhesion of
bacteria on the plastic surface and hence achieves
germ repellent. Different from biocides, the germ-
repellent agent is designed to reduce the adhesion of
the germs and form bio-membranes on plastic
surface without kiling germs. The germ-repellent
material has brought significant impacts to our daily
life because it is an eco-friendly, anti-bacteria and
non-toxic material.

Although there are standards for evaluating the
effectiveness of germ repelling performance on
surface of the materials with biocides such as ASTM
E2180 and ISO 22196, there is still a lack of
standard to evaluate the germ-repellent performance
on adhering the material surface.
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Therefore, Ka Shui Group has developed a testing
method to evaluate the germ-repellent efficacy on the
surface of germ-repellent plastic products. On the
other hand, Ka Shui Group participated in drafting
the Guangdong Plastics Industry Association
Standard “Testing Method of Germ-repellent
Adhesion Ability for Plastic Products” (T/GDPIA
1-2019), which we were the main unit responsible
for drafting. The testing method in this standard
allows quantitative evaluation of the material’s ability
to repel bacteria adhering on the surface of the
material and realizes the quantitative evaluation of
germ-repellent efficacy for the germ-repellent plastic
products. This standard has been officially
implemented since September 2019.
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During the Reporting Period, the Group was not
aware of any material non-compliance with laws and
regulations relating to health and safety, advertising
and labelling matters of products and services in
Hong Kong and PRC.



74

Business Ethics

Anti-
corruption

HIEEM

Compliance
L3NG

Ka Shui Group adopts a zero-tolerance policy to any
acts of corruption, bribery, extortion, fraud and
money laundering. With the strong commitment of
conducting business ethically and responsibly, all
employees are strictly prohibited from receiving,
directly or indirectly, any form of benefits such as
gifts and money from our business partners, which
are stated clearly in our Group Anti-Corruption Policy
and Staff Handbook.

Whistle-blowing mechanism is also established for
reporting any suspected or actual events of
misconduct and malpractices. Staff and our business
partners are encouraged to report anonymously
through suggestion box, email, QQ or by face-to-
face communication. The identity of the whistle-
blower and the reporting details are kept highly
confidential to protect the whistle-blower from
reprisal. Having received any reporting case, we
promise to handle the issue timely and fairly through
investigation within three working days.
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Fairness
AFAE
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During the Reporting Period, the Group was not
aware of any material non-compliance with laws and
regulations relating to bribery, extortion, fraud and
money laundering in Hong Kong and PRC. There
was no legal case regarding corrupt practices
brought against the Group or our employees.

Customer Satisfaction & Privacy

To build a close customer relationship and loyalty, it
is our fundamental goal to listen to our customer
feedback closely and satisfy their expectations. In line
of our “Customers First” operating principle, we
conduct customer satisfaction surveys regularly to
help us understand how our customers perceive our
products and services. Survey results are then
analysed for continuous improvement. In case of any
dissatisfaction or return of product from customers,
we will investigate the reasons and set up
improvement plans on our production and service.
Constant follow-up procedures are implemented to
prevent recurrence of the same deficiency.

Ka Shui Group attaches great importance to the
protection of confidential data. Strict rules are set up
to ensure proper handling of any confidential
information of clients and the Group. Clear guidelines
and procedures are in place to regulate how to
collect and handle customers’ information. Only
authorised staff can access and handle the
information for operational purposes. We also sign
confidentiality and non-disclosure agreements with
our clients to protect all customers’ confidential
business information and product information.

During the Reporting Period, the Group was not
aware of any material non-compliance with laws and
regulations relating to privacy matters of products
and services in Hong Kong and PRC.
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Sustainable Supply Chain O EHERER

We have been maintaining a long-lasting relationship BM—EREENESRESIERE 1t
with our suppliers as they are an integral part of our THRMEBANBRG —2H - BEEEL
business. In order to deliver high quality products to EmXNTER  HZMB O HERESE
our customers, we strive to convey our CSR values ERMNECELSETEE  UFEERM
along the supply chain to align with our standards HEERER -

and requirements.

When selecting new suppliers, they are required to EHERHENE - AL BZEN M
go through a thorough supplier assessment which R TEEREERmEEBNE
consists of not only criteria linked to product quality, o EFRHCENSETHBENTZ A
but also a wide range of CSR-related aspects. We e RMEEBEEATER:

have the following requirements during procurement:

Product responsibility

i
1]
il
[aY

Labour standards

Occupational health and
safety (“OHS”)

BEREaEze ((BE
fEREZ2])

Suppliers are required to declare that all products supplied to Ka Shui
Group conform to the requirements of REACH and RoHS. If our products
are found to have any safety or health issues, we will recall the products
immediately and stop the related production. We will also carry out a
comprehensive investigation in order to avoid similar occurrence in the
future.

HEBAZHMARETRREENERINA(CEmEM - 71 - KR
RELERBEENERVNER - HERERBERZ2NERRE - &AM
BN B Em RIFIEEBEE - pHN > BFETEERSE - BRAR
BAFELES-

Suppliers are required to commit to no child and forced labour by adding
the labour standard requirements in partnership agreements. It is also one
of the criteria of the selection and evaluation processes. If the suppliers and
subcontractors are found to employ child or forced labour, they are
required to undergo the remedy procedures and make improvement plans.

BFZREEEAARELETREEST  EREBHHET AL TIRE
2R BEERFEAENENZ — - HEREEARDEHERET
KRBT - M PIRETTHRAE I Bl ESE R B

Suppliers are required to sign the Safety Responsibility Agreement to show
their commitments in safeguarding worker’s working conditions. For
example, all workers have to be provided with sufficient protective
equipment and trained before on-boarding.

HEBARELREETHH - ARPBAFPIERE LA TGRS B &G -
fian - FrA T ABARERBNG ERE  LELERTEMRZEFI -
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Environmental protection Suppliers have to sign the Supplier Environmental Agreement to ensure they
understand our CSR policy and are committed to accomplishing our
expectations according to ISO 14001 Environmental Managing System.
Since we strictly follow the RoHS and REACH standards, suppliers are
required to declare that their supplying materials are complying with the
standards, and also to submit testing reports performed by a third-party for
verification of the compliance. For instance, chemical suppliers are required
to submit Material Safety Data Sheet to disclose the health and safety
hazard information of the chemicals and corresponding health and safety
measures. We will request improvement plans in case of discovery of
violation. Ka Shui Group may terminate the business relationship if no
corrective or preventive actions are taken.

RERE HERVAZEHERRE DR  BEOCABBRMANCELSEEREK -
WAGHIERISO 14001 RREERBAERRMNNE - AR B FIBRBEETHE
EMERBI Bl - HE - BERRGINVEELE - R0 AR
HENMBNTABE YRIXAF=ZFTATHARARSE  UREFELEEA
oo il ﬂz%uuf ERARXMHALREBER  UBRBLLERNEREL
2REEEARMBENRERZ 2R - MERER - B ZRKBOER
2 MR BB ERENEE - BinEE AR EXBRE -

Ethical sourcing Apart from managing our suppliers, we also look closely at the ethicality of
our procurement activities. For example, we do not source minerals such as
tantalum, tin, tungsten and gold from those suppliers who perform
extraction and trade in unstable regions affected by armed groups such as
the Democratic Republic of Congo or adjoining countries, which have been
known for perpetrating human right abuses.

BREE REERMANEEHN  RACEINRIRMARBTARTEE TER -0
e BT ERBARIREBERYENTREL R (WRIREEHXME X
MR ARERZOEY (WE - 8 BShES) - ARIFLEEEA
o

Anti-corruption Our business partners and suppliers are required to follow our strict rules
on anti-corruption, which are detailed in our Code of Conduct and Group
Anti-Corruption Policy. We require all suppliers to follow the content stated
in the declaration of integrity; otherwise, they will be blacklisted and may be
subject to legal prosecution.

BPNEBEFLERBEABUERMABRRORBRAA - ZFRFINRNE
PIENTT AT I R R B R B MR R © AT E SR A (8 7 38 <7 1= 2 R Pt Y
AE: BRI AP RIIARZE - WA R BDEREER -
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For existing suppliers, we have developed detailed
policies and procedures to effectively manage the
product quality of our suppliers through the monthly
and annual performance assessments based on
product quality, delivery time, customer complaint (if
any) and other CSR-related aspects.

Innovation & Research

As a pioneer in magnesium, aluminium and zinc
alloys die casting, we are also actively engaged in
research and development (“R&D”). We have an ISO/
IEC17025 accredited R&D laboratory, which is
specialised in research and testing of high
performance nonferrous light alloy. With the
laboratory, authoritative testing services, such as
mechanical testing, photoelectric property testing,
hazardous substances testing, are available to offer
effective technical supports for product quality
control.

Ka Shui Group always work with a number of well-
known universities and research institutions to
conduct researches on new materials and
technology development. These research outcomes
are effectively applied to production processes, and
some of them are even successfully converted into
commodities that contribute to our society. We aim
to foster innovation on the use of materials, products
and technologies, leading to higher energy efficiency
for end products, higher resource utilisation efficiency
in the manufacturing process, and reduced negative
impacts to the environment.
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2020 IMA Awards of Excellence for Process
Collaboratively developed by Ka Shui Group with
General Motors and Xi’an University of Technology,
the “Forged and Flow-formed Magnesium Road
Wheel” project was awarded the “2020 IMA Award of
Excellence for Process” by the International
Magnesium Association. It is reported that the
magnesium road wheel will be available as optional
configuration for Cadillac high-performance models,
and will be launched in North America in 2021
summer.

“IMA Awards of Excellence for Process” aims at
recognising companies with outstanding performance
in using magnesium for different applications.
Compared with the traditional low pressure casting
process, the manufacturing process for this kind of
magnesium alloy wheel, which consists of forging
and flow-forming, can significantly improves the
strength and extension performance of magnesium
alloy, and utilises the new form of corrosion resistant
coating and systematic anti-corrosion design. This
new type of coating of the magnesium road wheel
not only breaks through its insufficient corrosion
resistance in the past but also performs better than
that of the aluminum wheel.

This new coating has used Ka Shui Group’s self-
developed equipment invention patented Micro-arc
Composite Ceramic (“MCC”) Technology. The MCC
Technology is a short flow and non-polluting
environmental surface treatment technology that
prepares micro-arc composite by high-voltage
discharge, and coordinate with different coating
compounds in subsequent processes in order to
meet the requirements of different circumstances.
The technology can deliver superior surface
protection results and fulfi the requirements of
product surface performance under different
environmental conditions. It is also an eco-friendly
surface treatment technology with good corrosion
resistance that can replace passivation and painting
by reducing toxic wastewater and VOC release.
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Asia International Innovative Invention
Award 2020

At the Asia International Innovative Invention Award
2020 organised by the Hong Kong Federation of
Innovative Technologies and Manufacturing
Industries, two projects of the Group were awarded
gold medals: “Metal Liquid Die Casting Cum Forging
Dual Forming Method” and “Fiber Reinforced
Magnesium Alloy Luggage Case and its
Manufacturing Method”.

Ka Shui Group’s patented technology — “Metal
Liquid Die Casting Cum Forging Dual Forming
Method” significantly enhances the tensile strength,
elongation, and density of product compared with
traditional die casting, and also substantially
minimised shrinkage and porosity of product. This
technology is suitable for producing complex
mechanical parts of motorcycles, automobiles,
mechanical equipment and other parts with high
precision and high strength requirements.

“Fiber Reinforced Magnesium Alloy Luggage Case
and its Manufacturing Method” is made of the new
magnesium-carbon fiber composite reinforced sheet
developed by Ka Shui Group. This luggage case has
various benefits including lightweight, durable, high
scratch resistance, high impact resistance and high
strength etc.
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In addition, we understand the importance of
intellectual property (“IP”) (trademarks, patents,
technologies and copyrights etc.) to business.
Therefore, we strictly adhere to our confidentiality
policy, by clearly specifying the policy in our Staff
Handbook and the employment contract. We have
set up strict working procedures for our staff to
follow when handling confidential and sensitive
information. Adequate training on IP right protection
is also organised for all employees to strictly follow
all the rules and regulations, striving to best protect
the Group and our customers’ interests. Apart from
protecting our own rights, we also value and respect
the rights of other personnel and parties. We will not
use third party’s IP in our business without prior
authorisation.

In the future, Ka Shui Group will continue to devote
on R&D and promote green production technology
with a view to pursuing the excellence of technology
as well as environment protection.

A RESPONSIBLE EMPLOYER

With our people-oriented human resource
management philosophy, the Group is committed to
offering an inclusive, rewarding and supportive
working environment to our employees to attract and
retain our talents. We also strive to provide various
learning and career development opportunities so that
our employees can develop their skillsets and grow
with us.
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Responsible Employment

Our employees are offered with competitive
remuneration packages, which are in line with
national regulations and also other international
standards including SA8000 Social Accountability
International Standard and RBA code of conduct. We
have a set of comprehensive policies in place to
provide guidance for management of our human
resources to ensure our people are remunerated with
competitive wages, fixed working hours,
comprehensive insurance coverage and mandatory
provident fund. In addition to statutory holidays and
annual leaves, all employees are entitled to paid
leaves such as maternity leave, paternity leave, sick
leave, work injury leave, marriage leave and funeral
leave according to the law and regulations of local
area.

At Ka Shui Group, deduction of wages as a means
of disciplinary action is prohibited. Instead, we
provide incentives to employees with outstanding
achievements and performances to recognise their
efforts throughout the year. Employees with excellent
performance will be rewarded by the “Excellent Staff
Award” based on their efforts on showing
responsible attitude, maintaining high level of ethics,
getting along well in a team or demonstrating other
outstanding abilities.

During the Reporting Period, the Group was not
aware of any material non-compliance with laws and
regulations relating to compensation and dismissal,
recruitment and promotion, working hours, rest
periods, and other benefits and welfare in Hong
Kong and PRC.
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Equal Opportunity

We treat our staff with fairness and open-
mindedness and thus we are committed to creating
an equal and harassment-free working environment.
In all employment matters including the process of
recruitment, transfer, promotion, dismissal and
training, we make decisions solely based on
objective factors such as performance, qualifications,
technical capability, experience and merits. We
strictly prohibit any discrimination against the
employees or job candidates on the ground of
gender, age, ethnicity, disability, pregnancy and
sexual orientation or other unrelated matters in
respect of job duties. In addition, female employees
will not be dismissed and their wages will not be
deducted due to pregnancy, maternity, breastfeeding
etc.

We respect diversity and freedom of association, and
we prohibit any forms of discrimination, harassment,
and victimisation at the workplace. At the same time,
to build unity and mutual trust, we operate an
anonymous whistle-blowing system to encourage the
reporting of misconduct while respecting the privacy
of the whistle-blowers.

During the Reporting Period, the Group was not
aware of any material non-compliance with laws and
regulations relating to equal opportunity, diversity,
and anti-discrimination in Hong Kong and PRC.

Labour Standard

Ka Shui Group highly respect and protect human
rights. We do not allow any employment of child and
forced labour in our workplace. We validate the
identity, academic qualifications and job reference
proof of the new hirers to make sure their work
eligibility for the related job positions. All the
employees voluntarily sign the labour contract with
the Group prior to the employment, and are able to
leave their current positions with written notice under
required notice period.
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If any child labour is found at Ka Shui Group,
remedy procedures will be implemented by sending
the children back home, followed by providing
medical health check and sufficient living expenses
until they are 16 years old. We aim to offer as much
assistance as possible and alleviate potential negative
impacts on them. For juvenile workers who are under
the age of 18, they are not allowed to engage in
certain positions with potential safety and health
hazards. We will register with the local labour
authority and provide physical health examinations
before on board. In addition, we also ensure our staff
work consensually, and are free from any forced
labour in the workplace.

During the Reporting Period, the Group was not
aware of any material non-compliance with laws and
regulations relating to preventing child and forced
labour.

Training & Development

In order to keep pace with the fast-changing
business environment and sophisticated technical
development, Ka Shui Group attaches great
importance to staff training and career development.
To strengthen the professional capabilities and
growth of our employees and retain the high-calibre
talents, we provide a series of internal training
programmes and encourage them to participate in
external training opportunities.

e Company overview
YNGIL

e Staff responsibilities and obligations
BIBERER

e Ka Shui Group’s requirements on environmental

protection, health and safety, product quality
etc.

EinEEHRERE #REALZE EmEES
B &Sk
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e Personal competencies
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e Management skills
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To systemically organise our training activities and
promote corporate culture exchange, we have set up
the Ka Shui Enterprise Academy in 2015. The
academy collects the training demands from each
department and formulates an annual training plan.
Through lectures and relationship-building activities,
our people at different job positions and levels have
chances to nurture our rich corporate culture and
develop in both personal and professional domains.
Training records are well kept and feedback is
collected for continuous improvement and future
planning.

Identify training Arrange training
needs activities

B ARE RHIEHIE

Provide coaching

and supervision

REZUNREE
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Follow up training
effectivness
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Furthermore, the apprenticeship programme is also in
place to train and develop our technical personnel,
as well as strengthening the sense of belonging
among employees. Experienced mentors are
assigned to help and guide new employees in terms
of job skills, professional ethics, and personal
development.

We have a clear career path to provide employees
guidance on pursuing their career goals. Through
ongoing evaluations and annual performance reviews,
employees’ performance is assessed in an objective
and fair manner to guide every employee’s career
path and enable them to perform to their utmost
potentials. It is also an opportunity for employees to
reflect their opinions to the management so as to
achieve an effective two-way communication.

BESN - At 3R S BIERT B AE DI B R
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Staff training
8 T
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Occupational Health & Safety

Ka Shui Group takes full responsibility to provide a
healthy and safe workplace for our employees by
protecting them from work-related injuries or
accidents. We have set up the health and safety
policy and a safety management system to identify,
control and evaluate OHS risks to ensure employees
are following the safety procedures. A series of work
procedures is formulated to provide guidelines for our
employees to follow while performing specific tasks
involving chemical use and machinery operation.
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Daily safety inspection at

production sites by
our safety team

ZE2NMAELEERSH

AERZERE

Timely action plans in case
of hazard discovery

MBREFRE
A REHETEE

Periodic machinery
safety inspection and
hygiene control

EHNEMZ 2
BEREHEES

Monthly safe production
performance assessment

for each department
ZHMEBALE
4 EENEE

A wide range of safety training programmes are
organised to strengthen employees’ safety
awareness. For example, all new hires would receive
safety induction training on how to encounter
emergencies and the correct ways of using
protective equipment such as safety glasses and
protective gloves. Based on employees’ job natures
and needs, we provide specific training to ensure
their acknowledgment to all the potential hazards and
dangers in workplace, and are competent to perform
their duties safely.

REFAEENZZED  RAERSTEL
2FIIEE - flan - AAEEEEHSEI L
2 APTIISR - E2F ] e B SRR ke
AhETRA(MZE2RELHEFE)HL
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In spite of the above preventive measures, first-aiders
are stationed in our production sites as required by
relevant laws and regulations to provide any
immediate first-aid support. An emergency response
plan is also developed to cope with emergency
situations. Drills for fire and other emergency
situations are periodically conducted and reviewed to
increase staff's safety awareness and response
efficiency in case of emergency events.

During the Reporting Period, the Group was not
aware of any material non-compliance with laws and
regulations relating to providing a safe working
environment and protecting employees from
occupational hazards in Hong Kong and PRC.

In view of the outbreak of COVID-19, the Group has
taken strict hygiene measures in the workplace
including staff temperature check, thorough
disinfection and cleaning, mandatory face mark
wearing, and staff education.

BMEE e LA BB 1E i - RIADRERH
ERERRERSHMEETERMOEE
5 DMRHEIR SRR - R TRNER
=R - B HERESIEFFE - Bifih
EHETTR MEMERIBE RS Mg
MREETINREEINEELEESEN
R R I & o

R|EHE  AEBI TANBEMENE
REFERFPEERZE THERERKRE
BERXBEEEAMIVERIIERBR -

ERNHETRRSRE  ARECELIE
BRERRBRRAEEER BRAEET
Bih - BERHESIAR - RHIME DS RH
> =

Compulsory body temperature
check at entrance

A O 58 iR & B8R
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Employee Relationship

We value the relationship with our employees and
strive to establish an ongoing dialogue to understand
their needs and opinions. Employees are welcomed
to express their complaints or suggestions through
various communication channels such as the internal
opinion box, meetings, forums and other activities.
We promise to respect their feedback and to handle
them timely and impartially.

Realising the importance of interpersonal
relationships, we encourage our staff to interact with
each other by promoting work-life balance and
strengthening the sense of belonging within the
Group. We have arranged various recreational and
team-building activities to let our staff relax from
work, to recognize their hard work throughout the
year and to allow closer bonding among fellow
colleagues. Our workplace is also equipped with
physical fithess rooms, library, Internet rooms, and
badminton courts to foster a healthy work-life
balance culture.

Chinese New Year lucky draw
(on live)

RIBHF i (5

Table tennis competition

ERREE
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Tug of war competition

BOR LB

Badminton competition

PERLE

RERERLA
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R

3.

B gHERRE (H)

RESPONSIBLE FOR OUR ENVIRONMENT 3. HIREES

Group Environmental Policy 5 EIRIEB %

e Observe all applicable national and local laws and regulations strictly
B8 E T AE BRI R & 77 HER KRR

e Establish, implement and strengthen our environmental management system, as well as setting of goals
for environmental achievements
BY - BRELMBRREERE  UHIEREKRE R

e Introduce cleaner production in steps; striving to conserve resource uses and reduce waste or effluent
BEWITIHEREE  BHBNERNGER KR BE Yk REK

e Provide training and education to promote the idea of sustainable development across the supply chain
REFINEHE  NEREHEESHAIFERRNEDR

e Provide channels for relevant interested parties and the public to get access to our environmental
performance tracking
REBANRET RARATRHEEIRREMRMROERE

Ka Shui Group believes that our long-term business SREEMELE BN EDLBEEERK

growth and success is closely linked to our efforts in
maintaining environment sustainability and resources
protection. We have the Group Environmental Policy
in place, endorsed by our Chief Executive Officer. It
outlines our environmental commitments to minimise
environmental impacts. Aiming to appropriately
identify and manage the environmental risks and
significant environmental aspects with associated
impacts in our operation, we have implemented an
environmental management system, accredited with
the international standard of 1ISO14001:2015.

Ka Shui International Holdings Limited Annual Report 2020
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To ensure strict compliance with all applicable
environmental laws and regulations, we conduct
regular internal and external inspections on
wastewater discharges, air emissions, hazardous
waste disposals and noise generation. All emissions
and discharges are only carried out with valid
permits and licenses. During the Reporting Period,
the Group was not aware of any material non-
compliance with laws and regulations relating to air
and greenhouse gas emissions, discharges into water
and land, generation of waste and use of resources
in Hong Kong and PRC.

Life-cycle analysis

Process
mI

Ka Shui Group places high importance on reducing
the environmental footprints of our products to
create values for our customers and stakeholders. By
taking our product’s life-cycle into consideration and
using the “cradle to grave” approach, we fully
understand the impacts of our products on the
environment during its entire life process, from raw
material input to final disposal. Findings from the life-
cycle analysis enable us to control our footprint in an
integrated manner.

/

RERERETHAEERNREAR A
B BAPIEREKHER - RERHEDN - Bl RE Y
R N REESETEHRR RINERE -
FIEHREEESAMTAERNRT#E
17 - RIMEHE - AEEL FABEMEX
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KR T HE PN - BYWELARERE
RARRERIERBR -

4 &ERS
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* Semi-product ¥ R
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 Noise & &
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In addition, we arrange routine environmental training
to increase our employees’ awareness of
environmental protection and let them understand the
existing environmental policies and related measures
in our operational facilities.

Air & Greenhouse Gas Emissions

The major sources of our air emissions are stationary
machineries, motor vehicles and our manufacturing
processes such as die casting, moulding and
scrapping. While air pollutants are inevitably
produced in our operations, we always endeavour to
minimise the direct environmental impacts from the
our air emissions, by controlling the pollutants
emitted to the environment as well as ensuring the
emission level is in strict compliance with regulatory
emission standards. To reduce the pollutants emitted
to the environment, various air emission reduction
facilities and measures are implemented:
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Air purification system and waste gas treatment system
ZERFERRANERRIE R
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Air emission reduction measures

Install filtering devices for our major air
pollutants, such as volatile organic compound
and particulate matter

Use water polishing machine to polish
magnesium alloy parts so that no dust will be
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generated and all polluted water will be 51 4 1) A
recycled after purification
Regular maintenance and inspection EHEERGE

. Use real-time monitoring system to keep track 55 P B e B4 R 50 2R AE B UK

the emission level

. Maintain exhaust gas control equipment . RIE 4 e 5 /R E BRI B RE R 51 R
regularly according to the maintenance
instructions

° Appoint third parties to conduct annual air o

BREF - IEFETE=RMmEEN
=
==]

quality testing to ensure air pollutants are VAR 22 505 R 0 i & 2 4% R

controlled properly and the level of emissions IKFETBBRE
does not exceed the threshold limit
Company vehicle management AT HRER

. Inspect company vehicles annually to control . FFeENRBRHUIEHTEMNER
exhaust from motor vehicles BERR
. Turn off vehicle engines when they are idling . B E) e 2o 8E 0 E A B
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During the Reporting Period, the Group’s total air RmEHE  NEENEESSREAN

emissions generated from production activities, fixed BREHNE BEENHERERBHMN

fuel usage and vehicle fuel usage were as follows: RHERAEWT :

| Air Emission' Jl#EA | umemm | 2020
Nitrogen oxides & &1t %) kg AT 753.37
Sulphur oxides #E&1t4 kg AT 1.71
Particulate matter B4 kg AT 5,179.81
Benzene & kg AT 0.19
Toluene and xylene 2K [z — B R kg AT 232.61
Volatile organic compound &3 14 A #L & ¥ kg AT 3,750.31
Chromic acid mist % 75 kg AT 0.04
Sulfuric acid mist i B % kg AT 5.70
Sulphur dioxide — & {tHi kg AT 78.53
Soot /& kg AT 109.80
Non-methane hydrocarbons 3EFR iZfR &1L & ¥ kg AT 1,191.46
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Greenhouse gas (‘GHG”) is emitted during our
operation by the use of energy resources. In view of
global warming and climate change, we strive to
reduce our GHG emissions by conserving our energy
and resources, which will be detailed in the later
section of this report. To understand our
performance and manage our carbon footprint, we
continue to conduct a GHG emission assessment
this year. The Group’s GHG emissions are mainly
contributed by use of purchased electricity, fuels and
refrigerant. During the Reporting Period, the Group’s
total GHG emission was 38,688.23 tCO,e, with an
intensity of 56.17 tCO,e per milion pieces of
product. We will continue to focus on how to lower
the carbon footprint from our operations.

Greenhouse Gas Emission &= 5 B2 HE I
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L uneEE | 2020

Scope 1 — Direct GHG emissions® tCO,e 2,280.48
HE— — EEREREBHRC AW SR E S
Scope 2 — Energy indirect GHG emissions* tCO,e 36,407.75
HE_— — RRARRERBIMR AW SR E S
Total GHG emissions tCO,e 38,688.23
mMEREBHRAR N kR =
GHG Intensity tCO,e/million pieces of product 56.17

RERBHREE

NM-EtREE BEMER

! The air emission generated by the use of company vehicles
is disclosed based on available data only. We will continue
to strengthen our data collection methodology.

2 The carbon assessment is conducted based on the “How to
prepare an ESG Report — Appendix 2: Reporting Guidance
on Environmental KPIs” published by HKEx and international
standards such as ISO 14064 and GHG Protocol.

8 Scope 1 represents direct GHG emissions generated by the
use of refrigerant and fuels for stationary and mobile
sources.

4 Scope 2 represents energy indirect GHG emissions generated

by the use of electricity.

! ERAREWMMELNREINEERERS
B BRIR 1 A ER o TR AP S A AE 0 9 F AP A R
WEETE »
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Waste Management

BEmEE

Waste
segregation
REYI 4R

Non-hazardous
Hazardous waste

waste

BEED

General
industrial and
domestic waste
—MRITER
RAED

Valuable waste

BEERED

Ka Shui Group recognises the importance of waste
reduction at source and hence requires all
departments to purchase accurate amount of raw
materials to avoid over-ordering and resulting in
wastage due to materials deterioration and damage.
We also reduce our material consumption by
improving the efficiency of the production process in
order to cut raw material inputs and minimise
product failures.

Waste separation is the key approach in our waste
management as it helps facilitate proper waste
handling and divert useful materials from landfills. All
waste is first separated into two main types,

hazardous waste and non-hazardous waste, as they

require different strategies on collection, storage,
transferal and disposal. In the meantime, Ka Shui
Enterprise Academy organises regular training
sessions on waste handling to ensure all employees
are familiar with the waste separation practices.

Ka Shui International Holdings Limited Annual Report 2020
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We are fully aware of the potential impacts that
hazardous waste, such as waste oil residue, paint,
sludge, chemicals and their containers, could bring to
the environment as well as the safety of the public.
In compliance with local laws and regulations, all
hazardous waste is sorted by category to avoid
mixing up with other incompatible waste, stored in
designated collection points, and then consigned to
licensed professional waste collectors. Proper
chemical labels are attached on the containers for
waste identification and safety caution. Each
department logs its monthly generation records, for
effective management control and continuous
improvement planning. A contingency plan is also
established to cope with emergency circumstances
such as chemical leakage, fire, explosion or other
accidents that may occur when handling hazardous
waste.

For non-hazardous waste that has residual value,
such as metals from the leftover in production, we
will recycle back into the production cycle. For non-
hazardous waste, such as domestic waste, which
inevitably ends up with being disposed of, which is
the least preferable option, will only be handled by
qualified collectors. We require our collectors to
comply with our environmental and safety agreement,
to avoid inflicting potential harms to the environment
and our staff.
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During the Reporting Period, the Group disposed of
a total of 514.81 tonnes of hazardous waste and
77.36 tonnes of non-hazardous waste:

RBEHM ASEEXEES514812ME
EREYRTT.36 AN mEREY)

Waste Generation EE¥IE & Unit EE{I 2020

Hazardous waste HXEEW
Chemical waste £ gE £} tonnes A M 412.08
Other H b tonnes A M 102.73

Total 45 tonnes A M 514.81
Intensity = tonnes/million pieces of product 0.75
AW BB HER

Non-hazardous waste fE=EEEY)

Domestic waste & FEE¥) tonnes A 77.36
Total 485t tonnes A M 77.36
Intensity % € tonnes/million pieces of product 0.11

AW HBHE MR
Responsible Use of Resources BEEEEEMA

Reducing our consumption of resources, such as
energy, water, and materials, not only conserves the
environment, but also lowers our operation cost and
creates values to our stakeholders. To effectively
manage our use of resources, we have set up the
“Energy and Resource Consumption Control
Procedure”, which clearly outlines the responsibility of
each department on managing each resource type.
Through the metering system at our production sites,
we can understand our consumption patterns and
identify areas for further improvement.
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Energy Consumption

The Group’s major types of energy consumed are
purchased electricity, natural gas for stationary
machineries, as well as gasoline and diesel oil for
vehicles. We are committed to utilising energy
efficiently and thus reducing corresponding
greenhouse gas emissions. In addition to monitoring,
we strive to reduce energy consumption as much as
possible and enhance energy efficiency by improving
our production processes and ensuring our operation
machineries are always in good conditions. The
followings are some energy-saving initiatives
adopted:

° Purchase machineries and electrical appliances
which are certified with energy-saving labels
through green procurement practices

° Raise employees’ awareness of energy
conservation by placing reminders around the
workplace such as switching off electrical
equipment (e.g. computers, printers, and
shredders) when not in use

° Conduct regular vehicle maintenance and
annual inspection to ensure they are always
operating in good condition to increase fuel
efficiency

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)
RG> #SHERRE (H)

During the Reporting Period, a total of 58,205.13 M BB FEBE IR 4 23%58,205.13 K L
MWh of energy was consumed, with an intensity of NN BEATAEBUEMO.O7TIKE /N -

0.07 MWh per million pieces of product.

Total energy consumption REJREFERE MWh JEFL/)NBy 58,205.13
Total energy intensity BERZE B = MWh/million pieces of product 0.07
KE/NEBEHED
Direct energy consumption & £ 8E/E H#E MWh JKE /) EF 12,876.59
— Natural gas XA &, MWh JK /)N 11,771.44
— Gasoline /7 MWh JK FL /N 502.11
— Diesel oil 4t MWh JEEL /N 558.24
— Liquefied petroleum gas &1t A H & MWh JEE /)Ny 44.80
Indirect energy consumption B4 855 JH & MWh JE 5 /)N B 45,328.54
— Purchased electricity 2B EHE 7 MWh JE EL /)N 45,328.54
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)
RiE - HEHERRE(H)

Water Resources KER

We are committed to conserving our water resources BB AOE4KER AT EERE
by using it responsibly and efficiently. Our daily water AXKER - HMOBEEKEREIERRE
consumption is mainly due to production processes ERREREFRK BTHRARE#HT A
and domestic use. To maximise water utilization, IKER - RPIEEERKER @ WRDEE
water is reused as much as possible to reduce the BIRATERMARK BN RAKNEBEBRRE
amount of freshwater usage in our production. T HI B R /KR HE LABH (VR K - TN
Water-saving initiatives include regularly inspecting IKBESEMT AT B FED A BKMAZE S 0 IREETL
water facilities to prevent water leakage and placing )8 TENAER/KER - RIREHIR -
water-saving signs next to water taps to remind our B APIFEERAS 7K 7 T I 4 IR RE o

staff of conserving water resources. During the
Reporting Period, there was no issue in sourcing

water.
Water Use F% | untmm [ 2020
Freshwater %7K | m?2 3 J5 K | 256,106
Intensity 2/ m3/million pieces of product 371.82
MK BEHEMR
Our major effluents include industrial and domestic BN TEEKBERE BT R(EEM
wastewater from canteen, toilet and septic tanks. We T EREKEEFRENK - RPB BB
strive to discharge minimum amount of wastewater in e R TERERBZE RS EEBEF
our production through technological innovations and BERHIREIK & © AN - BRI A KRERS
process modifications. We also have a large-scale KEERBRABRG  URBRELS
polluted water treatment and recycling system, as IKESRIR SR - AR S I5/KAVEE BB B K ©

well as a real-time online polluted water monitoring
system, to improve the polluted water overall recycle
rate.
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To ensure the quality of wastewater discharged
complies with national and local standards, relevant
discharge permits are obtained. All discharge
activities are monitored by the implementation of the
Water Pollution Control Procedure. Chemicals and
oils are also kept away from the inlet of water pipes
to prevent contamination of water bodies.

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)
RG> #SHERRE (H)

RERENEKRENAEERRE D
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HNOSRAEHIREFF - PRABIUE B REIE -
LB mEm TN ZEBKEAD PSR

IKEE ©

Efluent A _ untEG | 2020

Wastewater 7K |
Intensity €

e 3777 3K |
m3/million pieces of product
MK/ BEBUER

84,016.92
121.98

Wastewater treatment systems and grey water recycling system
RE/K R 3R Rt S K [El A & 4%

Use of Materials

We aim to use sustainable materials which bring less
harm to the environment and human throughout the
entire product life cycle. Therefore, we carefully
select our raw materials in compliance with
international standards, including RoHS and REACH
to govern the use of the regulated hazardous
substances and chemicals in production. In addition,
we also follow the Forest Stewardship Council
standard as requested by our clients to ensure the
wooden materials are sustainably sourced.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)
RiE - HEHERRE(H)

Plastic, magnesium alloy, aluminium alloy, and zinc BR - HET  WmEEABEESARMEE
alloy are the major types of raw materials consumed BREHEENEERERMAEE - ZMBABIRE
during our manufacturing processes. Through AEESE  BLEEBRE  MESRME
upgrading manufacture equipment, optimising the A - B EREMER - LARETLEERR
production process, offering training to our BErE - LWIEEHIREER D TERERM
employees, recycling scrapped products, and better WML RMEHERE - RREERE - A&
strategic planning to control and minimise the B HHFE4,585. 40 AR K - BmEAETR
occurrence of unqualified products, we are able to BIEEM6.66 AN - SIS

lower our raw material usage. During the Reporting
Period, the Group consumed a total of 4,585.40
tonnes of raw materials, with an intensity of 6.66
tonnes per million pieces of product and details are

as follows:
| Raw Material Fiité | unt#@ | 2020
Plastic %82 tonnes A MR 1,354.60
Magnesium alloy %4 & tonnes ‘A 2,259.33
Aluminium alloy 24 & tonnes AW 816.84
Zine alloy & & tonnes ‘A 154.63
Total 485t tonnes XM 4,585.40
Intensity % € tonnes/million pieces of product 6.66
R AENED
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)
RG> #SHERRE (H)

Packaging materials are also used for product BEMBEEAREHERREESD UM
containment and protection in order to deliver BN EPRNEENER - FRANBE
excellent products to our customers. Major types of MR EEFEEERE - BB - B KK -
packaging materials used are carton box, plastic, R¥EMRE - NEEHEFE158.57AMER
sticker and wood. During the Reporting Period, the £ ZHEATAHEEMHERO2IAN - BEM
Group consumed a total of 158.57 tonnes of PO T

packaging, with an intensity of 0.23 tonnes per
million pieces of product. The amount of packaging
materials consumed is summarised as follows:

Packaging Material & 5:#1£} L uneBE | 2020

Carton box #%#8 tonnes A M 101.16
Plastic 222 tonnes AW 6.16
Sticker B4 tonnes A M 0.55
Other EAfth tonnes A M 12.23
Wood 7R## tonnes A MA 38.47
Total 485t tonnes A ME 158.57
Intensity % % tonnes/million pieces of product 0.23
N BEHER
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Green Office

While our operations in offices do not pose
significant emissions and pollution impacts to the
environment, certain amount of resources such as
paper, stationary and electricity are unavoidably
consumed. The Group believes that behaviour
change and consistent actions over time can
minimise our corporate environmental footprint. We
have implemented the following green office initiatives
to promote a “green office” culture at our workplace:

° Advocate the concept of a “paperless office” to
encourage our employees to make full use of
e-communication channels such as the intranet
in order to use paper as least as possible

° Encourage double-sided printing and reuse
single-sided paper

° Maintain the room temperature at 25°C

° Practice green procurement such as opting for
refillable ball pens, recyclable paper for printing
purpose and energy-efficient appliances

During the Reporting Period, a total of 15.54 tonnes
of paper was consumed, with an intensity of 0.02
tonnes per million pieces of product.

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)
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Minimising Environmental Impacts

During our manufacturing processes, noise is
inevitably generated from machineries such as
generators and compressors. With an aim to reduce
the noise level and nuisance to the surroundings,
high-efficient machineries are opted to reduce the
operation time. Regular maintenance is performed to
ensure the equipment is in good condition. If
necessary, sound insulation or absorption controls
are implemented to further reduce the noise level. We
are also committed to strictly adhering to noise level
standards according to the relevant laws and
regulations by carrying out regular inspections.

Apart from instilling the culture of environmental
responsibility within Ka Shui Group, we strive to step
forward to exert influences on and raise awareness of
other parties associated with Ka Shui Group. Related
parties, including transportation providers, waste
collectors, raw material suppliers, chemical suppliers,
and canteen operators, are all required to comply
with our “Environmental Requirements of Related
Party”. For examples, raw material suppliers are
required to use recyclable packaging as far as
possible and waste collectors are required to obtain
relevant permits and qualifications. In case of
violation, Ka Shui Group will follow the issues
seriously and may terminate the business relationship
if there are no improvements.

Annual Report 2020
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By making use of our competency and knowledge,
we aim to make positive contributions to the
community where we live and work in. In line with
our CSR Statement, we focus on (i) supporting local
education projects for youth development; (ii)
collaborating with local charities on poverty and
disaster relief initiatives; and (i) participating in
environmental conservation activities, to give back to
the community. We encourage our employees to
participate actively in different charitable and
voluntary activities as well. Ka Shui Group has also
established a volunteer team which arranges activities
continuously. Looking ahead, we will continue to look
for opportunities where we can leverage our
expertise in the society.

Volunteer service activities

HFEE RS E S
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
B L BET

29th Floor, Lee Garden Two, 28 Yun Ping Road
Causeway Bay, Hong Kong

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
KA SHUI INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
Ka Shui International Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and
its subsidiaries (the “Group”) set out on pages 116 to 263,
which comprise the consolidated statement of financial
position as at 31 December 2020, and the consolidated
statement of profit or loss, consolidated statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income, consolidated
statement of changes in equity and consolidated statement
of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the
consolidated financial statements, including a summary of
significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of
the Group as at 31 December 2020, and of its
consolidated financial performance and its consolidated
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”)
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (the “HKICPA”) and have been properly
prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (CONTINUED)

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSASs”) issued by the HKICPA.
Our responsibilities under those standards are further
described in the Auditor’'s Responsibilities for the Audit of
the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our
report. We are independent of the Group in accordance
with the HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our
professional judgment, were of most significance in our
audit of the consolidated financial statements of the
current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the consolidated financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion
thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on
these matters. The key audit matters we identified are:

1. Fair value measurement of lands

2. Allowance for inventories

B BAD R ()
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

Key Audit Matter
FREZEIR

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (CONTINUED)
B % B R ()

BEEEZSEE (E)

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
BMESEZPHAREESENEERR

Fair value measurement of lands

LHATENE

Refer to notes 5(e), 7 and 20 to the consolidated
financial statements.
2GR M BMEMTSE)  7X20-°

The Group measures its lands at fair value using
a market approach. The valuation is a level 3 fair
value measurement as it involves adjustments to
market comparables to reflect the particular
characteristics of the land, including location and
plot sizes, which are based on unobservable
inputs that are subjective. The value of land is
sensitive to these inputs. In order to determine
an appropriate fair value of the land, the Group
appointed an independent professional valuer to
perform the assessment.

ESEEAMSE RATEAEE LM - HE
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LR ERETHE  URE AR ET 8
B RER/N - TAEFBEAABEEN2ER
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Qur procedures in relation to the fair value
measurement of lands included:

B LA FEMNEETNRT B

— Evaluating the independent external valuer’s
competence, capabilities and objectivity and
obtaining an understanding of the independent
external valuer’s scope of work and terms of
engagement;

BN A EREER B REEME - A
KT fRIB LMD B R ) T VR85 [ S BE A AR

—  Assessing the valuation methodologies used and
the appropriateness of the key assumptions and
comparables;
AHEFTAMESEUAREERRERAZLRER

=] L .
EERE

— Checking the accuracy of the observable inputs;
BEAEBR2METHER

— Reviewing the appropriateness of those
adjustments which were based on unobservable
inputs; and

BB TABR2BMERARRSRE + &

i3

—  Assessing the adequacy of the disclosures in
respect of the fair value of lands.

AL AP ERERERT RS -



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (CONTINUED)

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

Key Audit Matter
FAREZEIR

B % BT R ()

EEEZSE (E)

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
BMESEZPHAREESENEERSR

Allowance for inventories

FERE

Refer to notes 5(a) and 26 to the consolidated
financial statements.

2B A M IERERMI 5@ K226 °

At the end of the reporting period, the Group
identifies obsolete and slow-moving inventories
items that are not probable for use in future
production or to be sold out. It also identifies any
other inventories with net realisable value below
cost. The identification is based on forecasts of
customers’ future orders and future market
conditions, and involves subjective estimation.
The allowance has impact on the carrying
amount of inventories and the profit or loss for
the year.

RImER BESEHNTAREAERKREEL
EHMBRFHTEER - RIFHEN AT EIRF
BEERKANEEEMES o Zi#nl 2 AT
PARRETERAKRTIGRABER WP RFER
hEt - FRAREHFAFERAERESBEFE -

Our procedures in relation to the allowance for
inventories included:

B EEREETNRREFERE

— Reviewing inventory ageing analysis to identify
obsolete or slow-moving inventories;

BERFEEREKEON  BRBRIFHEFTE

—  Testing the accuracy of inventory ageing list by
reviewing the date of purchase;

BEEMBERY - MBI FERKRIIRNERNE

—  Testing whether the net realisable value of major
items of inventories exceeded cost by reviewing
sales after the reporting date;
EHRSAPROEE  AATEFEEENA
BRFEEESNEAR

— Reviewing the appropriateness of the allowance
for inventories by reference to information about
subsequent sales or usage; and
DEERERHEIGCANER  BHFERE

=] L .
=hRE K

— Checking the historical accuracy of inventory
provisioning and the level of inventories write-offs
during the year.
REBEFERENERLERFATEMHANIK
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (CONTINUED)

B % B R ()

OTHER INFORMATION

The directors are responsible for the Other Information.
The Other Information comprises all of the information
included in the 2020 annual report of the Company other
than the consolidated financial statements and our
auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does
not cover the Other Information and we do not express
any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the Other
Information and, in doing so, consider whether the Other
Information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated
financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the
audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude
that there is a material misstatement of this Other
Information, we are required to report that fact. We have
nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair
view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA
and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the
directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the
directors are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable,
matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless the directors either
intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or
have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Audit Committee assists the directors in discharging

their responsibilities for overseeing the Group’s financial
reporting process.

Annual Report 2020
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (CONTINUED)

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our
opinion. We report our opinion solely to you, as a body,
and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is
not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error
and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence
the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we
exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

° Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement
of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit
procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud
is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud
may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

° Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant
to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

° Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by the
directors.

B % BT R ()

BB ERRS M B RRAENER

BN ER  THERGSUBHRRESTHE
AR FE SRR T B A (E R E A RRAEF
BERE THASREMERNZBEIRS
HFER BET(FREBE)BERMNER - IR
S Z INRERE B EE AL B &Y o RATERARE
AR EEREMALTE FSEEEREE -

BERBFRSKFHORE  BETRREBR(GER
B EADETHNBER TIFRREERMATED
BEARE R o 53R BRM AT LA By B FF 588 3R 5
o mRAEBEHEMENSELLERAETE
ARA MR EMEPTELMEERE - BIAT
BEEREERRERAL -

ERB(ERBRTENDETEZNBERES - TMA
ERTERAE RS T EREEEE - BRI

o BAIMIEARRFFHERMEREEE
BHREAFEEAERRANVER Rtk
HITEREFABREELRAR A RER
FRREMNEENBZER (EARMERN
Hit - ARNIGFRIRES R BR - Rk BE
BIR - BRI - SORERARRES - Bt
REBBRARFMEFNERERRAW
JeR\ e bt B[R] 6 5% T 28 B A BB K B8 AR PR AL )
Rk S e

o  THEEZMEBOARMZEH  URFEE
BRI BEMAYE BREANIHES
MARMEERER -

o HEEFFRARIEROREERER
BEH A A RE AR AT -

113



114

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (CONTINUED)

B &% B R ()

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

° Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use
of the going concern basis of accounting and, based
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that
may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a
material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor’'s report to the related
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may
cause the Group to cease to continue as a going
concern.

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and
content of the consolidated financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the
consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

° Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding
the financial information of the entities or business
activities within the Group to express an opinion on
the consolidated financial statements. We are
responsible for the direction, supervision and
performance of the group audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our
audit.

Annual Report 2020

TZ;%?ZEME%*%@%EM%%&%E@%E’J:%E

o

s HEERAKBLEGHERNBE LS
higm - RIFMENNEZEE  REEE
FEEEHRBEREBOEATEEE
mAlkes EEERBELENENBRE
RELE - MREMRBREFEERTHEEN -
AIF M REZBENRE T REMERE YR
EMBHRERTOEEREENNET - &
EEBNREENTR  RERBMNE
R-BfinasmeERN8Ex8mmEE A
LIEFrERIS BB © AT - RREMHB

MAREEH BEEETREERELE -

s HESAMBHRRNEBIRLIA BB
MAR - BREEEEN  ARGEEMBHRE
EAAARBBERRZMEE -

e 3 EXRERSERIEBIINUBE
HESTREENEZERE  URKEH
BHREABRAER - BZMIARES BEENH
TRENEZ T  ZMAASKMANEZ
BRAEZHEE -

BPEEZZEQRRT (AR EE) EXtal#
ELERETBEAREREBZER  BRAMESE
Z AR BRI B A BB S R B RERK -



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (CONTINUED)

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement
that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements
regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be
thought to bear on our independence, and where
applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards
applied.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee,
we determine those matters that were of most significance
in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the
current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We
describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or
when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that
a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would
reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest
benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this
independent auditor’s report is Ms. Liu Fung Vi.

RSM Hong Kong

Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

29 March 2021
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

REE#ER

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HZ=—T-_TF+_A=+—HBILFE

2020 2019
—E-FF —E-NF
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
B it FiEiT FET
Revenue [N 8 1,469,237 1,554,364
Cost of sales 5B B (1,021,934) (1,127,693)
Gross profit EH 447,303 426,671
Other income H A A 9 25,155 31,484
Impairment losses on trade B 5 BB R EEE
receivables (236) (117)
Selling and distribution expenses HERDHEAX (27,119) (29,990)
General and administrative expenses — % & T X (273,495) (278,318)
Other operating expenses and income E fth &8 f 3% WA 11 (10,205) (36,053)
Profit from operations B 161,403 113,677
Finance costs BhE A AN 12 (6,840) (11,536)
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary HEMB AW 39(b) 9 —
Gain on disposal of associates BB A E) s 23 350 —
Share of losses of associates i Sk NGRS 23 (872) (810)
Profit before tax B %5t i i F) 154,050 101,331
Income tax expense Fri5 T 13 (31,295) (14,569)
Profit for the year FERiEF 14 122,755 86,762
Attributable to: LT AT FEG R :
Owners of the Company KARERFAA 123,991 88,705
Non-controlling interests IEERERS (1,236) (1,943)
122,755 86,762
HK Cents HK Cents
A JE
Earnings per share SkEA 18
Basic BSSVIN 13.87 9.92
Diluted e N/AFE A N/AA 38 A

Ka Shui International Holdings Limited Annual Report 2020



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
GEeEBRHEMEE KSR

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE—_ZE-_ZF+-_A=+—HIFE

2020 2019
—T-EE —T-NF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHET
Profit for the year FE Rt 122,755 86,762
Other comprehensive income: Hib 2 EU2S -
Items that will not be reclassified to BT EE PR B o HE -
profit or loss:
Surplus on revaluation of leasehold HELHEBEEH AEH
lands 15,080 11,279
Income tax on items that will not be T @ EFHIEZIBHR B Z
reclassified to profit or loss Frig it 11,491 (3,714)
26,571 7,565
Items that may be reclassified to B 7 EEEm ZHE -
profit or 0ss:
Exchange differences on translating REBINEBEECELEZRE
foreign operations 48,840 (12,953)
Other comprehensive income for ERRHHELMBEZEKZE
the year, net of tax 75,411 (5,388)
Total comprehensive income FRE2EWEEE
for the year 198,166 81,374
Attributable to: LT AT FEG#EDR :
Owners of the Company RARE=FBA 198,212 83,616
Non-controlling interests FEIE IR HE 2 (46) (2,242)
198,166 81,374

“E_EFEFR

ERERERERAF
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

FeMBRRE

At 31 December 2020 R=Z=_TF+=-A=+—H

2020 2019
—E-EF —E-NF
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
it FETT FET
Non-current assets ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment VI - e R 19 519,816 504,054
Right-of-use assets EREEE 20 248,214 224,525
Club membership gMgs 21 718 718
Investments in associates REtE R Na 28 E 23 8,691 8,953
Financial assets at fair value through IR A F(EF AEM2E
other comprehensive income Wz emEE
(“FVTOCI") 24 - —
Deposits paid for acquisition of TENEEWE  #RR
property, plant and equipment BlCPaisn 18,464 7,894
Deferred tax assets REFIBE E 34 121 149
796,024 746,293
Current assets MENEE
Inventories rE 26 180,666 215,957
Right of return assets RO AEZER 90 111
Trade and bills receivables B 5 REEERGIA 27 394,276 340,524
Contract assets EHNEE 28 12,598 17,731
Prepayments, deposits and other TEMFRIE - Ze REM
receivables e W E 47,637 47,407
Due from associates JE B 2 R B RO 23 259 16
Current tax assets BIEAR I & &= 6,834 3,260
Restricted bank balances BRHIFEITHER 29 1,975 1,835
Bank and cash balances RITRIR® AR 29 256,686 262,252
901,021 889,093
Current liabilities REBEE
Trade payables RN FRIA 30 189,319 209,014
Contract liabilities EHEE 28 14,031 1,005
Refund liabilities RRAR 240 241
Other payables and accruals H AT RIE R ER
B 30 99,093 82,572
Due to associates JE {5 B 2% R BRI 23 - 1,305
Derivative financial liabilities ETRBE 25 1,341 —
Bank borrowings RITEK 31 106,958 201,532
Lease liabilities HEAR 33 9,033 5,681
Current tax liabilities BVEATRIE & & 13,374 35,807
433,389 537,157

Ka Shui International Holdings Limited Annual Report 2020



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION (CONTINUED)
SEMBRRRGE)

At 31 December 2020 R=E-_TF+=-A=+—H

—=

2020 2019

—E-EBHE —T-NF

Note HK$’000 HK$’000

izt F#ET FET

Net current assets REEEFE 467,632 351,936

Total assets less current liabilities BEEREEIGE 1,263,656 1,098,229
Non-current liabilities E135 8 /8= R

Bank borrowings |ITER 31 46,500 57,514

Lease liabilities HEa®E 33 9,045 5,908

Deferred tax liabilities FIERRIBEE 34 28,803 26,852

84,348 90,274

NET ASSETS BEFE 1,179,308 1,007,955
Capital and reserves BARRMHE

Share capital N 35 89,376 89,376

Reserves Gk 37 1,074,614 903,215

Equity attributable to owners of AXFERFEA

the Company FE{E#ELRE 1,163,990 992,591

Non-controlling interests R 15,318 15,364

TOTAL EQUITY R 4REE 1,179,308 1,007,955

Approved by the Board of Directors on 29 March 2021
and are signed on its behalf by:

Lee Yuen Fat

FEE

Director

EF

REFER _FT_—F=A-t+hB#E AH

NTEERREE

Wong Wing Chuen
"HkE
Director

EF

TECZEFR RHEREZEREARAA
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
GERBRBDR

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE-ZT-_TF+-_A=+—HILFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

FATEBRTABEER

Foreign
currency

Financial
assets at Non-
FVTOCI
reserve

Land

Share Retained Statutory revaluation

capital

Share
premium

Capital controlling

reserve

Merger translation

earnings reserve  reserve  reserve  reserve Total interests

120

RERH

e

#ATH
#ARR
2EhE

B2
HBAE

L

FERER

At 1 January 2019 RZE-nE-A-R 89,376 204,650 551,482 8,701 (9,931) (37,508 58 141721 (8,308 940,257 17,603 957,860
Total comprehensive income FRREREEE

for th year - -85 - - (25 - 155 - BE P2 813
Dividends paid frote 17) BRREMWH) - - 3128 - - - - - - (128 - 3128
Capital contribution from non-controling R & JF iR 2 EARA

interests - - - - - - - - - - 3 3
Changes n equty for the year FREREY - - 57423 - - (12654 - 7,565 - B33 2239 50,005
At 31 December 2019 and RZE-AETZA=+-BR

1 January 2020 “3-%E-f-H 89,376 204,650 608,905 8,701 (9,931)  (50,157) 58 149,292 (8,303) 992,591 15,364 1,007,955
Total comprehensive income for the year M2 ERFEAE - - 123,991 - - 47,650 - %51 - 198,212 (46) 198,166
Disposal of investment in equity instrument HERATFEFAL 2 ANE

at FVTOCI RETERE - - (8,303) - - - - - 8,303 - - -
Transfer to statutory reserve BRETRE - - (2294) - - E X - - - - -
Transfer from capital reserve ZEETER - - 6586  (6,596) - - - - - - - -
Dividends paid (rote 17) BRREWH ) - - (26813) - - - - - - (26813) - (26813)
Changes in equiy for the year EREREY - - 755 (6569 - g0 206 5T 833 171399 (6 171353
At 3t December 2020 R-R-Et=A=t-R BT 20460 681420 2115 (931  [2507) 23004 175863 - 1163990 15318 1,798

Ka Shui International Holdings Limited Annual Report 2020



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #{ Z=F =

EREMRER

T T ) =S FNEEE

2020 2019
—T-EE — N4
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
it FET FHET
NET CASH GENERATED FROM HEXBRRREFHE
OPERATING ACTIVITIES 39(a) 204,827 159,317
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING REFEHZHLKE
ACTIVITIES
Interest received 2B 816 747
Proceeds from disposals of property, HEEE « #eE MR
plant and equipment 567 655
Proceeds from disposal of associates i & B4 A @) 23 350 —
Purchase of property, plant and EEWE BB NEE
equipment (58,099) (43,421)
Payments for right-of-use assets SATE A E IR - (660)
Payments for rental deposits SNHEEZRS A (92) (650)
Repayment from due from REEERREERE B
associates, net TIEFEEE 1,469 —
Deposits paid for the acquisition of — FEfT#7 % - 23 K& 1E
property, plant and equipment ZE® (12,974) (263)
Net cash used in investing BEESFMAZRSE
activities B (67,963) (43,592)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ®IEFEZHLKE
ACTIVITIES
Dividend paid BB (26,813) (31,282)
Capital contribution from non- REFEREZR 2B R
controlling interests ‘A - 3
Short-term bank loans repaid BEREERITER 39(d) (43,557) (25,908)
Repayment to associates EEBE NAFKIE 39(a) (1,917) (1,855)
Receipt from an associate R A RIUER 2 5RIB 39(d) 118 —
Repayment of long-term bank loans Eiﬁﬁﬁﬂfﬂﬁgy’ 39(a) (143,166) (69,748)
Long term bank loans raised L RHRITE R 39(a) 78,639 30,000
Principal elements of lease payments & $$ﬁlﬂﬁﬁm 39(a) (8,093) (3,934)
Net cash used in financing RIEEHREZRSE
activities R (144,789) (102,724)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (CONTINUED)

ez REXR(A)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HEZ=-T-_TF+_A=+—HILFE

2020 2019
bt ek 25 —T-hfF
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
g3 F#T FEr
NET (DECREASE)/INCREASE IN HeRERBEL£EE
CASH AND CASH (B), miEiE
EQUIVALENTS (7,925) 13,001
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS ®R—A—HHRE&R
AT 1 JANUARY ZAKRLIEH 262,252 250,606
Effect of foreign exchange rate EXFHTE
changes 2,359 (1,355)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS W+—-—HA=+—H#
AT 31 DECEMBER HeRERRELEE 256,686 262,252
ANALYSIS OF CASH AND ReRERRLIFER
CASH EQUIVALENTS il
Bank and cash balances RITRBE S E% 29 256,686 262,252

Ka Shui International Holdings Limited Annual Report 2020



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

GENERAL INFORMATION

Ka Shui International Holdings Limited (the
“Company”) was incorporated in the Cayman Islands
as an exempted company with limited liability under
the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands. The
address of its registered office is Clifton House, 75
Fort Street, P.O. Box 1350 GT, George Town, Grand
Cayman, Cayman Islands. The address of its
principal place of business is Room A, 29/F., Tower
B, Billion Centre, 1 Wang Kwong Road, Kowloon
Bay, Kowloon, Hong Kong. The Company’s shares
are listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).

The Company is an investment holding company.
The principal activities of its subsidiaries are set out
in note 22 to the consolidated financial statements.

In the opinion of the directors of the Company, as at
31 December 2020, Precisefull Limited, a company
incorporated in the British Virgin Islands (“BVI”), is the
ultimate parent and Mr. LEE Yuen Fat (“Mr. Lee”) is
the ultimate controlling party of the Company.

BASIS OF PREPARATION

These consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with all applicable Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”)
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (the “HKICPA”). HKFRSs comprise Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRS”); Hong
Kong Accounting Standards (“HKAS”); and
Interpretations. These consolidated financial
statements also comply with the applicable
disclosure provisions of the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the
“Listing Rules”) and with the disclosure requirements
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622).
Significant accounting policies adopted by the Group
are disclosed below.

A MR M

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE—_ZE-_ZF+-_A=+—HIFE

1. QAREHR

R EBRERBR AT ([AAF])RIEFH
ERERRVEARHSHEIMR I REEH
%A RAF o Bt 9t E 5t 26 A Clifton
House, 75 Fort Street, P.O. Box 1350 GT,
George Town, Grand Cayman, Cayman
Islands - EF Z& ¥ B RE B NLENE
ERNEBE—FRERTLBE2IEAT o XA
AROIEBTEBHERX SBR[
Frl) EMR £ -

ARBBREZERAR  EfBARZE
ZEBHIINGRA M BERKRMTE22 -

ARBEERAE N_E_TF+=A
=+—H - Precisefull Limited (—RBRHE
BRUBEEMRL AR BHEFRE]
TRBELEE((ERE]) BRADQR Z RELE
W77 e

2. mRBHXE
hEGARBREDBBER AESS
HE AR ((BEARIMAR ) FEHRES
HREREE([EEHBRE LR F
Bl BEPHREENDERBIHRE
B BEGEN(EBEEN]D R
B W ERAMBRECENER B
X EE LR EmHRA]) 2 HET
BIRESDBIED ($£6228) ZHBEER -
AEBARMD 2 EESHBEEN T XHE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e B R I R ()

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HEZ=-T-_TF+_A=+—HILFE

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continued) 2. mBEEGE)

The HKICPA has issued certain new and revised BEEMAGREME TRAEELE
HKFRSs that are first effective or available for early FrEAME R AR AR R A 2 R &
adoption for the current accounting period of the KERT BBV MG ER - £ SHEE W
Group. Note 3 provides information on any changes BomErPRE s EERAERAZEEASHE
in accounting policies resulting from initial application BRENBRMGMSI B ANFEL BT
of these developments to the extent that they are MR 2 MBS TR GRS BT H
relevant to the Group for the current and prior FMIEES ©

accounting periods reflected in these consolidated
financial statements.

3. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG 3. BT RZBEITEBMBERELE

KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING Al

STANDARDS

(a) Application of new and revised (a) FERAMEIREETEEUBRE
HKFRSs #Al
The Group has applied the Amendments to TEERRESGEVBRRHFEER
Reference to the Conceptual Framework in & B 78 B T R 5 A Bl o R S AE 22
HKFRS Standards and the following RIRIBEI A RIA T HEEBS SRR
amendments to HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA SRMNE BT HHREESFTA
for the first time, which are mandatorily BREIIBEZZEF—H—Hxkz
effective for the annual period beginning on or 1% B 46 Y F 1S HARE 98 I AE 3 ¢

after 1 January 2020 for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements:

Amendments to Definition of Material BB g ER BEAZEE
HKAS 1 and F1RRES
HKAS 8 ZEHERIE 85
ZABET A
Amendments to Definition of a BERUNBREED EBIEE
HKFRS 3 Business B3 IERT AR
Amendments to Interest Rate BBV BHE R EAEE
HKFRS 9, HKAS 39  Benchmark Reform AERIEO5E
and HKFRS 7 BB gL
FBIOFERES
B 53R &5 2 A
BT ZIERT A
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (Continued)

(a)

Application of new and revised HKFRSs
(Continued)

Except as described below, the application of
the Amendments to Reference to the
Conceptual Framework in HKFRS Standards
and the amendments to HKFRSs in the current
year had no material impact on the Group’s
financial positions and performance for the
current and prior years and/or on the
disclosures set out in these consolidated
financial statements.

Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKAS 8
Definition of Material

The amendments provide a new definition of
material that states “information is material if
omitting, misstating or obscuring it could
reasonably be expected to influence decisions
that the primary users of general purpose
financial statements make on the basis of
those financial statements, which provide
financial information about a specific reporting
entity.” The amendments also clarify that
materiality depends on the nature or magnitude
of information, either individually or in
combination with other information, in the
context of the financial statements taken as a
whole.

The application of the amendments had no
impact on the consolidated financial
statements.

R E B R Y R ()

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE—_ZE-_ZF+-_A=+—HIFE

3. BT REETEBAFREE
B (

(a)

-

=)

M=

FER I REBITEEUBRE
A (8])

BRI ESN RAFEERELS
SRS R h W SRR RS
AIARBERBYBHREEINETARE R
SERAFERBEFEZH BN
RRBR,/ IEZEEA M ERRA
HoRBFEVREEATE -

FEET RSB RFESEA
BOMZIBIIAEXZER
BRETHEAMFLIESR - B
w8 ERRASIREERAA
EmEReE - RAZMBHRRNE
REMEERNZEFMHHE (RHA
BRERSEBNOYHEERFHD
REERTE MBEHERNBNE
Rl BRETTEBEEAEREF
BRI ERE (BEM S HE
HEME) GNM B HRRERM
EREOBREK-

EREBEBTHRAMBRRYEY
@,

TECZEFR RHEREZEREARAA
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
A B R B A ()

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HEZ=-T-_TF+_A=+—HILFE

3. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (Continued)

(a)

Application of new and revised HKFRSs
(Continued)

Amendments to HKFRS 3 Definition of a
Business

The amendments clarify the definition of a
business and provide further guidance on how
to determine whether a transaction represents
a business combination. In addition, the
amendments introduce an optional
“concentration test” that permits a simplified
assessment of whether an acquired set of
activities and assets is an asset rather than
business acquisition, when substantially all of
the fair value of the gross assets acquired is
concentrated in a single identifiable asset or
group of similar identifiable assets.

The Group has applied the amendments
prospectively to transactions for which the
acquisition date is on or after 1 January 2020.
The application of the amendments had no
impact on the consolidated financial statements
as similar conclusion would have been reached
without applying the optional concentration
test.

Amendments to HKFRS 9, HKAS 39 and
HKFRS 7 Interest Rate Benchmark Reform

The amendments modify specific hedge
accounting requirements to allow hedge
accounting to continue for affected hedges
during the period of uncertainty before the
hedged items or hedging instruments affected
by the current interest rate benchmarks are
amended as a result of the on-going interest
rate benchmark reform.

Ka Shui International Holdings Limited Annual Report 2020
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (Continued)

(a)

(b)

Application of new and revised HKFRSs
(Continued)

Amendments to HKFRS 9, HKAS 39 and
HKFRS 7 Interest Rate Benchmark Reform
(Continued)

The amendments had no impact on the
consolidated financial statements of the Group
as the Group’s designated hedged items/
assessment of hedge effectiveness/is not
affected by the interest rate benchmark reform.

New and revised HKFRSs in issue but
not yet effective

The Group has not applied any new and
revised HKFRSs that have been issued but are
not yet effective for the financial year beginning
1 January 2020. These new and revised
HKFRSs include the following which may be
relevant to the Group.

R E B R Y R ()

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE—_ZE-_ZF+-_A=+—HIFE

3. HRMFFITREBITEBUBHREE
8l (4&)

(a)

(b)

FERMI REEITEEMBRE
R (&)

FRMBRERER BN - FHEE
FERIEI05T R EFRM SR EFAE7
SRZIEFT AR RBEYE (])

MR AE B IEE HHIEE PR
RUFE TR REENZNTE
BRETHARE ZRAMBRERL

B2 486
EE o

E MR B 8 R £ 2 Fa] R E
A EEMBREEL

R £2 18] 3 4 FE PR AL AR 2 AR AR 4B i1 R TR
—E - EF-A-BRBNPRFE
AT MRERT BBV BRE
R o ZEHR REETHE BTG
HELERBIE AT A REEAK B R
MEIA -

“ECEEFER EHERERERLA
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

A B R B A ()

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HEZ=-T-_TF+_A=+—HILFE

3. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (Continued)

(b) New and revised HKFRSs in issue but
not yet effective (Continued)

Effective for
accounting
periods beginning
on or after

Amendments to HKFRS 1 January 2021
9, HKAS 39, HKFRS 7,
HKFRS 4 and HKFRS
16 Interest Rate
Benchmark Reform
— Phase 2

Amendments to HKFRS 3 1 January 2022
Reference to the
Conceptual Framework

Amendments to HKAS 16 1 January 2022
Property, plant and
equipment: proceeds
before intended use

Amendments to HKAS 37 1 January 2022
Onerous contracts
— cost of fulfilling a

contract

Annual Improvements to 1 January 2022
HKFRSs 2018-2020
Cycle

Amendments to HKAS 1 1 January 2023

Classification of
liabilities as current or
non-current
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (Continued)

New and revised HKFRSs in issue but
not yet effective (Continued)

The Group is in the process of making an
assessment of what the impact of these
amendments and new standards is expected to
be in the period of initial application. So far the
Group has identified some aspects of the new
standards which may have impact on the
consolidated financial statements. As the Group
has not completed its assessment, further
impacts may be identified in due course.

(b)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

These consolidated financial statements have been
prepared under the historical cost convention, unless
mentioned otherwise in the accounting policies below
(e.g. leasehold land that are measured at fair value).

The preparation of consolidated financial statements
in conformity with HKFRSs requires the use of
certain critical accounting estimates. It also requires
management to exercise its judgement in the
process of applying the Group’s accounting policies.
The areas involving a higher degree of judgement or
complexity, or areas where assumptions and
estimates are significant to the consolidated financial
statements are disclosed in note 5.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
A B R B A ()

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HEZ=-T-_TF+_A=+—HILFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)
The significant accounting policies applied in the
preparation of these consolidated financial
statements are set out below:

(a)

Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include
the financial statements of the Company and its
subsidiaries made up to 31 December.
Subsidiaries are entities over which the Group
has control. The Group controls an entity when
it is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns
from its involvement with the entity and has the
ability to affect those returns through its power
over the entity. The Group has power over an
entity when the Group has existing rights that
give it the current ability to direct the relevant
activities, i.e. activities that significantly affect
the entity’s returns.

When assessing control, the Group considers
its potential voting rights as well as potential
voting rights held by other parties. A potential
voting right is considered only if the holder has
the practical ability to exercise that right.

Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on
which control is transferred to the Group. They
are de-consolidated from the date the control
ceases.

The gain or loss on the disposal of a
subsidiary that results in a loss of control
represents the difference between () the fair
value of the consideration of the sale plus the
fair value of any investment retained in that
subsidiary and (i) the Company’s share of the
net assets of that subsidiary plus any remaining
goodwill and any accumulated foreign currency
translation reserve relating to that subsidiary.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(a)

Consolidation (Continued)

Intragroup transactions, balances and
unrealised profits are eliminated. Unrealised
losses are also eliminated unless the
transaction provides evidence of an impairment
of the asset transferred. Accounting policies of
subsidiaries have been changed where
necessary to ensure consistency with the
policies adopted by the Group.

Non-controlling interests represent the equity in
subsidiaries not attributable, directly or
indirectly, to the Company. Non-controlling
interests are presented in the consolidated
statement of financial position and consolidated
statement of changes in equity within equity.
Non-controlling interests are presented in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and
consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income as an allocation of
profit or loss and total comprehensive income
for the vyear between the non-controlling
shareholders and owners of the Company.

Profit or loss and each component of other
comprehensive income are attributed to the
owners of the Company and to the non-
controlling shareholders even if this results in
the non-controlling interests having a deficit
balance.

Changes in the Company’s ownership interest
in a subsidiary that do not result in a loss of
control are accounted for as equity
transactions (i.e. transactions with owners in
their capacity as owners). The carrying
amounts of the controlling and non-controlling
interests are adjusted to reflect the changes in
their relative interests in the subsidiary. Any
difference between the amount by which the
non-controlling interests are adjusted and the
fair value of the consideration paid or received
is recognised directly in equity and attributed to
the owners of the Company.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e B R I R ()

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HEZ=-T-_TF+_A=+—HILFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(a)

(b)

Consolidation (Continued)

In the Company’s statement of financial
position, investments in subsidiaries are stated
at cost less impairment losses, unless the
investment is classified as held for sale (or
included in a disposal group that is classified
as held for sale).

Business combination and goodwill
The acquisition method is used to account for
the acquisition of a subsidiary in a business
combination. The consideration transferred in a
business combination is measured at the
acquisition-date fair value of the assets given,
equity instruments issued, liabilities incurred
and any contingent consideration. Acquisition-
related costs are recognised as expenses in the
periods in which the costs are incurred and the
services are received. ldentifiable assets and
liabilities of the subsidiary in the acquisition are
measured at their acquisition-date fair values.

The excess of the sum of the consideration
transferred over the Group’s share of the net
fair value of the subsidiary’s identifiable assets
and liabilities is recorded as goodwill. Any
excess of the Group’s share of the net fair
value of the identifiable assets and liabilities
over the sum of the consideration transferred is
recognised in consolidated profit or loss as a
gain on bargain purchase which is attributed to
the Group.

In a business combination achieved in stages,
the previously held equity interest in the
subsidiary is remeasured at its acquisition-date
fair value and the resulting gain or loss is
recognised in consolidated profit or loss. The
fair value is added to the sum of the
consideration transferred in a business
combination to calculate the goodwill.

Annual Report 2020

TESFBER (R)

(a)

(b)

ZEekE (&)

RARBZHMBRREKA - RHTE A
Al Z B RO E BRI AR -
RIERRBEEDBER/FTIFHE (B
RERDERFFEHEZHEMAR) -

EBeHREE

RESA Gt R KB 2 B TR IS
SiDARIE - REBAMHTPEB K
BIRWBAMRXNEE - AIEITRA
TR FELASAEZEZBBERIAR
BzAFEAE - BRBEE KA
REERARNRESRSE 2 HEERA
X - BB AR 2 AT BRI B E
kBEREBEZAFESE -

B 2 K ERMB L AR B B
ARABEMNEERARZ AT FELZ
ZRMAREIR - EAAEEHE D
ABNEERBBEZAFFERRE
B2REENZZBEREABRER
NERBAREREZZEBERBE K

N2
S o

T

DEBRETESAHR  BEREZ
ME AR BRAEERENERRZA
FEHEFAE BHEEZBmIR
REBRER - RTEHFARER
BHTEBZRERN  AFER
=,



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(b)

Business combination and goodwill
(Continued)

The non-controlling interests in the subsidiary
are initially measured at the non-controlling
shareholders’ proportionate share of the net fair
value of the subsidiary’s identifiable assets and
liabilities at the acquisition date.

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at
cost less accumulated impairment losses. For
the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill
acquired in a business combination is allocated
to each of the cash-generating units (“CGUs”)
or groups of CGUs that is expected to benefit
from the synergies of the combination. Each
unit or group of units to which the goodwill is
allocated represents the lowest level within the
Group at which the goodwill is monitored for
internal management purposes. Goodwill
impairment reviews are undertaken annually or
more frequently if events or changes in
circumstances indicate a potential impairment.
The carrying value of the CGU containing the
goodwill is compared to its recoverable
amount, which is the higher of value in use
and the fair value less costs of disposal. Any
impairment is recognised immediately as an
expense and is not subsequently reversed.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
5 75 8 3k it = ()

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HEZ=-T-_TF+_A=+—HILFE

ll‘/i\

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(c)

Associates

Associates are entities over which the Group
has significant influence. Significant influence is
the power to participate in the financial and
operating policy decisions of an entity but is
not control or joint control over those policies.
The existence and effect of potential voting
rights that are currently exercisable or
convertible, including potential voting rights held
by other entities, are considered when
assessing whether the Group has significant
influence. In assessing whether a potential
voting right contributes to significant influence,
the holder’s intention and financial ability to
exercise or convert that right is not
considered.

Investment in an associate is accounted for in
the consolidated financial statements by the
equity method and is initially recognised at
cost. Identifiable assets and liabilities of the
associate in an acquisition are measured at
their fair values at the acquisition date. The
excess of the cost of the investment over the
Group’s share of the net fair value of the
associate’s identifiable assets and liabilities is
recorded as goodwill which is included in the
carrying amount of the investment. Any excess
of the Group’s share of the net fair value of the
identifiable assets and liabilities over the cost of
acquisition is recognised in consolidated profit
or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(c)

Associates (Continued)

The Group assesses whether there is an
objective evidence that the interest in an
associate may be impaired. When any objective
evidence exists, the entire carrying amount of
the investment (including goodwill) is tested for
impairment in accordance with HKAS 36 as a
single asset by comparing its recoverable
amount (higher of value in use and fair value
less costs of disposal) with its carrying amount.
Any impairment loss recognised is not allocated
to any asset, including goodwill, that forms part
of the carrying amount of the investment. Any
reversal of that impairment loss is recognised
in accordance with HKAS 36 to the extent that
the recoverable amount of the investment
subsequently increases.

The Group’s share of an associate’s post-
acquisition profits or losses and other
comprehensive income is recognised in
consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income. When the
Group’s share of losses in an associate equals
or exceeds its interest in the associate (which
includes any long-term interests that, in
substance, form part of the Group’s net
investment in the associate), the Group does
not recognise further losses, unless it has
incurred obligations or made payments on
behalf of the associate. If the associate
subsequently reports profits, the Group
resumes recognising its share of those profits
only after its share of the profits equals the
share of losses not recognised.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e B R I R ()

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HEZ=-T-_TF+_A=+—HILFE

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(c)

(d)

Associates (Continued)

The gain or loss on the disposal of an
associate that results in a loss of significant
influence represents the difference between (i)
the fair value of the consideration of the sale
plus the fair value of any investment retained in
that associate and (i) the Group’s entire
carrying amount of that associate (including
goodwill) and any related accumulated foreign
currency translation reserve. If an investment in
an associate becomes an investment in a joint
venture, the Group continues to apply the
equity method and does not remeasure the
retained interest.

Unrealised profits on transactions between the
Group and its associates are eliminated to the
extent of the Group’s interests in the
associates. Unrealised losses are also
eliminated unless the transaction provides
evidence of an impairment of the asset
transferred. Accounting policies of associates
have been changed where necessary to ensure
consistency with the policies adopted by the
Group.

Foreign currency translation

(i) Functional and presentation currency
[tems included in the financial statements
of each of the Group’s entities are
measured using the currency of the
primary economic environment in which
the entity operates (the “functional
currency”). The consolidated financial
statements are presented in Hong Kong
dollars (“HK$”), which is the Company’s
functional and presentation currency.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(d) Foreign currency translation
(Continued)

(i)

Transactions and balances in each
entity’s financial statements
Transactions in foreign currencies are
translated into the functional currency on
initial recognition using the exchange
rates prevailing on the transaction dates.
Monetary assets and liabilities in foreign
currencies are translated at the exchange
rates at the end of each reporting period.
Gains and losses resulting from this
translation policy are recognised in profit
or loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured at
fair value in foreign currencies are
translated using the exchange rates at the
dates when the fair values are
determined.

When a gain or loss on a non-monetary
item is recognised in other
comprehensive income, any exchange
component of that gain or loss is
recognised in other comprehensive
income. When a gain or loss on a non-
monetary item is recognised in profit or
loss, any exchange component of that
gain or loss is recognised in profit or
loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

A B R B A ()

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HEZ=-T-_TF+_A=+—HILFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(d) Foreign currency translation

(Continued)

(iii) Translation on consolidation
The results and financial position of all the
Group entities that have a functional
currency different from the Company’s
presentation currency are translated into
the Company’s presentation currency as
follows:

— Assets and liabilities for each
statement of financial position
presented are translated at the
closing rate at the date of that
statement of financial position;

— Income and expenses are translated
at average exchange rate for the
period (unless this average rate is
not a reasonable approximation of
the cumulative effect of the rates
prevailing on the transaction dates,
in which case income and
expenses are translated at the
exchange rates on the transaction
dates); and

— Al resulting exchange differences
are recognised in other
comprehensive income and
accumulated in the foreign currency
translation reserve.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(d)

(e)

Foreign currency translation

(Continued)

(iii) Translation on consolidation
(Continued)
On consolidation, exchange differences
arising from the translation of monetary
items that form part of the net
investment in foreign entities are
recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in the foreign
currency translation reserve. When a
foreign operation is sold, such exchange
differences are reclassified to
consolidated profit or loss as part of the
gain or loss on disposal.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments
arising on the acquisition of a foreign
entity are treated as assets and liabilities
of the foreign entity and translated at the
closing rate.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are held for use
in the production or supply of goods or
services, or for administrative purposes (other
than properties under construction as
described below). Property, plant and
equipment are stated in the consolidated
statement of financial position at cost, less
subsequent accumulated depreciation and
subsequent accumulated impairment losses, if
any.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
5 75 8 3k it = ()

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HEZ=-T-_TF+_A=+—HILFE

ll‘/i\

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(e)

Property, plant and equipment
(Continued)

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s
carrying amount or recognised as a separate
asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable
that future economic benefits associated with
the item will flow to the Group and the cost of
the item can be measured reliably. All other
repairs and maintenance are recognised in
profit or loss during the period in which they
are incurred.

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment
is calculated at rates sufficient to write off their
cost or revalued amounts less their residual
values over the estimated useful lives on a
straight-line basis. The principal useful lives are
as follows:

Buildings 5 to 20 years or over the
unexpired term of lease
Leasehold 2 to 5 years or over the
improvements unexpired term of lease
Plant and machinery 5 to 10 years
Computer equipment 3 to 5 years
Furniture, fixtures and 3 to 5 years
office equipment
Motor vehicles 3 to 5 years
The residual values, useful lives and

depreciation method are reviewed and
adjusted, if appropriate, at the end of each
reporting period, with the effect of any changes
in estimate accounted for on a prospective
basis.

Construction in progress represents buildings
under construction and plant and equipment
pending installation, and is stated at cost less
impairment losses. Depreciation begins when
the relevant assets are available for use.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(e)

(f)

Property, plant and equipment
(Continued)

The gain or loss on disposal of property, plant
and equipment is the difference between the
net sales proceeds and the carrying amount of
the relevant asset, and is recognised in profit or
loss.

Leases

At inception of a contract, the Group assesses
whether the contract is, or contains, a lease. A
contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract
conveys the right to control the use of an
identified asset for a period of time in
exchange for consideration. Control is
conveyed where the customer has both the
right to direct the use of the identified asset
and to obtain substantially all of the economic
benefits from that use.

(i) The Group as a lessee

Where the contract contains lease
component(s) and non-lease
component(s), the Group has elected not
to separate non-lease components and
accounts for each lease component and
any associated non-lease components as
a single lease component for all leases.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
5 75 8 3k it = ()

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HEZ=-T-_TF+_A=+—HILFE

ll‘/i\

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(f)

Leases (Continued)

(i)

The Group as a lessee (Continued)
At the lease commencement date, the
Group recognises a right-of-use asset and
a lease liability, except for short-term
leases that have a lease term of 12
months or less and leases of low-value
assets which, for the Group are primarily
laptops and office furniture. When the
Group enters into a lease in respect of a
low-value asset, the Group decides
whether to capitalise the lease on a
lease-by-lease basis. The lease payments
associated with those leases which are
not capitalised are recognised as an
expense on a systematic basis over the
lease term.

Where the lease is capitalised, the lease
liability is initially recognised at the
present value of the lease payments
payable over the lease term, discounted
using the interest rate implicit in the lease
or, if that rate cannot be readily
determined, using a relevant incremental
borrowing rate. After initial recognition,
the lease liability is measured at
amortised cost and interest expense is
calculated using the effective interest
method. Variable lease payments that do
not depend on an index or rate are not
included in the measurement of the lease
liability and hence are charged to profit or
loss in the accounting period in which
they are incurred.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
SE U B EmR M A (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 B#EZ—_ZE_ZTF+_A=+—HIEFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(f) Leases (Continued)

(i)

The Group as a lessee (Continued)
The right-of-use assets recognised when
a lease is capitalised is initially measured
at cost, which comprises the initial
amount of the lease liability plus any
lease payments made at or before the
commencement date, and any initial
direct costs incurred. Where applicable,
the cost of the right-of-use assets also
includes an estimate of costs to
dismantle and remove the underlying
asset or to restore the underlying asset or
the site on which it is located,
discounted to their present value, less
any lease incentives received. The right-
of-use asset is subsequently stated at
cost less accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses, except for the right-
of-use assets related to leasehold land
where the Group is the registered owner
of the leasehold interest are carried at fair
value.

Right-of-use assets related to leasehold
land held for use in the production or
supply of goods or services, or for
administrative purposes, are stated in the
consolidated statement of financial
position at their revalued amounts, being
the fair value at the date of revaluation,
less any subsequent accumulated
depreciation and subsequent
accumulated impairment losses.
Revaluations are performed with sufficient
regularity such that the carrying amounts
do not differ materially from those that
would be determined using fair values at
the end of each reporting period.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 HEZ=-T-_TF+_A=+—HILFE
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4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(f)

Leases (Continued)

(i)

The Group as a lessee (Continued)
Any revaluation increase arising on the
revaluation of such land is recognised in
other comprehensive income and
accumulated in land revaluation reserve,
except to the extent that it reverses a
revaluation decrease for the same asset
previously recognised in profit or loss, in
which case the increase is credited to
profit or loss to the extent of the
decrease previously expensed. A
decrease in the carrying amount arising
on the revaluation of such land is
recognised in profit or loss to the extent
that it exceeds the balance, if any, held
in the land revaluation reserve relating to
a previous revaluation of that asset.

Depreciation of revalued land is
recognised in profit or loss. On the
subsequent sale or retirement of a
revalued land, the attributable revaluation
surplus remaining in the land revaluation
reserve is transferred directly to retained
earnings.

Right-of-use assets in which the Group is
reasonably certain to obtain ownership of
the underlying leased assets at the end of
the lease term are depreciated from
commencement date to the end of the
useful life. Otherwise, right-of-use assets
are depreciated on a straight-line basis
over the shorter of its estimated useful
life and the unexpired term of lease.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
SE U B EmR M A (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HHEZE =T —_ZTF+_A=+—HIFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(f) Leases (Continued)

(i)

The Group as a lessee (Continued)
Refundable rental deposits paid are
accounted under HKFRS 9 and initially
measured at fair value. Adjustments to
fair value at initial recognition are
considered as additional lease payments
and included in the cost of right-of-use
assets.

The lease liability is remeasured when
there is a change in future lease
payments arising from a change in an
index or rate, or there is a change in the
Group’s estimate of the amount expected
to be payable under a residual value
guarantee, or there is a change arising
from the reassessment of whether the
Group will be reasonably certain to
exercise a purchase, extension or
termination option. When the lease liability
is remeasured in this way, a
corresponding adjustment is made to the
carrying amount of the right-of-use asset,
or is recorded in profit or loss if the
carrying amount of the right-of-use asset
has been reduced to zero.

The lease liability is also remeasured
when there is a change in the scope of a
lease or the consideration for a lease that
is not originally provided for in the lease
contract (“lease modification”) that is not
accounted for as a separate lease. In this
case the lease liability is remeasured
based on the revised lease payments and
lease term using a revised discount rate
at the effective date of the modification.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 HEZ=-T-_TF+_A=+—HILFE

nvi\

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(f)

(9)

(h)

Leases (Continued)

(i) The Group as a lessor
When the Group acts as a lessor, it
determines at lease inception whether
each lease is a finance lease or an
operating lease. A lease is classified as a
finance lease if it transfers substantially all
the risks and rewards incidental to the
ownership of an underlying assets to the
lessee. If this is not the case, the lease is
classified as an operating lease.

Research and development
expenditure

Expenditure on research activities is recognised
as an expense in the period in which it is
incurred.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and
net realisable value. Cost is determined using
the weighted average basis. The cost of
finished goods and work in progress comprises
raw materials, direct labour and an appropriate
proportion of all production overhead
expenditure, and where appropriate,
subcontracting charges. Net realisable value is
the estimated selling price in the ordinary
course of business, less the estimated costs of
completion and the estimated costs necessary
to make the sale.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(i)

)

(k)

Other contract costs
Other contract costs are the incremental costs
of obtaining a contract with a customer.

Incremental costs of obtaining a contract are
those costs that the Group incurs to obtain a
contract with a customer that it would not
have incurred if the contract had not been
obtained. Incremental costs of obtaining a
contract are capitalised when incurred if the
costs are expected to be recovered, unless the
expected amortisation period is one year or
less from the date of initial recognition of the
asset, in which case the costs are expensed
when incurred. Other costs of obtaining a
contract are expensed when incurred.

Club membership

Club membership with indefinite useful life is
stated at cost less any impairment losses.
Impairment is reviewed annually or when there
is any indication that the club membership has
suffered an impairment loss.

Contract assets and contract liabilities
Contract asset is recognised when the Group
recognises revenue before being
unconditionally entitled to the consideration
under the payment terms set out in the
contract. Contract assets are assessed for
expected credit losses (“ECLs”) in accordance
with the policy set out in note 4(y) and are
reclassified to receivables when the right to the
consideration has become unconditional.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
B 3% R B 5 (4R)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HEZ=-T-_TF+_A=+—HILFE

nvi\

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(k)

()

Contract assets and contract liabilities
(Continued)

A contract liability is recognised when the
customer pays consideration before the Group
recognises the related revenue. A contract
liability would also be recognised if the Group
has an unconditional right to receive
consideration before the Group recognises the

related revenue. In such cases, a
corresponding receivable would also be
recognised.

For a single contract with the customer, either
a net contract asset or a net contract liability is
presented. For multiple contracts, contract
assets and contract liabilities of unrelated
contracts are not presented on a net basis.

When the contract includes a significant
financing component, the contract balance
includes interest accrued under the effective
interest method.

Recognition and derecognition of
financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are
recognised in the consolidated statement of
financial position when the Group becomes a
party to the contractual provisions of the
instruments.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

0

Recognition and derecognition of
financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets and financial liabilities are
initially measured at fair value. Transaction
costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition or issue of financial assets and
financial liabilities (other than financial assets
and financial liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss (“FVTPL") are added to or
deducted from the fair value of the financial
assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on
initial recognition. Transaction costs directly
attributable to the acquisition of financial assets
or financial liabilities at FVTPL are recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

The Group derecognises a financial asset only
when the contractual rights to the cash flows
from the asset expire, or when it transfers the
financial asset and substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership of the asset to another
entity. If the Group neither transfers nor retains
substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership and continues to control the
transferred asset, the Group recognises its
retained interest in the asset and an
associated liability for amounts it may have to
pay. If the Group retains substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership of a transferred
financial asset, the Group continues to
recognise the financial asset and also
recognises a collateralised borrowing for the
proceeds received.

The Group derecognises financial liabilities
when, and only when, the Group’s obligations
are discharged, cancelled or have expired. The
difference between the carrying amount of the
financial liability derecognised and the
consideration paid and payable, including any
non-cash assets transferred or liabilities
assumed, is recognised in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 HEZ=-T-_TF+_A=+—HILFE

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(m) Financial assets

All regular way purchases or sales of financial
assets are recognised and derecognised on a
trade date basis. Regular way purchases or
sales are purchases or sales of financial assets
that require delivery of assets within the time
frame established by regulation or convention
in the marketplace. All recognised financial
assets are measured subsequently in their
entirety at either amortised cost or fair value,
depending on the classification of the financial
assets.

Debt instruments

Debt instruments held by the Group are
classified into one of the following
measurement categories:

— amortised cost, if the instrument is held
for the collection of contractual cash
flows which represent solely payments of
principal and interest. Interest income
from the instrument is calculated using
the effective interest method. Typically,
trade and bills receivables, other
receivables, cash and bank balances are
classified in this category.

— FVTOCI — recycling, if the contractual
cash flows of the instruments comprise
solely payments of principal and interest
and the instrument is held within a
business model whose objective is
achieved by both the collection of
contractual cash flows and sale. Changes
in fair value are recognised in other
comprehensive income, except for the
recognition in profit or loss of ECLs,
interest income (calculated using the
effective interest method) and foreign
exchange gains and losses. When the
instrument is derecognised, the amount
accumulated in other comprehensive
income is recycled from equity to profit or
loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
A B R Y ()

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HHEZE =T —_ZTF+_A=+—HIFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4. ETESEEER (E)

(Continued)

(m) Financial assets (Continued) (m) &REEH)

Debt instruments (Continued)

- FVTPL if the instrument does not meet the
criteria for being measured at amortised
cost or FVTOCI (recycling). Changes in
the fair value of the instrument (including
interest) are recognised in profit or loss.

Equity investments

An investment in equity securities is classified
as FVTPL unless the equity investment is not
held for trading purposes and on initial
recognition of the investment the Group makes
an election to designate the investment at
FVTOCI (non-recycling) such that subsequent
changes in fair value are recognised in other
comprehensive income. Such elections are
made on an instrument-by-instrument basis, but
may only be made if the investment meets the
definition of equity from the issuer’s
perspective. Where such an election is made,
the amount accumulated in other
comprehensive income remains in the fair value
reserve (non-recycling) until the investment is
disposed of. At the time of disposal, the
amount accumulated in the fair value reserve
(non-recycling) is transferred to retained
earnings but not recycled through profit or
loss. Dividends from an investment in equity
securities, irrespective of whether classified as
at FVTPL or FVTOCI, are recognised in profit or
loss as other income.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e B R I R ()

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HEZ=-T-_TF+_A=+—HILFE

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(n)

(o)

Trade and other receivables

A receivable is recognised when the Group has
an unconditional right to receive consideration.
A right to receive consideration is unconditional
if only the passage of time is required before
payment of that consideration is due. If
revenue has been recognised before the Group
has an unconditional right to receive
consideration, the amount is presented as a
contract asset.

Receivables are stated at amortised cost using
the effective interest method less allowance for
credit losses.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at
bank and on hand, demand deposits with
banks and other financial institutions, and
short-term, highly liquid investments that are
readily convertible into known amounts of cash
and which are subject to an insignificant risk of
changes in value, having been within three
months of maturity at acquisition. Bank
overdrafts that are repayable on demand and
form an integral part of the Group’s cash
management are also included as a
component of cash and cash equivalents for
the purpose of the consolidated cash flow
statement. Cash and cash equivalents are
assessed for ECL.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

()

Financial liabilities and equity
instruments

Financial liabilities and equity instruments are
classified according to the substance of the
contractual arrangements entered into and the
definitions of a financial liability and an equity
instrument under HKFRSs. An equity
instrument is any contract that evidences a
residual interest in the assets of the Group
after deducting all of its liabilities. The
accounting policies adopted for specific
financial liabilities and equity instruments are set
out below.

(i) Borrowings
Borrowings are recognised initially at fair
value, net of transaction costs incurred,
and subsequently measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest method.

Borrowings are classified as current
liabilities unless the Group has an
unconditional right to defer settlement of
the liability for at least 12 months after
the reporting period.

(ii) Financial guarantee contracts
Financial guarantee contracts are
recognised as a financial liability at the
time the guarantee is issued. The liability
is initially measured at fair value and
subsequently at the higher of:

— the amount determined in
accordance with the ECL model
under HKFRS 9; and

— the amount initially recognised less,
where appropriate, the cumulative
amount of income recognised in
accordance with the principles of
HKFRS 15.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
A B R B A ()

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HEZ=-T-_TF+_A=+—HILFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(p) Financial liabilities and equity
instruments (Continued)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

Financial guarantee contracts
(Continued)

The fair value of financial guarantees is
determined based on the present value of
the difference in cash flows between the
contractual payments required under the
debt instrument and the payments that
would be required without the guarantee,
or the estimated amount that would be
payable to a third party for assuming the
obligations.

Where guarantees in relation to loans or
other payables of associates are provided
for no compensation, the fair values are
accounted for as contributions and
recognised as part of the cost of the
investment.

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are recognised
initially at their fair value and
subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method unless
the effect of discounting would be
immaterial, in which case they are stated
at cost.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that
evidences a residual interest in the assets
of an entity after deducting all of its
liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the
Company are recorded at the proceeds
received, net of direct issue costs.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(q)

(r)

Derivative financial instruments
Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value
at the date a derivative contract is entered into
and are subsequently remeasured to their fair
value at the end of each reporting period.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised when control over a
product or service is transferred to the
customer, at the amount of promised
consideration to which the Group is expected
to be entitled, excluding those amounts
collected on behalf of third parties. Revenue
excludes value added tax or other sales taxes
and is after deduction of any trade discounts.

For OEM products that have no alternative use
to the Group and when the Group has an
enforceable right to payment from the
customers for performance completed to date,
the Group recognises revenue from the sales of
such OEM products as the performance
obligation is satisfied over time in accordance
with the input method, by reference to the
costs incurred to date over the total expected
costs. Otherwise, sales are recognised when
control of the products has been transferred,
being when the products are delivered to the
customers. Delivery occurs when the products
have been delivered to the designated location
prescribed by the customer. Payment for
goods is not due from the customer until the
OEM products are delivered to the customer
and therefore a contract asset is recognised
over the period in which the goods are
produced, representing the entity’s right to
consideration for the services performed to
date.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

ll‘/i\

51 % ¥ = By = ()

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HEZ=-T-_TF+_A=+—HILFE

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(r)

Revenue recognition (Continued)
Revenue from the sales of non-OEM products
is recognised when control of the goods has
transferred, being when the goods have been
shipped to the customer’s specific location
(delivery). Following delivery, the customer has
full discretion over the manner of distribution
and price to sell the goods, has the primary
responsibility when on selling the goods and
bears the risks of obsolescence and loss in
relation to the goods. A receivable is
recognised by the Group when the goods are
delivered to the customer as this represents
the point in time at which the right to
consideration becomes unconditional, as only
the passage of time is required before payment
is due. A refund liability and a corresponding
adjustment to revenue is recognised for those
products expected to be returned. At the same
time, the Group has a right to recover the
product when customers exercise their right of
return so consequently recognises a right to
returned goods asset and a corresponding
adjustment to cost of sales. The Group uses its
accumulated historical experience to estimate
the number of returns on a portfolio level using
the expected value method. It is considered
highly probable that a significant reversal in the
cumulative revenue recognised will not occur
given the consistent level of returns over
previous years.

Revenue from sales of moulds is recognised
when the quality of moulds are accepted by
the customers, and the customers have the
legal title to the moulds and can direct the
Group to use them for production.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(r)

(s)

Revenue recognition (Continued)
Interest income is recognised as it accrues
using the effective interest method. For financial
assets measured at amortised cost or FVTOCI
(recycling) that are not credit-impaired, the
effective interest rate is applied to the gross
carrying amount of the asset. For credit
impaired financial assets, the effective interest
rate is applied to the amortised cost (i.e. gross
carrying amount net of loss allowance) of the
asset.

Rental income receivable under operating
leases is recognised in profit or loss in equal
instalments over the periods covered by the
lease term, except where an alternative basis is
more representative of the pattern of benefits
to be derived from the use of the leased asset.
Lease incentives granted are recognised in
profit or loss as an integral part of the
aggregate net lease payments receivable.
Variable lease payments that do not depend on
an index or a rate are recognised as income in
the accounting period in which they are
earned.

Employee benefits

(i) Employee leave entitlements
Employee entitlements to annual leave
and long service leave are recognised
when they accrue to employees. A
provision is made for the estimated
liability for annual leave and long service
leave as a result of services rendered by
employees up to the end of the reporting
period.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and
maternity leave are not recognised until
the time of leave.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
B 3% R B 5 (4R)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HEZ=-T-_TF+_A=+—HILFE

nvi\

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(s)

®)

Employee benefits (Continued)

(i) Pension obligations
The Group contributes to defined
contribution retirement schemes which
are available to all employees.
Contributions to the schemes by the
Group and employees are calculated as a
percentage of employees’ basic salaries.
The retirement benefit scheme cost
charged to profit or loss represents
contributions payable by the Group to the
funds.

(iii) Termination benefits
Termination benefits are recognised at the
earlier of the dates when the Group can
no longer withdraw the offer of those
benefits, and when the Group recognises
restructuring costs and involves the
payment of termination benefits.

Share-based payments

The Group issues equity-settled share-based
payments to certain employees. Equity-settled
share-based payments are measured at the fair
value (excluding the effect of non-market based
vesting conditions) of the equity instruments at
the date of grant. The fair value determined at
the grant date of the equity-settled share-
based payments is expensed on a straight-line
basis over the vesting period, based on the
Group’s estimate of shares that will eventually
vest and adjusted for the effect of non-market
based vesting conditions.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(u)

(v)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the
acquisition, construction or production of
qualifying assets, which are assets that
necessarily take a substantial period of time to
get ready for their intended use or sale, are
capitalised as part of the cost of those assets,
until such time as the assets are substantially
ready for their intended use or sale. Investment
income earned on the temporary investment of
specific borrowings pending their expenditure
on qualifying assets is deducted from the
borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

To the extent that funds are borrowed
generally and used for the purpose of
obtaining a qualifying asset, the amount of
borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation is
determined by applying a capitalisation rate to
the expenditures on that asset. The
capitalisation rate is the weighted average of
the borrowing costs applicable to the
borrowings of the Group that are outstanding
during the period, other than borrowings made
specifically for the purpose of obtaining a
qualifying assets. Any specific borrowing that
remain outstanding after the related asset is
ready for its intended use or sale is included in
the general borrowing pool for calculation of
capitalisation rate on general borrowings.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in
profit or loss in the period in which they are
incurred.

Government grants

A government grant is recognised when there
is reasonable assurance that the Group will
comply with the conditions attaching to it and
that the grant will be received.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
5 75 8 3k it = ()

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HEZ=-T-_TF+_A=+—HILFE

ll‘/i\

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(v)

(w)

Government grants (Continued)
Government grants relating to income are
deferred and recognised in profit or loss over
the period to match them with the costs they
are intended to compensate.

Government grants that become receivable as
compensation for expenses or losses already
incurred or for the purpose of giving immediate
financial support to the Group with no future
related costs are recognised in profit or loss in
the period in which they become receivable.

Taxation
Income tax represents the sum of the current
tax and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable
profit for the year. Taxable profit differs from
profit recognised in profit or loss because of
items of income or expense that are taxable or
deductible in other years and items that are
never taxable or deductible. The Group’s
liability for current tax is calculated using tax
rates that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities in the consolidated financial
statements and the corresponding tax bases
used in the computation of taxable profit.
Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised
for all taxable temporary differences and
deferred tax assets are recognised to the
extent that it is probable that taxable profits will
be available against which deductible temporary
differences, unused tax losses or unused tax
credits can be utilised. Such assets and
liabilities are not recognised if the temporary
difference arises from goodwill or from the initial
recognition (other than in a business
combination) of other assets and liabilities in a
transaction that affects neither the taxable profit
nor the accounting profit.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
A B R Y ()

For the year ended 31 December 2020 B#EZ—_ZE_ZTF+_A=+—HIEFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4. ETESEEER (E)
(Continued)
(w) Taxation (Continued) (w) BIE(E)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for
taxable temporary differences arising on
investments in subsidiaries and associates,
except where the Group is able to control the
reversal of the temporary difference and it is
probable that the temporary difference will not
reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is
reviewed at the end of each reporting period
and reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available to allow all or part of the asset to be
recovered.

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that
are expected to apply in the period when the
liability is settled or the asset is realised, based
on tax rates that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the
reporting period. Deferred tax is recognised in
profit or loss, except when it relates to items
recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity, in which case the deferred
tax is also recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity.

The measurement of deferred tax assets and
liabilities reflects the tax consequences that
would follow from the manner in which the
Group expects, at the end of the reporting
period, to recover or settle the carrying amount
of its assets and liabilities.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax for
leasing transactions in which the Group
recognises the right-of-use assets and the
related lease liabilities, the Group first
determines whether the tax deductions are
attributable to the right-of-use assets or the
lease liabilities.

BIERERBEIRIRENME R F K&
BENRMELNERRERERT
VATERR. » M fiaf 75 52 [ B 422 1) 3¢ (o) B By
ZRANEREZRER BRI EH
B [0 AR Bl

BERBEENREENS RS HE
R EFEL R YEBRPITE
BERAWERTEN AT 2HHENE
EERFELARRE -

EEBRBETIATRRREE R ERER
& 2 AR A RO TR R0 AN S B
%%mﬁ%ﬁﬁgﬁ%%ﬁﬁﬁﬁo
BB GNIRa TR - HEER
REBENEMEEKET R EERNE
o P RERR M AR AR RIURR SN - LIS
AT RERIA TG R E A 2 s
PR EERNESTHER

BEERAEERBEZFERRAE
B RE AR AR TR W B kA E
HEEMBBEREE 2 TAMSIBHZ
MHER -

T EARSEEREREEELIAH
HERBLHERS ZEEREM
B OAREEAEENENRES R
BREAEEELHEERE-

161



162

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 HEZ=-T-_TF+_A=+—HILFE
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4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(w) Taxation (Continued)

(x)

For leasing transactions in which the tax
deductions are attributable to the lease
liabilities, the Group applies HKAS 12
requirements to right-of-use assets and lease
liabilities separately. Temporary differences
relating to right-of-use assets and lease
liabilities are not recognised at initial
recognition and over the lease terms due to
application of the initial recognition exemption.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset
when there is a legally enforceable right to set
off current tax assets against current tax
liabilities and when they relate to income taxes
levied by the same taxation authority and the
Group intends to settle its current tax assets
and liabilities on a net basis.

Impairment of non-financial assets
The carrying amounts of non-financial assets
are reviewed at each reporting date for
indications of impairment and where an asset is
impaired, it is written down as an expense
through the consolidated statement of profit or
loss to its estimated recoverable amount unless
the relevant asset is carried at a revalued
amount, in which case the impairment loss is
treated as a revaluation decrease. The
recoverable amount is determined for an
individual asset, unless the asset does not
generate cash inflows that are largely
independent of those from other assets or
groups of assets. If this is the case,
recoverable amount is determined for the CGU
to which the asset belongs. Recoverable
amount is the higher of value in use and the
fair value less costs of disposal of the
individual asset or the CGU.

Annual Report 2020

4.

TESFBER (R)

(w)

(x)

PIE (8])

ARBHRRERNHEREZIHER
HME AEEGESSERF12
S REDRIERNEREEENRE
ERE AN ERVFERBR B
HEREEENHERRHER SR
HEER TSGR HERE R HEH
MR o

B AE A A TIE AR Al AR EIT TR A
ERFENANAAE  BRE /AT
Al — %Rﬂ‘%*%%&MZZFﬁ SH o BARE
BB FREEEREENRRAEE
REE RIEEHRAEERAEET
DA SH -

ERMEERE

FemEECREAENS RS AR
MEEBEDR  WEEDRE " A
FiRER S B R R MORZE A5
AREeRE WA EEEDIRER
SRV - BIREBBREGRDE
BoApEeBEIRENEEEE
ik B EE I 4 B A KRS B A EAD
BERBEMAGZHAESRA - B
B RIA Bl B EEFTE 2R
CEABUET - JRESEAER
BEIREELESBU 2 FRBEERAR
ATFEREHERKAMER 2BEE °



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(x)

(v)

Impairment of non-financial assets
(Continued)

Value in use is the present value of the
estimated future cash flows of the asset/CGU.
Present values are computed using pre-tax
discount rates that reflect the time value of
money and the risks specific to the asset/CGU
whose impairment is being measured.

Impairment losses for CGUs are allocated first
against the goodwill of the unit and then pro
rata amongst the other assets of the CGU.
Subsequent increases in the recoverable
amount caused by changes in estimates are
credited to profit or loss to the extent that they
reverse the impairment unless the relevant
asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which
case the reversal of the impairment loss is
treated as a revaluation increase.

Impairment of financial assets and
contract assets

The Group recognises a loss allowance for
ECLs on investments in debt instruments that
are measured at amortised cost or at FVTOCI,
lease receivables, trade and other receivables
and contract assets, as well as on financial
guarantee contracts. The amount of ECLs is
updated at each reporting date to reflect
changes in credit risk since initial recognition of
the respective financial instrument.

The Group always recognises lifetime ECL for
trade and bills receivables, contract assets and
lease receivables. The ECLs on these financial
assets are estimated using a provision matrix
based on the Group’s historical credit loss
experience, adjusted for factors that are
specific to the debtors, general economic
conditions and an assessment of both the
current as well as the forecast direction of
conditions at the reporting date, including time
value of money where appropriate.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e B R I R ()

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HEZ=-T-_TF+_A=+—HILFE

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(v)

Impairment of financial assets and
contract assets (Continued)

For all other financial instruments, the Group
recognises lifetime ECL when there has been a
significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition. However, if the credit risk on the
financial instrument has not increased
significantly since initial recognition, the Group
measures the loss allowance for that financial
instrument at an amount equal to 12-month
ECL.

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result
from all possible default events over the
expected life of a financial instrument. In
contrast, 12-month ECL represents the portion
of lifetime ECL that is expected to result from
default events on a financial instrument that are
possible within 12 months after the reporting
date.

Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk on a
financial instrument has increased significantly
since initial recognition, the Group compares
the risk of a default occurring on the financial
instrument at the reporting date with the risk of
a default occurring on the financial instrument
at the date of initial recognition. In making this
assessment, the Group considers both
quantitative and qualitative information that is
reasonable and supportable, including historical
experience and forward-looking information that
is available without undue cost or effort.
Forward-looking information considered includes
the future prospects of the industries in which
the Group’s debtors operate, obtained from
economic expert reports, financial analysts,
governmental bodies, relevant think-tanks and
other similar organisations, as well as
consideration of various external sources of
actual and forecast economic information that
relate to the Group’s core operations.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(v)

Impairment of financial assets and
contract assets (Continued)

Significant increase in credit risk
(Continued)

In particular, the following information is taken
into account when assessing whether credit risk
has increased significantly since initial
recognition:

— an actual or expected significant
deterioration in the financial instrument’s
external (if available) or internal credit
rating;

—  significant deterioration in external market
indicators of credit risk for a particular
financial instrument;

—  existing or forecast adverse changes in
business, financial or economic
conditions that are expected to cause a
significant decrease in the debtor’s ability
to meet its debt obligations;

— an actual or expected significant
deterioration in the operating results of
the debtor;

—  significant increases in credit risk on other
financial instruments of the same debtor;
and

— an actual or expected significant adverse
change in the regulatory, economic or
technological environment of the debtor
that results in a significant decrease in
the debtor’'s ability to meet its debt
obligations.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
5 75 8 3k it = ()

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HEZ=-T-_TF+_A=+—HILFE

n‘li\

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(v)

Impairment of financial assets and
contract assets (Continued)

Significant increase in credit risk
(Continued)

Irrespective of the outcome of the above
assessment, the Group presumes that the
credit risk on a financial asset has increased
significantly since initial recognition when
contractual payments are more than 30 days
past due, unless the Group has reasonable
and supportable information that demonstrates
otherwise.

Despite the foregoing, the Group assumes that
the credit risk on a financial instrument has not
increased significantly since initial recognition if
the financial instrument is determined to have
low credit risk at the reporting date. A financial
instrument is determined to have low credit risk
if:

(i) the financial instrument has a low risk of
default;

(i) the debtor has a strong capacity to meet
its contractual cash flow obligations in the
near term; and

(i)  adverse changes in economic and
business conditions in the longer term
may, but will not necessarily, reduce the
ability of the borrower to fulfil its
contractual cash flow obligations.

The Group considers a financial asset to have
low credit risk when the asset has external
credit rating of “investment grade” in
accordance with the globally understood
definition or if an external rating is not
available, the asset has an internal rating of
“performing”. Performing means that the
counterparty has a strong financial position and
there is no past due amounts.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(v)

Impairment of financial assets and
contract assets (Continued)

Significant increase in credit risk
(Continued)

For financial guarantee contracts, the date that
the Group becomes a party to the irrevocable
commitment is considered to be the date of
initial recognition for the purposes of assessing
the financial instrument for impairment. In
assessing whether there has been a significant
increase in the credit risk since initial
recognition of a financial guarantee contracts,
the Group considers the changes in the risk
that the specified debtor will default on the
contract.

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness
of the criteria used to identify whether there
has been a significant increase in credit risk
and revises them as appropriate to ensure that
the criteria are capable of identifying significant
increase in credit risk before the amount
becomes past due.

Definition of default

The Group considers the following as
constituting an event of default for internal
credit risk management purposes as historical
experience indicates that receivables that meet
either of the following criteria are generally not
recoverable.

— when there is a breach of financial
covenants by the counterparty; or

— information developed internally or
obtained from external sources indicates
that the debtor is unlikely to pay its
creditors, including the Group, in full
(without taking into account any
collaterals held by the Group).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
B 3% R B 5 (4R)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HEZ=-T-_TF+_A=+—HILFE

nvi\

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(v)

Impairment of financial assets and
contract assets (Continued)

Definition of default (Continued)
Irrespective of the above analysis, the Group
considers that default has occurred when a
financial asset is more than 90 days past due
unless the Group has reasonable and
supportable information to demonstrate that a
more lagging default criterion is more
appropriate.

Credit-impaired financial assets

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or
more events that have a detrimental impact on
the estimated future cash flows of that financial
asset have occurred. Evidence that a financial
asset is credit-impaired includes observable
data about the following events:

— significant financial difficulty of the issuer
or the counterparty;

— a breach of contract, such as a default or
past due event;

— the lender(s) of the counterparty, for
economic or contractual reasons relating
to the counterparty’s financial difficulty,
having granted to the counterparty a
concession(s) that the lender(s) would not
otherwise consider;

— it is becoming probable that the
counterparty will enter bankruptcy or
other financial reorganisation; or

—  the disappearance of an active market for
that financial asset because of financial
difficulties.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(v)

Impairment of financial assets and
contract assets (Continued)

Write-off policy

The Group writes off a financial asset when
there is information indicating that the debtor is
in severe financial difficulty and there is no
realistic prospect of recovery, including when
the debtor has been placed under liquidation
or has entered into bankruptcy proceedings, or
in the case of trade and bills receivables, when
the amounts are over two years past due,
whichever occurs sooner. Financial assets
written off may still be subject to enforcement
activities under the Group’s recovery
procedures, taking into account legal advice
where appropriate. Any recoveries made are
recognised in profit or loss.

Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECLs is a function of the
probability of default, loss given default (i.e. the
magnitude of the loss if there is a default) and
the exposure at default. The assessment of the
probability of default and loss given default is
based on historical data adjusted by
forward-looking information as described above.
As for the exposure at default, for financial
assets, this is represented by the assets’ gross
carrying amount at the reporting date.

For financial assets, the ECL is estimated as
the difference between all contractual cash
flows that are due to the Group in accordance
with the contract and all the cash flows that
the Group expects to receive, discounted at the
original effective interest rate. For a lease
receivable, the cash flows used for determining
the ECLs is consistent with the cash flows
used in measuring the lease receivable in
accordance with HKFRS 16.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e B R I R ()

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HEZ=-T-_TF+_A=+—HILFE

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(v)

(2)

Impairment of financial assets and
contract assets (Continued)
Measurement and recognition of ECL
(Continued)

If the Group has measured the loss allowance
for a financial instrument at an amount equal to
lifetime ECL in the previous reporting period,
but determines at the current reporting date
that the conditions for lifetime ECL are no
longer met, the Group measures the loss
allowance at an amount equal to 12-month
ECL at the current reporting date, except for
assets for which simplified approach was used.

The Group recognises an impairment gain or
loss in profit or loss for all financial instruments
with a corresponding adjustment to their
carrying amount through a loss allowance
account, except for investments in debt
instruments that are measured at FVTOCI, for
which the loss allowance is recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in the
investment revaluation reserve, and does not
reduce the carrying amount of the financial
asset in the statement of financial position.

Provisions and contingent liabilities
Provisions are recognised for liabilities of
uncertain timing or amount when the Group
has a present legal or constructive obligation
arising as a result of a past event, it is
probable that an outflow of economic benefits
will be required to settle the obligation and a
reliable estimate can be made. Where the time
value of money is material, provisions are
stated at the present value of the expenditures
expected to settle the obligation.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(2)

(aa)

Provisions and contingent liabilities
(Continued)

Where it is not probable that an outflow of
economic benefits will be required, or the
amount cannot be estimated reliably, the
obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability,
unless the probability of outflow is remote.
Possible obligations, whose existence will only
be confirmed by the occurrence or non-
occurrence of one or more future events are
also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless
the probability of outflow is remote.

Events after the reporting period
Events after the reporting period that provide
additional information about the Group’s
position at the end of the reporting period are
adjusting events and are reflected in the
consolidated financial statements. Events after
the reporting period that are not adjusting
events are disclosed in the notes to the
consolidated financial statements when
material.

5. CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY
ESTIMATES

Critical judgements in applying accounting
policies

In the process of applying the accounting policies,
the directors have made the following judgements
that have the most significant effect on the amounts
recognised in the consolidated financial statements
(apart from those involving estimations, which are
dealt with below).
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CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY
ESTIMATES (Continued)

Critical judgements in applying accounting
policies (Continued)

Significant increase in credit risk

ECL is measured as an allowance equal to
12-month ECL for stage 1 assets, or lifetime ECL for
stage 2 or stage 3 assets. An asset moves to stage
2 when its credit risk has increased significantly
since initial recognition. HKFRS 9 does not define
what constitutes a significant increase in credit risk.
In assessing whether the credit risk of an asset has
significantly increased the Group takes into account
qualitative and quantitative reasonable and
supportable forward-looking information.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future, and
other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the
end of the reporting period, that have a significant
risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities within the next
financial year, are discussed below.

(@) Allowance for inventories
The directors identify obsolete and slow-
moving inventory items that are no longer
probable for use in production or to be sold
out at the end of each reporting period. The
directors estimate the net realisable value for
such inventories based primarily on the latest
selling prices and costs of completion and
selling expenses estimated at current operation
conditions. The directors carry out an inventory
review on a product-by-product basis at the
end of each reporting period and makes
allowance for obsolete items.

Where the actual outcome in future is different
from the original estimate, such difference will
impact the carrying value of inventories and
allowance charge/write-back in the period in
which such estimates have been changed.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY
ESTIMATES (Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty
(Continued)

(a)

(b)

Allowance for inventories (Continued)
The allowance on inventories as at 31
December 2020 was approximately
HK$55,888,000 (2019: HK$49,735,000).

Impairment of property, plant and
equipment and right-of-use assets
Property, plant and equipment and right-of-use
assets are stated at costs less accumulated
depreciation and impairment, if any. In
determining whether an asset is impaired, the
Group has to exercise judgment and make
estimation, particularly in assessing: (1) whether
an event has occurred or any indicators that
may affect the asset value; (2) whether the
carrying value of an asset can be supported by
the recoverable amount, in the case of value in
use, the net present value of future cash flows
which are estimated based upon the continued
use of the asset; and (3) the appropriate key
assumptions to be applied in estimating the
recoverable amounts including cash flow
projections and an appropriate discount rate.
When it is not possible to estimate the
recoverable amount of an individual asset
(including right-of-use assets), the Group
estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-
generating unit to which the assets belongs.
Changing the assumptions and estimates,
including the discount rates or the growth rate
in the cash flow projections, could materially
affect the recoverable amounts.

Further, the cash flows projections, growth rate
and discount rate are subject to greater
uncertainties in the current year due to
uncertainty on how the COVID-19 pandemic
may progress and evolve and volatility in
financial markets, including potential disruptions
in the Group’s manufacturing operation.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e B R I R ()

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HEZ=-T-_TF+_A=+—HILFE

5. CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY
ESTIMATES (Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty
(Continued)

(b)

(c)

Impairment of property, plant and
equipment and right-of-use assets
(Continued)

The carrying amount of property, plant and
equipment and right-of-use assets as at 31
December 2020 were approximately
HK$519,816,000 (2019: HK$504,054,000) and
HK$248,214,000 (2019: HK$224,525,000)
respectively.

Impairment of trade and bills receivables
and contract assets

The management of the Group estimates the
amount of impairment loss for ECL on trade
and bills receivables and contract assets based
on the credit risk of trade and bills receivables
and contract assets. The amount of the
impairment loss based on ECL model is
measured as the difference between all
contractual cash flows that are due to the
Group in accordance with the contract and all
the cash flows that the Group expects to
receive, discounted at the effective interest rate
determined at initial recognition. Where the
future cash flows are less than expected, or
being revised downward due to changes in
facts and circumstances, a material impairment
loss may arise.

Due to greater financial uncertainty triggered by
the COVID-19 pandemic, the Group has
increased the expected loss rates in the
current year as there is higher risk that a
prolonged pandemic could lead to increased
credit default rates. The information about the
ECL and the Group’s trade and bills
receivables and contract assets are disclosed
in note 6(b).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY
ESTIMATES (Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty
(Continued)

(c)

(d)

Impairment of trade and bills receivables
and contract assets (Continued)

As at 31 December 2020, the -carrying
amounts of trade and bills receivables and
contract assets are approximately
HK$394,276,000 (2019: HK$340,524,000) (net
of allowance for doubtful debts of
approximately HK$590,000 (2019:
HK$343,000)), and HK$12,598,000 (2019:
HK$17,731,000) respectively.

Income taxes

The Group is subject to income taxes in
several jurisdictions. Significant estimates are
required in determining the provision for income
taxes. There are many transactions and
calculations for which the ultimate tax
determination is uncertain during the ordinary
course of business. Where the final tax
outcome of these matters is different from the
amounts that were initially recorded, such
differences will impact the income tax and
deferred tax provisions in the period in which
such determination is made. During the vyear,
approximately HK$31,295,000 (2019:
HK$14,569,000) of income tax was charged to
profit or loss based on the estimated profit
from operations.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e B R I R ()

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HEZ=-T-_TF+_A=+—HILFE

5. CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY
ESTIMATES (Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty
(Continued)

(d)

(e)

Income taxes (Continued)

Recognition of deferred tax assets, which
principally relates to deductible temporary
differences and tax losses, depends on
whether it is probable that future taxable profits
or taxable temporary differences will be
available against which deferred tax assets can
be utilised. In cases where the actual future
taxable profits or taxable temporary differences
generated are less than expected, a reversal of
deferred tax assets may arise, which will be
recognised in profit or loss for the period in
which such a reversal takes place. The
directors considered that, based on the profit
forecast of the group companies with tax
losses, it is probable that the tax losses can be
utilised in the foreseeable future. The profit
forecast required the use of judgement and
estimates.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets
with respect to tax losses as at 31 December
2020 was approximately HK$5,426,000 (2019:
HK$11,364,000).

Fair value of leasehold lands

The Group appointed an independent
professional valuer to assess the fair value of
the leasehold lands. In determining the fair
value, the valuer has utilised a method of
valuation which involves certain estimates. The
directors have exercised their judgement and
are satisfied that the method of valuation and
inputs used are reflective of the current market
conditions.

The carrying amount of leasehold lands as at

31 December 2020 was approximately
HK$230,480,000 (2019: HK$212,610,000).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY
ESTIMATES (Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty
(Continued)

)

Fair value of derivative component

As disclosed in note 25 to the consolidated
financial statements, the fair value of the
derivative financial instruments at the end of the
reporting period was determined using mark-
to-market approach and discounted cash flow
method. Application of discounted cash flow
method requires the Group to estimate the
prominent factors affecting the fair value,
including but not limited to, the assigned value
based on the current price of that instrument
and expected rate of return. Where the
estimation on these factors is different from
those previously estimated, such differences will
impact the fair value gain or loss of the
derivative financial instrument in the period in
which such determination is made.

The carrying amount of the derivative financial
liabilities as at 31 December 2020 was
approximately HK$1,341,000 (2019: Nil).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

wa MR R M (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HEZ=-T-_TF+_A=+—HILFE

5. CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY
ESTIMATES (Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

(Continued)

(g) Revenue and profit recognition
As explained in policy note 4(r), revenue from
sales of moulds is recognised when the quality
of moulds is accepted by the customers and
the customers can direct the Group to use
them for production. Certain contracts with
customers may include moulds and products,
and the Group only charges the customers for
the products and recovers the costs of moulds
through the sales of products. Since moulds
and products are distinct performance
obligations, transaction price of a contract
should be allocated to moulds and products
separately. In the allocation of the transaction
price to moulds, the Group has to make
estimation of the stand-alone price of moulds
and the products, and the quantity of the
products that the moulds can be ultimately
manufactured. Actual outcomes of revenue may
be higher or lower than estimated at the end of
the reporting period, which would affect the
revenue and profit recognised in future years as
an adjustment to the amounts recorded to
date.

During the vyear, approximately
HK$149,717,000 (2019: HK$163,588,000) of
revenue from moulds was recognised.

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of
financial risks: foreign currency risk, credit risk,
liquidity risk and interest rate risk. The Group’s
overall risk management programme focuses on the
unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to
minimise potential adverse effects on the Group’s
financial performance.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)

(a)

Foreign currency risk

The Group has certain exposure to foreign
currency risk as most of its business
transactions, assets and liabilities are principally
denominated in HK$, United States dollars
(*USD”) and Renminbi (“RMB”). The Group
currently does not have a foreign currency
hedging policy in respect of other foreign
currency transactions, assets and liabilities. The
Group monitors its foreign currency exposure
closely and will consider hedging significant
foreign currency exposure should the need
arise.

At 31 December 2020, if HK$ had weakened
0.5 per cent (2019: 0.5 per cent) against USD
with all other variables held constant,
consolidated profit after tax for the year would
have been approximately HK$1,324,000 (2019:
HK$1,040,000) higher, arising mainly as a
result of the foreign exchange gain on trade
and bills receivables and bank balances
denominated in USD, but partly offset by the
foreign exchange loss on trade payables
denominated in USD (2019: foreign exchange
gain on trade and bills receivables and bank
balances denominated in USD, but partly offset
by the foreign exchange loss on trade payables
denominated in USD). If HK$ had strengthened
0.5 per cent (2019: 0.5 per cent) against USD
with all other variables held constant,
consolidated profit after tax for the year would
have been approximately HK$1,324,000 (2019:
HK$1,040,000) lower, arising mainly as a result
of the foreign exchange loss on trade and bills
receivables and bank balances denominated in
USD, but partly offset by the foreign exchange
gain on trade payables denominated in USD
(2019: foreign exchange loss on trade and bills
receivables and bank balances denominated in
USD, but partly offset by the foreign exchange
gain on trade payables denominated in USD).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e B R I R ()

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HEZ=-T-_TF+_A=+—HILFE

6.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)

(a)

Foreign currency risk (Continued)

At 31 December 2020, if HK$ had weakened
5 per cent (2019: 5 per cent) against RMB with
all other variables held constant, consolidated
profit after tax for the year would have been
approximately HK$1,365,000 (2019:
HK$987,000) lower, arising mainly as a result of
the foreign exchange loss on trade and bills
receivables and bank balances denominated in
HK$ held by the subsidiaries operating in the
People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”), but
partly offset by the foreign exchange gain on
bank balances denominated in RMB held by
the Hong Kong subsidiaries (2019: foreign
exchange loss on trade and bills receivables
and bank balances denominated in HK$ held
by the subsidiaries operating in the PRC, but
partly offset by the foreign exchange gain on
bank balances denominated in RMB held by
the Hong Kong subsidiaries). If HK$ had
strengthened 5 per cent (2019: 5 per cent)
against RMB with all other variables held
constant, consolidated profit after tax for the
year would have been approximately
HK$1,365,000 (2019: HK$987,000) higher,
arising mainly as a result of the foreign
exchange gain on trade and bills receivables
and bank balances denominated in HK$ held
by the subsidiaries operating in the PRC, but
partly offset by the foreign exchange loss on
bank balances denominated in RMB held by
the Hong Kong subsidiaries (2019: foreign
exchange gain on trade and bills receivables
and bank balances denominated in HK$ held
by the subsidiaries operating in the PRC, but
partly offset by the foreign exchange loss on
bank balances denominated in RMB held by
the Hong Kong subsidiaries).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)

(a)

Foreign currency risk (Continued)

At 31 December 2020, if RMB had weakened
5 per cent (2019: 5 per cent) against USD with
all other variables held constant, consolidated
profit after tax for the year would have been
approximately HK$69,000 (2019: HK$870,000)
lower, arising mainly as a result of the foreign
exchange loss on trade payables of the PRC
subsidiaries denominated in USD, but partly
offset by the foreign exchange gain on trade
and bills receivables and bank balances of the
PRC subsidiaries denominated in USD (2019:
foreign exchange loss on trade payables of the
PRC subsidiaries denominated in USD, but
partly offset by the foreign exchange gain on
trade and bills receivables and bank balances
of the PRC subsidiaries denominated in USD).
If RMB had strengthened 5 per cent (2019: 5
per cent) against USD with all other variables
held constant, consolidated profit after tax for
the year would have been approximately
HK$69,000 (2019: HK$870,000) higher, arising
mainly as a result of the foreign exchange gain
on trade payables of the PRC subsidiaries
denominated in USD, but partly offset by the
foreign exchange loss on trade and bills
receivables and bank balances of the PRC
subsidiaries denominated in USD (2019: foreign
exchange gain on trade payables of the PRC
subsidiaries denominated in USD, but partly
offset by the foreign exchange loss on trade
and bills receivables and bank balances of the
PRC subsidiaries denominated in USD).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e B R I R ()

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HEZ=-T-_TF+_A=+—HILFE

6.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)

(b)

Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that a counterparty will
not meet its obligations under a financial
instrument or customer contract, leading to a
financial loss. The Group is exposed to credit
risk from its operating activities (primarily trade
and bills receivables) and from its financing
activities, including deposits with banks and
financial institutions, foreign exchange
transactions and other financial instruments.
The Group’s exposure to credit risk arising
from cash and cash equivalents is limited
because the counterparties are banks and
financial institutions with high credit-rating
assigned by international credit-rating agencies,
for which the Group considers to have low
credit risk.

Trade and bills receivables and contract
assets

Customer credit risk is managed by each
business unit subject to the Group’s
established policy, procedures and control
relating to customer credit risk management.
Individual credit evaluations are performed on
all customers requiring credit over a certain
amount. These evaluations focus on the
customer’s past history of making payments
when due and current ability to pay, and take
into account information specific to the
customer as well as pertaining to the economic
environment in which the customer operates.
Trade and bills receivables are due within 30
to 120 days from the date of billing. Generally,
debtors with balances that are more than 30
days past due or exceeding the credit limit
granted are requested to settle all outstanding
balances before any further credit is granted.
Normally, the Group does not obtain collateral
from customers.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

R E B R Y R ()

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE—_ZE-_ZF+-_A=+—HIFE

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)

(b)

Credit risk (Continued)

Trade and bills receivables and contract
assets (Continued)

The Group measures loss allowances for trade
and bills receivables and contract assets at an
amount equal to lifetime ECLs, which is
calculated using a provision matrix. As the
Group’s historical credit loss experience does
not indicate significantly different loss patterns
for different customer segments, the loss
allowance based on past due status is not
further distinguished between the Group’s
different customer bases.

The following table provides information about
the Group’s exposure to credit risk and ECLs
for trade receivables as at 31 December 2020:
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2020
—g-%x

Gross
Expected carrying Loss
loss rate amount allowance
FEHREE RE 4 E L oFisteidi
% HK$’000 HK$’000
‘ =307 4 F#ET F#ET
Current (not past due) R (R@E) 0.03% 340,782 102
1-30 days past due #HI1E30H 0.57% 41,856 239
31-90 days past due #HI31E90H 1.91% 8,069 154
91-180 days past due #HI91£180H 5.49% 535 29
More than 180 days past due B HIEAE180H 28.81% 229 66
391,471 590
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
B 3% R B 5 (4R)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HEZ=-T-_TF+_A=+—HILFE

nvi\

6.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)

(b)

6.

s ERERE (&)

Credit risk (Continued) (b) EEREE(E
Trade and bills receivables and contract gaﬁﬁiﬁﬂgﬂﬁ%ﬂlﬁﬁ'&”]éé( )
assets (Continued)
2019
—F-NF
Gross
Expected carrying Loss
loss rate amount allowance
TEEEIE R BB BB
% HK$'000 HK$'000
B FET FET
Current (not past due) IR (R HER) 0.03% 312,896 94
1-30 days past due #HI1230H 0.56% 24,376 136
31-90 days past due #HI31E90H 1.76% 3,138 55
91-180 days past due #HI91E=180H 5.10% 269 14
More than 180 days past due B HEAE180H 23.24% 188 44
340,867 343

Expected loss rates are based on actual loss
experience over the past 3 years. These rates
are adjusted to reflect differences between
economic conditions during the period over
which the historic data has been collected,
current conditions and the Group’s view of
economic conditions over the expected lives of
the receivables.

Due to greater financial uncertainty triggered by
the COVID-19 pandemic, the Group has
increased the expected loss rates in the
current year as there is higher risk that a
prolonged pandemic could led to increased
credit default rates.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)

(b)

Credit risk (Continued)

Trade and bills receivables and contract
assets (Continued)

Movement in the loss allowance account in
respect of trade and bills receivables during the
year is as follows:

R E B R Y R ()
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B ETE ()
(b) EEREE(E
EaﬁﬁﬁﬁW%E&Aﬁéé()

FREME S MREBERRFANER
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2020 2019
ot et 3 —T-hF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FEiT FET
At 1 January Rn—HA—H 343 229
Impairment losses recognised  4F I HE 2 B 6l B &5 18
for the year 236 117

Exchange difference fEH =5 11 (3)
At 31 December BR+=—A=+—H 590 343

The following changes in the gross carrying
amounts of trade and bills receivables and
contract assets contributed to the increase in
the loss allowance during 2020:

— increase in the expected loss rate due to
a forecast of the future poorer economic
condition, but partly offset by;

— decrease in specific write-off of bad debt
happened during the year, which lowered
the historical loss rate.

Other financial assets at amortised cost
The Group’s other financial assets at amortised
cost are considered to have low credit risk,
and the loss allowance recognised during the
period was therefore limited to 12-month
expected losses.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e B R I R ()

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HEZ=-T-_TF+_A=+—HILFE

6.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)

(c)

Liquidity risk

The Group’s policy is to regularly monitor its
liquidity requirements, its compliance with
lending covenants and its relationship with its
bankers to ensure that it maintains sufficient
reserves of cash and readily realisable
marketable securities and adequate committed
lines of funding from major financial institutions
to meet its liquidity requirements in the short
and longer term.

The following tables show the remaining
contractual maturities at the end of the
reporting period of the Group’s bank
borrowings and other financial liabilities, based
on undiscounted cash flows (including interest
payments computed using contractual rates or,
if floating, based on rates currently at the end
of the reporting period) and the earliest date
the Group can be required to pay.

Specifically, for bank loans which contain a
repayment on demand clause which can be
exercised at the bank’s sole discretion, the
analysis shows the cash outflow based on the
earliest period in which the entity can be
required to pay, that is if the lenders were to
invoke their unconditional rights to call the
loans with immediate effect. The maturity
analysis for other financial liabilities is prepared
based on the scheduled repayment dates.
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6.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)

R E B R Y R ()

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE—_ZE-_ZF+-_A=+—HIFE

B mERERE (&)

(c) Liquidity risk (Continued) (c) HENEEDE(E)
2020
k- k53
Maturity Analysis — Undiscounted cash outflows

HMB R - KRR LKE
More than 1 More than 2 Total
year but less years but less More than undiscounted
On demand Within 1 year than 2 years than 5 years 5 years cash outflows
—ENE WENL b3t
BREX —Ef  BEORWE EYREE AFENUE BEHHEE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET FET FET
Trade payables BHRNTE 15,828 173,491 - - - 189,319
Refund liabilties BHERE 240 - - - - 240

Other payables and accruals  HAERFER
et ER 3 59,860 - - - 50,863
Bank borrowings RITER 65,961 42,637 36,855 10,506 - 156,049
Lease liabilities HEERE - 9,622 6,962 2,330 - 18,914
82,032 285,610 43817 12,926 - 424,385
2019
“E-NF
Maturity Analysis — Undiscounted cash outflows

HEBANN - AARRERL
More than 1 More than 2 Total
year but less years but less More than  undiscounted
On demand ~ Within 1 year ~ than 2 years  than 5 years 5 years  cash outflows
—EpE MEL £ AFTB
RER -/ EIREE EIRLE RENE BeRnEs
HK$'000 HK$000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000
THBT T THT THBT T THT
Trade payables BHRNTE 20,082 179,732 - - - 200,014
Refund liabilties BHEE 241 - - - - 241

Other payables and accruals  HAtERFER

et ER 3 54,605 - - - 54,608
Due to associates e B AL AFE 1,305 - - - - 1,305
Bank borrowings RITER 147,146 58,417 35,577 24,507 - 265,647
Lease liabilties HERE - 6,000 4,108 1,971 - 12,079
177977 298,844 39,685 26,478 - 542,984

CECZEFR ERERZERAERAT
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e B R I R ()

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HEZ=-T-_TF+_A=+—HILFE

6.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)

(c)

Liquidity risk (Continued)

The following table summarises the maturity
analysis of bank borrowings with a repayment
on demand clause based on agreed scheduled
repayments set out in the loan agreements.
The amounts include interest payments
computed using contractual rates. As a result,
these amounts were greater than the amounts
disclosed in the “on demand” time band in the
maturity analysis contained above.

6. HIBEMERE (&)

(c) HBEEE (B
TREURRIR B 1R B REE R
RITIEFIRE R IHHEHINOHEER
BHENBHENT - ZFSEEREIE
BRINEFFEOFSHE - Bt - &%
EHRBEXMERHA DI PZ
EX|IEHEBEARENSERS °

Maturity Analysis — bank borrowings subject to a repayment on demand

clause based on scheduled repayments

MBS - RECERNMAREREERRDRTER

More than 1  More than 2 Total
On demand or year but less years but less More than undiscounted
within 1 year than 2 years than 5 years 5 years cash outflows
BERY —£lE MEUL KITH
—Fh  BLREE EIREE AENE REKHEE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FHET FET FET
31 December 2020 ot Jond- o1
+ZB=+-H
Bank borrowings RITER 40,006 18,192 10,910 - 69,108
31 December 2019 —E-hE
+ZA=t+-A
Bank borrowings RITER 148,078 - - - 148,078

The liquidity analysis for the Group’s derivative
financial instruments are prepared on agreed
scheduled settlements set out in the
agreements as the management of the Group
considers that the settlement dates are
essential for an understanding of the timing of
the cash flows of derivatives. The table has
been drawn up based on the undiscounted
contractual net cash inflows and outflows on
derivative instruments that settle on a net
basis. When the amount payable or receivable
is not fixed, the amount disclosed has been
determined by reference to the projected
interest rates as illustrative by the yield curves
at the end of the reporting period.

Annual Report 2020
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6.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)

(c)

(d)

R E B R Y R ()

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE—_ZE-_ZF+-_A=+—HIFE

B mERERE (&)

Liquidity risk (Continued) (c) REELEME(E)
Less than Between Between Over
1 year 1 and 2 years 2 and 5 years 5 years Total
—£EWE WMETLE
Dir—4 2 Z [ RAENE ast
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET FET
At 31 December 2020 WH-B-BfF
+-HA=+-H
Derivative — net fTETIR-%
(outflow)/inflow (iftH),/H/A
Cross currency interest %3 Y& B il R 45 ]
rate swap (1,557) (347) 306 - (1,598)
Interest rate risk (d) FIZ= = pE

The Group’s exposure to cash flow interest
rate risk arises from its bank deposits, short
term and long term borrowings. These deposits
and borrowings bear interests at variable rates
varied with the then prevailing market
condition.

The Group used interest rate swaps in order to
mitigate its exposure associated with
fluctuations relating to interest cash flows.

At 31 December 2020, if interest rates at that
date had been 10 basis points (2019: 10 basis
points) lower with all other variables held
constant, consolidated profit after tax for the
year would have been approximately
HK$21,000 lower (2019: HK$80,000 higher),
arising mainly as a result of lower interest
income on bank balances but partly offset by
lower interest expenses on bank borrowings
(2019: lower interest expenses on bank
borrowings but partly offset by lower interest
income on bank balances). If interest rates had
been 100 basis points (2019: 100 basis points)
higher, with all other variables held constant,
consolidated profit after tax for the year would
have been approximately HK$214,000 higher
(2019: HK$801,000 lower), arising mainly as a
result of higher interest income on bank
balances but partly offset by higher interest
expenses on bank borrowings (2019: higher
interest expenses on bank borrowings but
partly offset by higher interest income on bank
balances).

A SR BT & VR R L R A3 L8R AT
BR - EHREBER  REERE
BRERRESTISRRmES T
GEECYE

ZRER B AN R4 B DARUE B A BE 7
ERERFDHRR -

R-ZE-_FF+-_A=+—H " %7
ETEHAOBER (ZZE—NF : 10f@
22 MEMESHEZRIE
AIFRBHRESEESRFBRLLH
21,0008 L (ZZF — L& M
80,000/ )  EZ RN IBITHAHH
FIEWASH AL ATE S LS A
SRITERBOF BRI (=
T—NF  ARIBITIEROFEMAX
BARE D ESRRITES
K B AR D FT R EE) o MR X E
FF100ME £ B (= — NF : 1001EH
2 MEMABEEEERTE A
FRABBELA G R E MY
214,000 L (ZE— L F - B
801,000/ 7T) « T EHNIRITHEHA
FIEW AR - ST ES A
BITEROF S MG NATIEE (=
T—NF  ARIBITIEROFEMAX
S D ESHRITES
HY R B U A I FTIE 8Y) o

“ECEEFER EHERERERLA
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
A B R B ()

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HZ=—T-_TF+_A=+—HBILFE

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 6. HEEKRERE (&)
(Continued)
(e) Categories of financial instruments at () M+=-—A=+—H&@IAZR
31 December L]
2020 2019
—E-TF —ZT—hF
HK$’000 HK$'000
F#T FET
Financial assets: ERIEE :
Financial assets measured at R ENSRIEE
amortised cost 666,444 613,212
Financial assets measured at BAFER AR M2
FVTOCI: HEEEE :
Equity instruments fEAT A - -
Financial liabilities: SRAaE:
Financial liabilities at FVTPL BEATEFABRNSH
A&
— Derivative financial —TE2mIT A
instruments 1,341 —
Financial liabilities at amortised IR B SER ARGt HHE R A &
cost 402,880 524,304
() Fair values H 2FE

The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial
assets and financial liabilities as reflected in the

AEEZzEREENRSBRABBENRA
MFRR KRR REEHREHEER

consolidated statement of financial position ZFEZATFE-
approximate their respective fair values.

Ka Shui International Holdings Limited Annual Report 2020



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell
an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the
measurement date. The following disclosures of fair
value measurements use a fair value hierarchy that
categorises into three levels of inputs to valuation
techniques used to measure fair value:

Level 1 inputs: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or
liabilities that the Group can access
at the measurement date.

Level 2 inputs: inputs other than quoted prices
included within Level 1 that are
observable for the asset or liability,
either directly or indirectly.

Level 3 inputs: unobservable inputs for the asset or
liability.

The Group’s policy is to recognise transfers into and
transfers out of any of the three levels as of the date
of the event or change in circumstances that caused
the transfer.

A B R Y ()

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HHEZE =T —_ZTF+_A=+—HIFE

7. NEEF=E
NTEETHELEE AN ERNES
FRSRHESESUREEEBEES
FEER TXRBEFERAATESHTE
M ATF(E  BESEATENGETES
BN S B=ERT

F1E2E : AEEAREAHERSZHE
REEXBBERNERTSZ M
BOCREHE) -

F2EZE : FEMBERMENIN &
EXBEERIEEBERFH
228

FIEL2H: BESRBEITEEZZH -

AEENBRAEABEEHFAELLAY
BREFNEMN=EASHEARBHIBNR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
A B R B ()

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HZ=—T-_TF+_A=+—HBILFE

192

FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS

(Continued)

(@) Disclosures of level in fair value

7.

DNFEE (&)

(a) AFEFRFRBEE -

hierarchy:
Fair value measurement using: Total
AFEFEFA : oy
Description IEH Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 2020
E1E $20E $3E —B-FTF
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000  HK$’000
FEIL FETL FEL FEIL
Recurring fair value EEMATETE:
measurements:
Financial assets SRIEE
Leasehold lands: HELH
Commercial — Hong Kong [SE N - - 53,880 53,880
Commercial — the PRC BHE - TH - - 176,600 176,600
Total &3 - - 230,480 230,480
Financial liabilities EREHR
Cross currency interest rate RXEEH Ey
swap contracts 54 - 1,341 - 1,341
Fair value measurement using: Total
NEEFEMNA G
Description 1BH Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 2019
E1E H2E BB —FT-NF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T TET TET T
Recurring fair value EEMATETE:
measurements:
Financial assets SREE
Leasehold lands: HELH
Commercial — Hong Kong [SESl N - - 58,710 58,710
Commercial — the PRC BHE — HHE - - 153,900 153,900
Total &t — - 212,610 212,610

Ka Shui International Holdings Limited Annual Report 2020



7.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS

(Continued)

(b)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #H#E T -_TH&+_-_A=+—RILFEE

R E B R Y R ()

7. DV EFEGE)

Reconciliation of assets measured at (b)

fair value based on level 3:

RBEFE=EATEFENEEY

Properties
held for
own use —
Leasehold 2020
lands Total
FIEERYME —B-BEF
— HELm gt
HK$°000 HK$’000
F#Eir Fi&T
At beginning of year F4) 212,610 212,610
Recognised in profit or loss: RIBEPER
Depreciation charge for the FRRIEER AR R
year recognised in cost of — B RITH A A
sales and general and RZITEREZ
administrative expenses (6,495) (6,495)
Loss on revaluation of HETHEBSERZ
leasehold lands 518 (903) (903)
Recognised in other A E i 2 T W 2 P R
comprehensive income:
Exchange differences on BEBINEBEELEZ
translating foreign N =%
operations 10,188 10,188
Surplus on revaluation of HELHEBESEH B
leasehold lands 15,080 15,080
At end of year FR 230,480 230,480

CECZEFR ERERZERAERAT
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

A B R B A ()

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HEZ=-T-_TF+_A=+—HILFE

7. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS 7. AFEFE(E)
(Continued)
(b) Reconciliation of assets measured at (b) REBEFE=ZEAFEIENESEYH
fair value based on level 3: B : (48)
(Continued)
Properties
held for
own use —
Leasehold 2019
lands Total
FIEBRME —ET-NF
— HE+TH BET
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FET
At beginning of year F9) 209,770 209,770
Recognised in profit or loss: RIEEFER -
Depreciation charge for the FARBEER TR —MRE
year recognised in cost of THAXTERZINE
sales and general and (53
administrative expenses (6,197) (6,197)
Gain on revaluation of ME T EEEMN 2K
leasehold lands 313 313
Recognised in other TRE A 2 W E P HERR
comprehensive income:
Exchange differences on BREBIEBEEZER
translating foreign EH
operations (2,555) (2,555)
Surplus on revaluation of MELIMEBEER 2 BH
leasehold lands 11,279 11,279
At end of year FR 212,610 212,610

The total gains or losses recognised in other
comprehensive income are presented in surplus
on revaluation of leasehold lands and exchange
differences on translating foreign operations in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income.

The total gains or losses recognised in profit or
loss are presented in cost of sales, general
and administrative expenses and other
operating expenses and income in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss.

Ka Shui International Holdings Limited Annual Report 2020

R FL 2 M R 2 MM S
BT R A B R R R TSRS
2 REEEEG S RS RBES
SNEBEEZELEE2S) -

RiBas MR 2 MU B 1B T INAR
BRERTZHENAN - —RRITI
X REMEER RR@2S -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS
(Continued)

(b)

(c)

Reconciliation of assets measured at
fair value based on level 3:
(Continued)

All the gains or losses recognised in profit or
loss for the year were attributable to the
unrealised gain and loss of the leasehold lands
held at the end of the reporting period.

Disclosure of valuation process used
by the Group and valuation techniques
and inputs used in fair value
measurements at 31 December 2020:
The Group’s financial controller is responsible
for the fair value measurements of assets and
liabilities required for financial reporting
purposes, including Level 2 and Level 3 fair
value measurements. The financial controller
reports directly to the Board of Directors for
these fair value measurements. Discussions of
valuation processes and results are held
between the financial controller and the Board
of Directors at least twice a year.

Level 2 fair value measurements:

R E B R Y R ()

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE—_ZE-_ZF+-_A=+—HIFE

7. DV EFEGE)

(b) RBE=EBAFETENEEY
R : (48

FiIBERFARBEAERM RSN ER
HHRBERRAF2EEL TR
BER W REETE -

(c) R-B-TF+-_A=+—HF
SEMERANGEEFRATEE
SFEFRANGKESZREHN
i
AEENVBRER R BEREE
THENEERBENRFEFE
(BIEF2REIBATEFE) - M
RERLEATEAEERNESS
B MSREREEETFELW
WAR T R m R B R

Liabilities
Bf&
Valuation
Description technique Inputs 2020 2019
1HH HERZE 3 i -k 2 T NEF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FETT FET
Cross currency interest Discounted Interest rate 1,341 —
rate swap contracts cash flows Discount rate
TREENERHELH  HRBEDR M R BLIR &

For Level 3 fair value measurements, the Group
will normally engage external valuation experts
with the recognised professional qualifications
and recent experience to perform the
valuations.

BRE=BLTEHEME - AEE—
BRER AR RRE DA
EEROINEEETR -

“ECEEFER EHERERERLA
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
A B R B ()

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HZ=—T-_TF+_A=+—HBILFE

7. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS
(Continued)

(c)

Disclosure of valuation process used
by the Group and valuation techniques
and inputs used in fair value
measurements at 31 December 2020:
(Continued)

Level 2 fair value measurements:
(Continued)

Key unobservable inputs used in level 3 fair
value measurements are mainly adjusted
accommodation value/price per square metre/
square feet of the PRC and Hong Kong
leasehold lands estimated based on recent
market transactions.

7. DFEFEGE)

(c)

R-E-¥F+-HA=+—8BFK
EEFRGFANEEERFRAFEE
FFEFRGRANEERERZEH
W= (8)

F_EBATESE(E)

FZERAVEAEMRIETTER
ST BERBREFKONTER S
ARELREEEETHNCARE T
TOREE(ER BT K FHRE
1% o

Level 3 fair value measurements

Valuation
Description technique Unobservable inputs
EH fhERE FIRENZY

Range of comparables

tEER

Land use rights in

Direct comparison

Adjusted accommodation

Egongling Village, approach value per square metre
Pinghu Town, HEILEE taking into account the
Shenzhen City, differences from the
the PRC comparables with
RERYM AL respect to location,
ENRMLIERE size, tenure and yield
rate
BEEANE L
% mE ERFER
KaxzENFTHK
LHEREER

Land use rights in

Direct comparison

Adjusted price per square

Western District approach metre taking into
of Daya Bay, EEd v account the differences
Huizhou City, from the comparables
the PRC with respect to
PEBENTATERR location, size, tenure
MmERE and yield rate
BERANB I
B miE RRFER
KaxZENFTHK
BREER

Ka Shui International Holdings Limited Annual Report 2020

RMB803/square metre-
RMB2,296/square metre
(2019: RMB538/square metre
— RMB3,298/square metre)

BIARAREBTEGTAA
AR¥2,2067 (ZE—NE
BEAARARESBLEGT
FRARES2987T)

RMB602/square metre —

E=ZEBAFHEE
Fair value
AFE

Effect on
fair value for
increase of
inputs 2019
2yEme
AFENHE —Z-hE

HK$'000

FET

Increase 13,500 12,800
b=l
Increase 155,300 132,300
b=l

RMB850/square metre (2019:

RMBG670/square metre

— RMB683/square metre)
BIARAREO0QTEGTAA

AR¥B0TL (ZZ—NE -

THRARBOIOTES TR

KARB683TT)



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
A B R Y ()

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE—_ZE-_ZF+-_A=+—HIFE

7. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS
(Continued)

(c)

Disclosure of valuation process used
by the Group and valuation techniques
and inputs used in fair value
measurements at 31 December 2020:

7. DV EFEGE)

(c) R=TB-F|F+=-A=+-—-8B=FK
EERMRANGEERFRAFEE
STERRANGEREZRZEMH

W - (&)

fein

(Continued)
Level 3 fair value measurements E=EAFEER
(Continued)
Effect on
fair value for
Valuation increase of
Description technique Unobservable inputs Range of comparables inputs
Sy EmE
EH hERE FIREHEE T EEE ATEHHE
Land use rights in Wuhu  Direct comparison ~ Adjusted price per square  RMB147/square metre — Increase
City, Anhui Province, approach metre taking into RMB252/square metre (2019: 311
the PRC BERLBE account the differences RMB142/square metre
PEREAERTH from the comparables ~ RMB386/square metre)
TiERE with respect to FERRARBUTIIES TR A
location, size, tenure ARESL(ZE-NE  §
and yield rate FhkARE1TEETH
EERANB I KARK3867T)
% omE RREER
WREZENGTHA
TARER
Land use rights in Bilion  Direct comparison ~ Adjusted price per square  HK$11,114/square feet Increase
Centre, Kowloon approach feet taking into — HK$13,354/square feet Em
Bay, Hong Kong BERLBE account the differences  (2019: HK$13,025/square feet
BENEEERTLH from the comparables — HK$13,325/square feet)
iR with respect to location  FF AR NM4BETLEFFAR
and size 133548 (ZE—NF 5T
EEpB L 7S RA FR13026BTEBFHR
BERNGTHREH  1332687)
BER
Land use rights in Direct comparison  Adjusted price per square  HK$4,895/square feet — Increase
Kinetic Industrial approach feet taking into HKS6,057/square fest (2019: 371
Centre, Kowloon BERLBE account the differences HK$5,039/square feet
Bay, Hong Kong from the comparables — HK$7,525/square feet)

BENEEENTR
L IR R

with respect to location
and size

EALB L HERE
REZNHETHREH
BER

BEHR4BBETEFTFHR
6057TATL(ZF—NEF: §F
FRE00BTEFTHR
752608 70)

“ECEEFER EHERERERLA

(

i

)

Fair value

ATE

2020

k23
HK$'000
FET

7,800

40,340

13,540

2019

—Z-0%
HK$'000
FET

8,800

42,330

16,380
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
A B R B A ()

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HEZ=-T-_TF+_A=+—HILFE

7. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS
(Continued)

(c)

Disclosure of valuation process used
by the Group and valuation techniques
and inputs used in fair value
measurements at 31 December 2020:
(Continued)

Level 3 fair value measurements
(Continued)

The fair value of leasehold lands held for own
use located in the PRC and Hong Kong is
determined using direct comparison approach
by reference to recent sales price of
comparable leasehold lands on an
accommodation value per metre or price per
square metre/square feet basis, adjusted for a
premium or a discount specific to the quality of
the Group’s leasehold lands compared to the
recent sales. Higher premium for higher quality
land will result in a higher fair value
measurement.

During the two years, there were no changes in
the valuation techniques used.

8. REVENUE

(a)

Disaggregation of revenue

The Group is principally engaged in the
manufacture and sale of zinc, magnesium and
aluminium alloy die casting and plastic injection
products and components, trading of lighting
products and home appliances and provision of
motor vehicle repairing services.

Ka Shui International Holdings Limited Annual Report 2020
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(c)

8. WA

(a)

R-ZFZFF+ZA=+—BX
SEMERANGEEEFRATEE
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W - (&)
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8.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

REVENUE (Continued)

(a)

R E B R Y R ()

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE—_ZE-_ZF+-_A=+—HIFE

Disaggregation of revenue (Continued)
Disaggregation of revenue derived from the
transfer of goods and services over time and at
a point in time is as follows:

WA (%8)

(@) WAS#F (&)
AEERR —BRERENE —SHE
BEmERBEEWRADHOT

2020 2019
Timing of revenue recognition W\ & &2 B & ot et - —T-hEF
HK$’000 HK$'000
F#iT FET

Products transferred at a point A X —EF2i#E 2 E H
in time 1,318,378 1,359,558
Products transferred over time R —ERIEEERE R 150,859 194,806
1,469,237 1,554,364

Disaggregation of revenue from major products
are as follows:

KEXBERZBADIFNOT

2020 2019

Types of products ELER ot k- 3 —T-NF
HK$°000 HK$’000

FEiT FHET

Die casting products BEEm 615,084 788,935
Plastic injection products BRIETBER 660,551 557,870
Moulds HA 149,717 163,588
Others HAfb 43,885 43,971
1,469,237 1,554,364

—E-SEFER =nEERERaE27 199



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

=B B A R R MY R ()

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HZ=—T-_TF+_A=+—HBILFE

8. REVENUE (Continued)

(b) Transaction price allocated to the
remaining performance obligation for
contracts with customers
The transaction price allocated to the remaining
performance obligations (unsatisfied or partially
unsatisfied) as at 31 December 2020 and the

WA (%8)

(b) HEEEFESNNMHGRBLHEE
X 5 EH

R-ZZE-_TF+_A=1+—HBHEZE
FIRBEOET (REITHRIBHERETT)
K2 BB R R UL A 1Y 78 HE B [ 20

expected timing of recognising revenue as N
follows:
Sales of goods
HEES
2020 2019
i et 33 —E-NF
HK$’000 HK$'000
F#Er FET
Within one year —F A 4,697 3,855
More than one year —F U+ 39,578 171,096
44,275 174,951

9. OTHER INCOME

HAUWA

2020 2019

—T-EEF —E-hF

HK$’000 HK$’000

FET FET

Interest income on bank deposits HRATIE ZOR B A 816 747
Insurance compensation REEEE - 733
Rental income HEWA 586 502
Reimbursement from customers HEREE 4,898 12,212
Compensation from suppliers HERmHE - 68
Sales of scrap materials FERISHE 2,401 3,823
Sales of raw materials R R & 164 195
Government grants BT By & 13,596 7,881
Others EHAh 2,694 5,323
25,155 31,484

Government grants mainly comprised unconditional
support for subsidising the Group’s research and
development.
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10.

OTHER INCOME (Continued)

During the year, the Group recognised government
grants of approximately HK$8,607,000 in respect of
COVID-19 related subsidies, of which approximately
HK$5,933,000 relates to Employment Support
Scheme provided by the Hong Kong Special
Administrative Region Government.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

For management purposes, the Group’s operation is
currently categorised into seven (2019: six) operating
divisions — zinc, magnesium, aluminium alloy die
casting, plastic injection products and components,
trading of lighting products and home appliances as
well as provision of motor vehicle repairing services.
These divisions are the basis of the Group’s five
reportable segments. The Group’s reportable
segments are strategic business units that offer
different products. They are managed separately
because each business requires different technology
and different cost measurement.

The Group’s other operating segments include
trading of lighting products and home appliances and
provision of motor vehicle repairing services. None of
these segments meets any of the quantitative
thresholds for determining reportable segments. The
information of these other operating segments is
included in the ‘Others’ column.

Segment profits or losses do not include interest
income, corporate income, share of losses of
associates, gain on disposal of a subsidiary, gain on
disposal of associates, net fair value loss on
derivative financial instruments, corporate expenses,
finance costs and income tax expense.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

A B R Y ()

For the year ended 31 December 2020 B#EZ—_ZE_ZTF+_A=+—HIEFE

9. HMMWUWA (&)
FR - AEEBRREBEHFTLUERBSEL
9 IBL T 48 BY 4 49 58,607,000/8 7T - HA1 4
5,933,000/ 8 7L A& B R RI1T B R BUS 12 4
MIRFLEETE -

7 EBE

RTRERE  AEERAREBKD A EE(Z
T—NFNE) BERFI- - BRERE
GRE - BRTREMMETET - RAER
MREZEEDURRHITHRIERT
ZEHMFARAEBRLEZ2 H®N MERHE
B AREEZE2HFNMBA/RETRERZ
MR EGEM AR EREBRENR
Bl B NRKAGTET R HZEFDH
TyBLEIR o

10.

AEENHEMEED MEERAERNK
ARANE S URRHTEREB RS - 1t
ENWHYREIREAZHD BOEME
{EPIE - &2 B E R SN[ H Al ]

_ﬁ'ﬁ o
DECHEM K EENBEMNEWA - DE
=oEoBMENTSE LENB AR
&= HEBE QRS  fTEERIANA
FEFEE  PERAT - BMERERFEH
fisz o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
A B R B ()

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HZ=—T-_TF+_A=+—HBILFE

10. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 10. S EEH (E)
Information about reportable segment profit ERsBBRFNBEZELNOT :
or loss:

Magnesium  Aluminium
Zinc alloy alloy die alloy die Plastic
die casting casting casting injection Others Total

#a2BE S02EE BozBE  BRIE Hib L
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
FET FET FET FET FET FET

Year ended 31 December 2020 HE_—F-Ff

+ZA=+—-BHLEE
Revenue from external customers R ESNEE P HMA 111,498 417,495 112,859 783,500 43,885 1,469,237
Segment profit/(loss) PEEF/ (EE) 7,616 57,905 7,558 112,054 (13,697) 171,436
Depreciation and amortisation NEREH 9,981 25,845 5,442 43,406 4,424 89,098

Magnesium  Aluminium

Zinc alloy alloy die alloy die Plastic
die casting casting casting injection Others Total
HEeEE BAEEE hacEE  ZEBIE Hity FE

HK$'000  HK$000  HK$000 — HK$000  HK$000 — HK$'000
FHET TFHET TFHET TFHET TFHET TFHET

Year ended 31 December 2019  #HZE_-ZT—H%E

TZA=Z+-RIFE
Revenue from external customers R B5MEEF BIKA 158,745 496,168 140,665 714,815 43971 1,554,364
Segment profit/(loss) PHEF/ (BB) 6,294 41,272 5,706 71,101 (4133) 120,240
Depreciation and amortisation TEREH 5,220 29,837 5,199 45,159 1,189 86,604
Impairment losses on property, — ¥1% - B ERLERE
plant and equipment BB 722 - - 2,604 - 3,326
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
A B R Y ()

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE—_ZE-_ZF+-_A=+—HIFE

10. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

Reconciliation of reportable segment

revenue, profit or loss:

10.

2 EER (&)

SRS ~ BFINEIEZHER

2020 2019
—T-EE —E-hHF
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FEiT FET
Revenue KA
Total revenue of reportable segments 2 3Rk 262 B UL A 1,469,237 1,554,364
Unallocated amounts o EE%E - —
Consolidated revenue A UWA 1,469,237 1,554,364
2020 2019
—E-EF —E-NF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FEIT FET
Profit or loss RIS SR
Total profit of reportable segments Sy 8T 171,436 120,240
Unallocated amounts: THMEER -
Share of losses of associates BoMENEEIE (872) (810)
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary HE M B R RN 9 —
Gain on disposal of associates HEEBE QRN 350 —
Net fair value loss on derivative PESMIAENQTE
financial instruments FIB1E (2,128) -
Interest income B A 816 747
Finance costs A& B (6,840) (11,536)
Income tax expense Frisfimx (31,295) (14,569)
Corporate income ERA 144 293
Corporate expenses TEMAX (8,865) (7,608)
Consolidated profit for the year FNEEE = 122,755 86,762

“ECEEFER EHERERERLA
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

=B B A R R MY R ()

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HZ=—T-_TF+_A=+—HBILFE

10. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

Reconciliation of reportable segment

revenue, profit or loss: (Continued) (&
2020 2019
ot k- 3 —T-hF
HK$°000 HK$'000
F#&iT FET
Other material items — HiEXIEH
depreciation and amortisation — IEREE
Total depreciation and amortisation of 2 ¥} 7> 2B 48 I & K & 54
reportable segments 89,098 86,604
Unallocated amounts: THHEHA -
Depreciation of property, plant and TERAYE KER
equipment and right-of-use assets RERERAEEE
for corporate use e 2,314 2,179
Consolidated depreciation and REITE R
amortisation 91,412 88,783
Geographical information: WEEE :
Revenue
[N
2020 2019
—E-TH —E-NF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Hong Kong G 124,656 162,722
The PRC except Hong Kong P E (BABRRIN 611,992 636,311
Japan HR 8,763 16,969
USA EE 644,658 619,770
Others Hh 79,168 118,592
Consolidated total fra B 1,469,237 1,554,364

SHBEERE  WARLESOE A
g o

In presenting the geographical information, revenue is
based on the locations of the customers.

The Group’s non-current assets by geographical HARTPREINZHED S 2 IERBEER
areas are not presented as the aggregate amount of CRREBN B BRELN10% (ZE—N
the geographical segments other than the PRC is F:0R10%) FIAASEERBIZIDEZ
less than 10% (2019: less than 10%) of the Al o

aggregate amount of all segments.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
R E B R Y R ()

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE—_ZE-_ZF+-_A=+—HIFE

10.

SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

Revenue from major customers:

Zinc alloy die casting segment HESEENH
Customer a EPFa
Customer b EFDb

Magnesium alloy die HeeRES
casting segment
Customer ¢ EPc
Customer e ®Fe

Aluminium alloy die inG & Bisn &
casting segment
Customer a %FPa
Customer e EFe

Plastic injection segment BRI E
Customer b %Fb
Customer d ®Pd

REEBEERZMA :
2019
SE2N  —zoaf
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET T
47,744 73,381
48,913 37,432
41,285 46,611
271,510 338,475
40,245 71,554
- 9
51,774 65,901
637,751 560,592

“ECEEFER EHERERERLA
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
A B R B ()

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HZ=—T-_TF+_A=+—HBILFE

11.

12.

OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES AND 11, HLERIRKRA
INCOME
2020 2019
k- et - ZTE-NF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Allowance for inventories, net FEERE 4,093 15,868
Bad debts written off 122 BR W 8H 64 491
Inventories written off T & - 11,504
Impairment losses on property, plant #1% - 2 LR E 2
and equipment BB R - 3,326
Reversal of allowance on due from JE MBS N B SRR A 1B
an associate (1,799) -
Net loss on disposal of property, plant HE 3 « #E &
and equipment B FEE 1,507 4,956
Property, plant and equipment written #73 - # 22 K 5% & i 8
off 3,309 221
Loss/(gain) on revaluation of land T EEEMHEEERCER) 903 (313)
Net fair value loss on derivative MEEMIENRATE
financial instruments FEE 2,128 -
10,205 36,053
FINANCE COSTS 12. REKAR
2020 2019
—T-EE —TE-NF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FEiT FET
Interest expenses on lease liabilities A& & EH EFH X
(note 20) (H17#20) 651 408
Interest expenses on bank borrowings R 77 f& 2 A &5 5% 6,189 11,128
6,840 11,536
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
A B R Y ()

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE—_ZE-_ZF+-_A=+—HIFE

13. INCOME TAX EXPENSE 13. FIEHAX

2020 2019
—E-EH —T-NF
HK$’000 HK$'000
F#ET FET

Current tax — Hong Kong Profits Tax B Ef# 1A
— BBENEH

Provision for the year REFERE 12,150 16,920
(Over)/under-provision in prior years — @{EFE GBEEREE),/
BETR (529) 1,776

Current tax — Income tax outside BNERTIE — &AL

Hong Kong FR5 %t

Provision for the year KEZRHE 3,680 4,785

Over-provision in prior years MTFEHEERE (1,486) (3,727)
Current tax — PRC dividend BERTIE — ANFEHERE

withholding tax for the year TER 5,796 —
Deferred tax (note 34) RIETLIA (B 7734) 11,684 (5,185)
Income tax expense Fri8fim X 31,295 14,569
Under the two-tiered profits tax regime, the first EMRFFERENET  EEEKILHE
HK$2 million of assessable profits of qualifying group B 1A E K B 2008 8 7T I &R 5 0m FlR =
entity established in Hong Kong is lowered to 8.25% 8.25% (= EF—NF : 8.25%) * M200& %5
(2019: 8.25%), and assessable profits above HK$2 TTA LR ERTE N 2 TR R16.5% (=F
milion will be subject to the tax rate of 16.5% —NF 1 16.5%) c R EMER B LK
(2019: 16.5%). For the other Hong Kong established B AR - iR BRI A16.5%
subsidiaries, Hong Kong Profits Tax has been ZE-NF 16.5%) M EAE R EBNE
provided at a rate of 16.5% (2019: 16.5%) on the o

estimated assessable profits.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e B R I R ()

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HEZ=-T-_TF+_A=+—HILFE

13.

INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued)

Under the PRC Enterprise Income Tax (the “EIT”)
Law, the statutory tax rate for the Group’s
subsidiaries established and operating in Mainland
China is 25% (2019: 25%)).

Two of the Group’s subsidiaries registered in the
PRC are recognised as a High and New-technology
Enterprises which have been granted tax
concessions by local tax bureau and are entitled to
PRC EIT at concessionary rate of 15% during the
reporting period.

Income tax on overseas profit has been calculated
on the estimated assessable profit for the year at the
rates of taxation prevailing on the overseas countries
in which the Group operates.

According to the PRC EIT Law, withholding tax at a
rate of 10% would be imposed on dividend payment
relating to profits earned from year 2008 onwards to
foreign investors for the companies established in the
PRC. Such tax rate may be further reduced by
applicable tax treaties or arrangements.

Annual Report 2020

13.

FREHF X (&)
BEPRECERERE AEERPEKR
BER R B2 BN R ZEER X /R25%
(ZZ—N%F :25%) °

SEAETEZMAOMEHRBRRRRBER
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BOEREHATECEMSHER15%
MR EEE -

8 503 2 P18 B AR IR 47 P 1 T SR B
FAREEA B2 BN AR 2 RIHE
e
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13.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued)

The reconciliation between the income tax expense

R E B R Y R ()

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE—_ZE-_ZF+-_A=+—HIFE

13.

Fﬁ SRS ()
15 19 7 Sc 62 B 5% A A SR A BB A 1S 1R

and the product of profit before tax multiplied by the

Hong Kong Profits Tax rate is as follows:

ﬁ%‘?r%ﬁﬁﬁ?%%%ﬁ’ﬂ%ﬂ%ﬁﬂ? :

2020 2019
k- et 3 —T-hF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FETT FET
Profit before tax B 5% B4 A 154,050 101,331
Tax at Hong Kong Profits Tax rate at 12 & B RS E16.5%
16.5% (2019: 16.5%) (ZZ—NF : 16.5%)
SHEHEIE 25,418 16,720
Tax effect of expenses that are not A IS WG T E
deductible 4,484 6,526
Tax effect of income that is not BARBMBANR G E
taxable (5,002) (1,431)
Tax effect of temporary differences not 7k FE 3R & B 2= B F 1%
recognised za 1,680 (865)
Tax effect of share of loss of Bom e AR BE TG
associates 2 144 134
Tax effect of recognition of tax losses MR FAIRER 2 HI5EE
not previously recognised I E (4,589) (3,660)
Tax effect of tax losses not RERBBEBE MG E
recognised 1,083 5,068
Tax effect of utilisation of tax losses BNA LRI AER ZFIE
not previously recognised BECZE (3,643) (7,439)
Over-provision in prior years BAEFTEBERE (2,015) (1,951)
Over/(under)-provision for current year 7N fEFR%EEE, (B S
~E) (233) (1,405)
Tax effect of two-tiered tax rate AR B R 2 BT s & (165) (169)
Tax concession MG ER (4,046) -
Effect on deferred tax balance MEMEBERCEHIALE SR 2
resulting from a change in tax rate o 6,001 -
Tax effect of withholding tax arising BB A & LS,
from dividend payments/ AR IR v ) E A 2 TEIR
undistributed profits of PRC 2T E
subsidiaries 11,532 —
Tax effect of withholding tax arising B E A A XA FIBEA
from interest payment of a PRC BRI 2 M E
subsidiary 216 —
Tax effect of different tax rates of NI R v ¥
subsidiaries 2 430 3,037
Income tax expense Fri8fim = 31,295 14,569

“E_EFEFR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
A B R B A ()

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HEZ=-T-_TF+_A=+—HILFE

13. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued) 13. P8 ()
In addition to the amount charged to profit or loss, BREBERRINEN REFRREECHE
deferred tax relating to the revaluation of the Group’s T EGHZAEREERIECSEEMEEW

leasehold lands during the year has been charged to =TI o
other comprehensive income.
14. PROFIT FOR THE YEAR 14. FR=F
The Group’s profit for the year is stated after AEEBFRZHZFEFTA (AR TH&
charging/(crediting) the following: | :

2020 2019
—E-TEF —E-NF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Allowance for inventories, net (note (a) 7 & B #5218 (7 :7(a)) 4,093 15,868
Auditor’s remuneration = E RN & 1,917 1,800
Bad debts written off (note (a)) ZARMEE (B2 (@) 64 491
Cost of inventories sold (note (b)) BEEFEKAR
(K&t m)) 987,388 1,121,180
Loss/(gain) on revaluation of land T EEEHER
(note (a)) Ca A1) (B 7% (@) 903 (313)
Net fair value loss on derivative PTESRMTENAFE
financial instruments (note (a)) FIEE (K@) 2,128 —
Depreciation of property, plant and Y% eSS RERBInE
equipment 76,152 78,355
Depreciation on right-of-use assets FREEENE 15,260 10,428
Inventories written off FEMHE - 11,504
Impairment losses on property, plant  #1% - #4238 KR &R E
and equipment (note (a)) &5 18 (K5t @) - 3,326
Impairment losses on trade receivables & 5 & Y 7% I8 i (B 5 18 236 117
Net exchange loss (EPzIZ:y Ri= 12,710 429
Net loss on disposal of property, plant H &3 - # 2L MR
and equipment (note (a)) FEE (K@) 1,507 4,956
Property, plant and equipment written #)2 - 528 & 3% 18 Hifl £
off (note (a)) (Krit(a) 3,309 221
Other fees paid to the auditor of the iR R FAZ EiAD ~
Company HuBMH 277 357
Reversal of allowance on due from L NIRRT EE
an associate (note (a)) (Hit(a) (1,799) —
Research and development e RSN
expenditure 53,758 40,930
Notes: HtiE
(@) These amounts are included in other operating expenses and (@) ZEFHECHAEMEERST RKAR
Income.
(b) Cost of inventories sold includes staff costs and depreciation (o) EEFENABEEIRARNED

of approximately HK$307,168,000 (2019: HK$313,353,000),
which are included in the amounts disclosed separately
above and in note 15.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
A B R Y ()

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE—_ZE-_ZF+-_A=+—HIFE

15. EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSE 15. EERFAIFAX

2020 2019
—E-FTF —T-NF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FET

Employee benefits expense (excluding EE®RFHZ (TEIEES

directors’ emoluments): <) -
Salaries, bonuses and allowances %ﬁ% TEAL N & 8h 339,375 358,864
Retirement benefit scheme RIRTE R EH &I 3K
contributions 14,696 25,599
Other benefits HAb & 30,644 37,881
384,715 422,344
Five highest paid individuals hEamEHMAL
The five highest paid individuals in the Group during FALAEEN A ERaTWALTBEBERS
the year included two (2019: two) directors whose (ZE—NF MRB)EET BEMEFS
emoluments are reflected in the analysis presented in BRMFI6M AT - REEZE _i?¢
note 16. The emoluments of the remaining three +ZA=t—BLFEHRT=H(ZF
(2019: three) individuals for the year ended 31 F:ZRA)BRRTWATHBHSOT

December 2020 are set out below:

2020 2019

—E-FTHF —E-NF

HK$’000 HK$’000

F#iT FET

Basic salaries and allowances E R BN M 0F B 5,590 4,395

Discretionary bonus 1B TEAL 540 350
Retirement benefits scheme RIKEFF S

contributions 54 54

6,184 4,799
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

=B B A R R MY R ()

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HZ=—T-_TF+_A=+—HBILFE

15. EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSE

(Continued)

Five highest paid individuals (Continued)
The emoluments fell within the following bands:

B E &A% (&)
AEmEHMAL(E)
MeEN FIATEHE :

Number of individuals

A

2020 2019
—z-2s IECEV:

HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000
HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000

HK$2,500,001 to HK$3,000,000

1,000,001 L&
1,500,000 7©
1,500,001 T &
2,000,000 7T
2,000,001 L&
2,500,000/ 7T
2,500,001 8 L=
3,000,000 7T

During the year, no emoluments were paid by the
Group to any of these highest paid individuals as an
inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as

compensation for loss of office.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
A B R Y ()

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #H#E T -_TH&+_-_A=+—RILFEE

16. BENEFITS AND INTEREST OF

DIRECTORS AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE
OFFICER

(a)

Emoluments of directors
The emoluments of each director were as

follows:

Name of director

Fees

ESitz e
HK$'000

FET

Year ended 31 December 2020

BE-F-FE+-R=t+-8

16. ESRTHAHEN R =

EEie
BEFHOMESWT

(a)

Retirement

Salaries and  Discretionary benefits scheme
allowances bonus  contributions
RIER
atEIRR
HK$'000
FET

BREA
HK$'000
FET

HERER
HK$000
FET

N2

=

Total

&t
HK$'000
FET

Executive directors BiEs
Mr. Lee ThE - 3,098 820 18 3,936
Mr. WONG Wing Chuen EXREE - 1,665 441 18 2,124
Ms. CHAN So Wah RzEgt - 1,170 315 18 1,503
Independent non-executive directors BIERTEE
Professor SUN Kai Lit, Cliff ess, s BRI Ress - 200 - - - 200
Ir Dr. LO Wai Kwok $Bs, W, Jp EEBIB LT s8s, M, P 200 - - - 200
Mr. KONG Kai Chuen, Frankie (formerly STRIS %4 (R1fE/T8%)

known as Kong To Yeung, Frankie) 200 - - - 200
Mr. Andrew LOOK EREE 200 - - - 200
Total for 2020 ZRCDES 800 5,933 1,576 54 8,363

CECZEFR ERERZERAERAT
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

A B R B A ()

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HEZ=-T-_TF+_A=+—HILFE

16. BENEFITS AND INTEREST OF 16. EERTHEBENR A ()
DIRECTORS AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE
OFFICER (Continued)
(a) Emoluments of directors (Continued) () EEME (E
Retirement
Salaries and  Discretionary  benefits scheme
Fees allowances bonus contrioutions Total
RRET
Name of director e B HeREH WA FHEIER @it
HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$000 HK$ 000 HK$000
FiEr FET FiEr FET FiEr
Year ended 31 December 2019 BE-F-n1E+ZB=t+-8
Executive directors BITEE
Mr. Lee ThE - 3,008 360 18 3,476
Mr. WONG Wing Chuen BKREE - 1,665 200 18 1,883
Ms. CHAN So Wah (note j REEXL () - 900 140 14 1,054
Independent non-executive directors BIERTEE
Professor SUN Kai Lit, Cliff sss, Jo BB Fess o 192 - - - 192
Ir Dr. LO Wai Kwok $Bs, W, Jp ERBBL RGBS M, 192 - - - 192
Mr. KONG Kai Chuen, Frankie (formerly TR %4 (BITEIER)
known as Kong To Yeung, Frankie) 180 - - - 180
Mr. Andrew LOOK BERLE 193 - - - 193
Total for 2019 “E-NEF@ 757 5,663 700 50 7,170
Note: Wit

0] Ms. Chan So Wah was appointed as an executive
director of the Company on 1 April 2019.

There were no arrangements under which a
director waived or agreed to waive any
emoluments during the year (2019: Nil).

During the year, no emoluments were paid by
the Group to any of the directors as an
inducement to join or upon joining the Group
or as compensation for loss of office.

Ka Shui International Holdings Limited Annual Report 2020

() REEZLIN-_T-NFUA-AEE
ERARRZHITESE -

EERAFAMEFLRERFRER
EEAMESNLTH(CT-NEF &) -

FA-AREALEATAESME
AERMBARER N 2R EEK

BERWENNE -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

R E B R Y R ()

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE—_ZE-_ZF+-_A=+—HIFE

16. BENEFITS AND INTEREST OF
DIRECTORS AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE
OFFICER (Continued)

(b)

Emoluments of chief executive officer
Mr. Leung King Kwok, Godfrey SBS was the
chief executive officer of the Company from 23
July 2019 to 31 December 2020. On 31
December 2020, he resigned from his position
as chief executive officer and Mr. Lee will
temporarily take up the duties of chief
executive officer with support from the existing
senior management team of the Group until a
suitable candidate is appointed. The
remuneration of the chief executive officer for
the year ended 31 December 2020 is disclosed
as follows:

(b)

16. EFRITHAREN KA = ()

/

ITHHEREMNE

PR L EsBsR —E— NE+ A
Tt ZHE-ZE-ZEF+-A=1+—
BAERRRITHAE, R_T_ZTF
+ZA=+—8B  HEITREERL
TRAEEAEERKEEENIET
%H%%TE??E&(?@%%ZH&%F HE/REM
ZAEEANEARIL BHE_T-THF

+—A _+ HIEFEITRAR 2%
Ban T

Retirement
benefits
Salaries and scheme
allowances contributions Total
BREF
B B = RG FHEIfERR st
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000
F#T F#ET F#ET
Year ended 31 December 2020 HE_—F_-FTHF
+=-A=+—H
Mr. Leung King Kwok, Godfrey sBs 24l 5 4 sBs 2,560 18 2,578
Year ended 31 December 2019 BEz-_Z2—h#F
+=A=+—8
Mr. Leung King Kwok, Godfrey ses  Z2#K[EH % 4 sBs 826 9 335

“ECEEFER EHERERERLA
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

A B R B A ()

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HZ=—T-_TF+_A=+—HBILFE

16. BENEFITS AND INTEREST OF
DIRECTORS AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE
OFFICER (Continued)

(c) Directors’ material interests in
transactions, arrangement or
contracts
Save as disclosed in note 42 to the
consolidated financial statements, no significant
transactions, arrangements and contracts in
relation to the Group’s business to which the
Company was a party and in which a director
of the Company and the director’s connected
party had a material interest, whether directly or
indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at
any time during the year.

17. DIVIDENDS

16.

EERTHRABIEANR A (&)

Y

(c) EENXD  THIASHIHE
Kt

SREVINER G M IS ImR M 4200 - R
FRYFAEMAER - NREHER
VR EASEERHEERMARAE
EREBEATRNETERKREEERE
BEREGZNEARS THEA
e

2020 2019
—E-FTH —T-hF
HK$°000 HK$'000
F#T FET

2020 Interim dividend of HK1.0 cent —ZE_ZTFHHIRKE :

(2019: Nil) per ordinary share FREBA1.08
(ZE—NF 8\ 8,938 —
2019 Final dividend of HK2.0 cents  —ZE— A FERHIME :
(2019: 2018 Final dividend of HK3.5 &A% & @A%2.07% 1L
cents) per ordinary share —E-NF
—E-N\FRBPEE
B E AR S5 L) 17,875 31,282
26,813 31,282

Subsequent to the end of the reporting period, final
dividend in respect of the year ended 31 December
2020 of HKB.0 cents per ordinary share totaling
approximately HK$26,813,000 has been proposed by
the Board of Directors of the Company and is
subject to approval by the shareholders of the
Company at the forthcoming annual general meeting.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
A B R Y ()

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE—_ZE-_ZF+-_A=+—HIFE

18. EARNINGS PER SHARE 18. BRER
The calculation of the basic earnings per share is RERZBFIETIEE -

based on the following:

2020 2019
ot 3 5 —T—NF
HK$’000 HK$’000
F#ET FET
Earnings a7
Profit attributable to owners of the BRFTESRERRF Z
Company, used in the basic NEIERFE ARG
earnings per share calculation 123,991 88,705
2020 2019
—E-FF —E-NF
Number of shares Ry EE

Weighted average number of ordinary FR it EFIXEARZEF 2 M0
shares used in basic earnings per TE S 15 X 3 A A% 2

share calculation 893,761,400 893,761,400
No diluted earnings per share are presented as the HRARAREBEZEZZT_FTFR=_ZT—H
Company did not have any dilutive potential shares FT_A=T—BLFEREEMNELE
for the financial years ended 31 December 2020 and SERG BREEYEREEETR -
2019.
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19. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

19. W2 - HEENRE

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
A B R B A ()

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HEZ=-T-_TF+_A=+—HILFE

Furniture,
fixtures and
Leasehold Leasehold Plant and Computer office Motor  Construction
land Buildings  improvements machinery equipment equipment vehicles  in progress Total
fifh BERE
HELH Br HENERE  HERIE CERE REAZHRE RE ERIR @t
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000
FAT FiEr -2 FET T AT FAT FiEn -2
Cost or revaluation BAGEE
At 1 January 2019 RZF-nE-A-R 209,770 295,503 183418 669,242 10,231 16,486 8,483 6,010 1,389,143
Reclassfication due to adoption of AR FAER K%
HKFRS 16 EUE16T 2 BH
28 (209,770) - - - - = - - (209,770)
Transfer E2 - - 637 2,399 - - - 3,036) -
Additions RE - - 7,556 25,151 1,89 4,869 - 4,485 43,936
Disposal/wite off HE /s - - (391) (10,636) (281) (352 (322) (96) (12,078)
Exchange differences ERZE - (5,066) (3,236) (11,002) (104) (347) (64) (143) (20,052)
At 31 December 2019 and RZF-NE
1 January 2020 TZAZ+-BR
“2-%35-f-B - 290,437 187,984 665,064 1,741 20,656 8,097 7,200 1,191,179
Trangfer e - - 66 1941 - - - 2,007) -
Additions RE - - 13,604 39,700 266 5875 931 1,234 61,610
Disposal/wit off HE /i - - 2.991) (14,199) A 65) - - {17219
Exchange differences 3:5:31 - 19,473 13,385 45290 413 1,627 309 486 80,983
At 31 December 2020 i 3
TZA=1-R - 309,910 212,048 737,799 12,399 28,093 9,337 6913 1,316,499
Accumulated depreciation RitTERARE
and impairment
At 1 January 2019 RZF-nE-F-R - 78,365 121,636 395,296 7749 7 7,040 5,1% 622,988
Charge for the year ERik - 13,246 21,043 41,158 1,069 1,366 473 - 78,355
Disposal/wite off HE /s - - 67) (5,459) (260) [vall] (250) - (6,247)
Impairment RE - - 299 2,548 - 479 - - 332
Exchange difierences EiEHE - (1643) 2759 6530) (66) (137) (64) 99) 11,297)
At 31 December 2019 and RZE-NE
1 January 2020 TZA=T-Rk
Z2-3E-f-B - 89,958 140,152 421,019 8,492 9,208 7199 5,097 687,125
Charge for the year Erik - 12,636 19,292 39,944 1,164 2,662 565 - 76,152
Disposal/wite off HE /M - - (2.809) (9,028) (12 “n - - (11,890)
Exchange differences EizE - 6,825 8,893 28,055 251 642 %54 376 45,096
At 31 December 2020 RZTZEE
TZA=1-R - 109,318 165,534 485,990 9,895 12,455 8,018 5473 796,683
Carrying amount FEsE
At 31 December 2020 RZZZZE
T-R=1-H - 200,592 46,514 251,809 2,504 15,638 1,319 1,440 519,816
At 31 December 2019 RZE-NE
TZA=1-R = 200,479 47832 238,045 3249 11,448 898 2,108 504,054

Impairment of property,

plant and equipment

represents impairment on leasehold improvement,
machinery and furniture and fixture of a CGU without

any income forecasted in the foreseeable future.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
& B35 R M A (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HHEZE =T —_ZTF+_A=+—HIFE

20. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS 20. EHEEE
Leasehold Leased Office
lands properties  equipment Total
HELH HEYME BoERE st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000
TFET FET FET TFET
At 1 January 2019 RZZE-N¥—HA—H 209,770 11,749 - 221,519
Additions NE - 4,489 - 4,489
Depreciation e (6,197 (4,231) - (10,428)
Surplus on revaluation FAH 2 [ U 2 R 5R A
recognised in other EHAH
comprehensive income 11,279 - - 11,279
Gain on revaluation RIEREREE I
recognised in
profit or loss 313 — - 313
Exchange differences fENZR (2,555) (92) - (2,647)
At 31 December 2019 R-_T—-NF
+-A=+-H 212,610 11,915 - 224,525
Additions NE - 13,971 131 14,102
Adjustment for lease HEBWARE
modification — (229) - (229)
Depreciation e (6,495) (8,764) ) (15,260)
Surplus on revaluation FA B At 2 T U 55 TSR Y
recognised in other EHRAHR
comprehensive income 15,080 - - 15,080
Loss on revaluation RERHERANEMHER
recognised in
profit or loss (903) - - (903)
Exchange differences fENZR 10,188 711 — 10,899
At 31 December 2020 RZTZTF
+-A=+—H 230,480 17,604 130 248,214
The Group’s leasehold lands were revalued on 31 AEB v HEIHWIR_ZE—-—NEFREE

December 2019 and 2020 using the direct
comparison approach by reference to market
evidence of recent transactions for similar properties
by independent surveyors.

TEF+ A=+ -HABLASMZRE

BUHEZ2EMBRUMEZRORFE

BE -

RERBERAF
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

A B R B A ()

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HEZ=-T-_TF+_A=+—HILFE

20. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS (Continued)
The carrying amount of the Group’s leasehold lands
would have been approximately HK$49,168,000
(2019: HK$48,991,000) at 31 December 2020 had it
been stated at cost less accumulated depreciation
and impairment losses.

20. FAHEEE (&)
ERAREFAITE RREBEE R
T-TFE+-_A=Z+—H A£EEHE
0 E BRI (B 4 549,168,000/8 7L (—ZZE— A1
£F 1 48,991,00058 7T ) °

Depreciation expenses on right-of-use
assets

Interest expense on lease liabilities
(included in finance cost)

Expenses relating to short-term lease
(included in cost of sales and
general and administrative

2020 2019
—EB-FEF —E-NEF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FHETT FE&T
FREEENERX
15,260 10,428

HEABEMNERAX

(BT ARLERKAN) 651 408
HEHEEEM MY

GTAHERA R —R K

THHAX)

expenses)

86 2,248

Details of total cash outflow for leases is set out in
note 39(e).

For both years, the Group leases various offices
premises, factories, warehouses, staff quarters and
office equipment for its operations. Lease contracts
are entered into for fixed term of 2 months to 5
years. Lease terms are negotiated on an individual
basis and contain a wide range of different terms
and conditions. In determining the lease term and
assessing the length of the non-cancellable period,
the Group applies the definition of a contract and
determines the period for which the contract is
enforceable.

In addition, the Group owns several industrial
buildings where its manufacturing facilities are
primarily located and office buildings. The Group is
the registered owner of these property interests,
including the underlying leasehold lands. Lump sum
payments were made upfront to acquire these
property interests. The leasehold land components of
these owned properties are presented separately only
if the payments made can be allocated reliably.

Ka Shui International Holdings Limited Annual Report 2020

HEMRE R R ITHIINHIFE39(e)

RREFE AREHEZERIE K
FRE BIBEERBRAERBANE
B -HEANIIYMBEEAHMAMEARE
T - MEGRRIEMEBIER LR - B
BERTRER G - REEEEM R
BAAHMOMENRER  AEEERA
METERLETE A KRR ATTHHRE -

BEoN - NEBEEE S HEERGAAIE 2
TERERRMAERE - ARE/ZFY
XD (ERAEEEL ) 2EMESR
A o NEEE R ATE H — RIE A FRAEER
SEYE LS - (BETFH RN 5
SRR TEBE2IZEEENELHEE
T ERERD



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

21.

22.

R E B R Y R ()

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE—_ZE-_ZF+-_A=+—HIFE

CLUB MEMBERSHIP

HK$’000
FET

Cost
At 31 December 2019 and 2020

718

The Group’s club membership of HK$718,000 (2019:
HK$718,000) at 31 December 2020 is assessed as
having indefinite useful life because there is no time
limit that the Group can enjoy the services provided
by that club.

INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES
Particulars of the subsidiaries as at 31 December
2020 are as follows:

Place of
incorporation/
establishment and

22.

share capital/ registered

AEBR-_ZE-_ZTF+-_A=+—RHz®E
FresEEA718,0008 T (ZE—NF
718,000 L) ENF ERAEERAFERAF
B RARAEEZHZEAMRERS
Z A I AR )

RHBARINERE
R-E-_TF+_A=+—H WEAA
ZHBIT

Issued and fully paid up Percentage of ownership

interest/voting power/

Name operation capital profit sharing Principal activities
ERTRYR FE{EHES
&1 B REEHE Bx/#REX BRER/BFEHL TEEH
Direct Indirect
HE 1
Ka Shui (Holdings) Company Limited BVI US$36,909 100% - Investment holding
EhEEERAA REELEHS 36,909% 7T REER
Ample Wealth Developments Limited BVI US$1 - 100%  Investment holding
EERRERAA EBRTEHS 1% REER
Ka Fung Metal Manufactory Hong Kong HK$74,487,660 - 100%  Sale of plastic injection
Company Limited % 74,487,660/ 1T products and components
RECEHmMAERRLA HEZBTZEMRTHME
Ka Shui Manufactory Co., Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 - 100% Sale of zinc, magnesium and
EhEMARAR o 10,0007 7T aluminium alloy die casting

and plastic injection

products and components
HEF BREASEENZR

FEER NN

TECZEFR RHEREZEREARAA
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

A B R B A ()

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HEZ=-T-_TF+_A=+—HILFE

22. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

(Continued)

Place of
incorporation/
establishment and

22. RMYB BRI

Issued and fully paid up Percentage of ownership
share capital/ registered

interest/voting power/

I

\

5 (%)

Name operation capital profit sharing Principal activities
ERTREAR FE{EHES
Z% B REEHE KA/ #REx BRER/BHEHIL TEEH
Direct Indirect
HE 1
Ka Shui Technology (Huizhou) The PRC Registered capital - 100%  Sale and manufacture of
Company Limited™ F HK$430,000,000 magnesium alloy die casting
=R (EMN) ARAR & 78430,000,000 products and components
B HEREERASBEEMR
TE
Elegant Shine Investments Limited BVI US$1 - 100%  Investment holding
HEREERAA RBRLHES e REER
Ample Wealth Property Developments The PRC Registered capital - 100%  Inactive
(Huizhou) Limited* F HK$6,800,000 TEEHR
ZLWEFAEEMNBRAR #Hfff 4 776,800,000
B
Wing Yu (Far East) Industries Hong Kong HK$6,900,000 - 100%  Investment holding
Company Limited o 6,900,000/ 1T BRAEER
KR ER)EXERRA
Huizhou Wing Yu Metal and Plastic The PRC Registered capital - 100%  Provision of surface finishing
Manufactory Company Limited™ F HK$4,500,000 treatment services and sale
BTk AL EHERERAT & 74,500,000 and manufacture of zinc
BT alloy die casting products
and components
REXRARERERHEEREE
HEEBREMRTHM
Ka Yi Technology (Huizhou) The PRC Registered capital - 100%  Sale and manufacture of zinc
Company Limited™ F HK$20,000,000 and aluminium alloy die
FERZ(EMN BRAT & 7820,000,000 casting products and
BT components
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22.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
A B R Y ()

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HHEZE =T —_ZTF+_A=+—HIFE

(Continued)

INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

Place of
incorporation/
establishment and

22. RBRRWRE ()

Issued and fully paid up Percentage of ownership
share capital/ registered

interest/voting power/

Name operation capital profit sharing Principal activities
ERTREAR FE{EHES
Z% B REEHE KA/ #REx BRER BIEH TEEH
Direct Indirect
B 1
Ka Fung Industrial Technology (Huizhou) The PRC Registered capital - 100%  Sale and manufacture of
Company Limited™ F HK$132,000,000 products and components
FUTERREMARRR 4 78 132,000,000 with plastic contents
B HEREESEBHHZEMR
TEbt
Alphalite Company Limited Hong Kong HKS$1 - 100%  Inactive
RERAERAA 30 BT BEEH
Ka Shui Metal Manufactory (Shenzhen) The PRC Registered capital - 100%  Sale and manufacture of zinc,
Company Limited™ F HK$40,000,000 magnesium and aluminium
FheBEa(RI)BRAR & 7840,000,000 alloy die casting products
BT and component
HEREEH ERRASES
EmRTHHE
Alphalite Incorporation USA US$100 - 100%  Trading and marketing of LED
e 100%7T and plasma lighting
products
RELEDREMTRAERZE
HRTIGERE
Ka Shui (USA) Incorporation USA US$5,000 - 100%  Marketing of zinc, magnesium
el 5,000% T and aluminium alloy die

casting and plastic injection
products and components,
trading of LED and home
appliance products
ABERRTHETHE
EUARLEDEXERAZE
5

TECZEFR RHEREZEREARAA
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

A B R B A ()

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HEZ=-T-_TF+_A=+—HILFE

22.

INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

(Continued)

Place of
incorporation/
establishment and

22. RMIBRRIRE (&)

Issued and fully paid up Percentage of ownership
share capital/ registered

interest/voting power/

Name operation capital profit sharing Principal activities
ERTRYR FE{EHES
Z% B REEHE BE/EREE BRER/RFEHEL TEEY
Direct Indirect
HE 1
Kalok Technology Investment Limited BVI US$50,000 - 100%  Investment holding
REBNBERABRDA By e 50,000% 7T REZR
Wuhu Lenka Technologies Company Limited  The PRC Registered capital - 100%  Sale and manufacture of
(“Wuhu Lenka”)"* FE RMB50,000,000 magnesium alloy die casting
BB EIENBRERAA AMERARE products and components
(T#Mms=]) 50,000,0007C HERFERACERBERLT
s
Ka Shui Metal Company Limited Hong Kong HK$100,000 - 100%  Sale of magnesium alloy die
EheBERAR ) 100,000/ 7T casting products and
components
HEEASBEERRTHMN
Katchon Precision Holdings BVI US$1,000 - 70%  Investment holding
Company Limited EBRLHE 1,000 T REER
REREERARAT
Ka Shui Plastic Technology Hong Kong HK$1 - 100%  Research and development,
Company Limited N 1B trading of germ repellent
EREZBREERAR plastic related product
REZBEBERTEREE
Goodly Precision Industrial Limited Hong Kong HK$50,000 - 70% Investment holding
SMERIEARAE B 50,0007 7T REER
Goodly Precision (Suzhou) Industrial Limited  The PRC Registered capital - 70% Research, manufacture and sale
(“Goodly Suzhou”)** FE US$5,000,000 of plastic injection moulding
EMERTIEGM) BARAA FE & 45,000,000 and components of
(T2 A& ) e car-related products

Ka Shui International Holdings Limited Annual Report 2020
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22.

INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

(Continued)

Place of
incorporation/
establishment and

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

A B R Y ()

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HHEZE =T —_ZTF+_A=+—HIFE

22. RBRRWRE ()

Issued and fully paid up Percentage of ownership

share capital/ registered

interest/voting power/

Name operation capital profit sharing Principal activities
ERTRARE FElh L/
&% B REEHY BE/#REX RE#/BREHT TEEH
Direct Indirect
EE ifE:
Oiq?aer: Nlorthe? Ka Shuli_rLigthtd élloy The PRC Registered capital - 51%  Research and development and
echnology Company Limited”* . .
e wa N Eil
EEREL S ERaEA 2R B ‘ HMB12,000,000 trading of aluminium related
BRAT AfERARE products
12,000,0007C RIEBER HERES
Huiéhou Ka MLay NZ"" Material Technology  The PRC Registered capital - 70%  Inactive
ompany Limited** :
a3 - & TE
BB A EARAT i _ AMB1O000000 MR
1R E A A R 1,000,0007T
Ka ShUi AIumFiuT ;’Eachnology (Shenzhen)  The PRC Registered capital - 70%  Research and development and
ompany Limited** . .
= A0 T 4 (R — B
ERERE (R AR AT B ‘ HMB10,000,000 trading of aluminium related
AMERARS products
10,000,0007C RIEBER HERES
Pioneer Lead Global Enterprises Limited BVI US$1 — 100%  Investment holding
FRRHERERAT HEELHE  1%R FARR
=y fa s
Nobel Developrlmint Limited Hong Kong HKS$1 - 100%  Investment holding
EARRAELAT 5% e FARR
1Swhgélg‘gE Gﬁr;ﬁf&]l]ansport Gompany Limited  Hong Kong HK$10,000 - 70%  Repair and maintenance of
AR B 10,000/ ¢ motor vehicles for
commercial use
HERREEAE
9rien World International Limited Hong Kong HK$1 — 100%  Investment holding
ARARAELAT 5% e FARR
/ 11T
Ka Shui (Malaysia) Sdn. Bhd. Malaysia MYR1 - 100% Inactive
SRED 15RAERT EREY
# Registered as a wholly foreign-owned enterprise under the # BEPBERFMAIEBERE -
PRC law.
a Registered as a company with limited liability under the PRC B BEABERFMAEREEAA -
law.
* English translation of the name is for identification purpose * ATz BEEEAMEER -
only.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

)

B 3% R B 5 (4R)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HZ=—T-_TF+_A=+—HBILFE

22.

23.

INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES
(Continued)

As at 31 December 2020, the bank and cash
balances and restricted bank deposits of the Group’s
subsidiaries in the PRC denominated in RMB
amounted to approximately HK$138,112,000 (2019:
HK$162,361,000). Conversion of RMB into foreign
currencies is subject to the PRC’s Foreign Exchange
Control Regulations and Administration of Settlement,
Sale and Payment of Foreign Exchange Regulations.

INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES

22. RMIBRRIRE (&)

RZZE-ZZTF+_A=+—8 ££ER
FEZHBARIAARBENRITRIR
SEHREERGIRITHFER AL 138,112,000
BT (ZZT—NF 162,361,000/ 1) ° ¥
AR 53R 9N 78R 15 B A (O B B
&G R CHEBE - & BE M - BE & I8 4R )
1T

23. REBENTZRE

2020 2019
—E-FTH —T-hF
HK$’000 HK$’000
F#ET FHEIT
Unlisted investments: JEEMERE -
Share of net assets BoOFEE 8,691 9,973
Goodwill [EES - 632
8,691 10,605
Impairment losses VERIEN SR - (1,652)
8,691 8,953
The amounts due from/to associates are unsecured, FEUYFETESE A fﬁ( BAEER . 28K
interest free and repayable on demand. AT E KA ER

Impairment losses on investments in associates are
recognised as the Group expects that there will be
no future profit for certain associates.
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23.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

(Continued)

INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES

A B R Y ()

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE—_ZE-_ZF+-_A=+—HIFE

Details of the Group’s associate at 31 December

2020 are as follows:

23.

REEQNF2RE ()
R-EB_TEF+_A=t+—HAKEZH

BRBERT

Percentage of

ownership
Place of Issued and fully paid interest/voting
incorporation/ up share capital/ power/profit
Name registration registered capital sharing Principal activities
31 3-8
ERTRAR BRE#/
& it B BE/EREEX BHES  EEEH
Huizhou Intelligent Foundry The PRC Registered capital 46% Research and development,
Industry Light Alloy s RMB20,000,000 manufacture and trading of
Innovation Center Company HRERARE light alloy moulds
Limited" 20,000,0007T BasBEZHE £ER
BNAZERBEERRSS g5
BIFTH AR AT
* English translation of the name is for identification purpose * AT EEEREER -
only.
The following table shows, in aggregate, the Group’s TRV AEEUAEESTEAR A
share of the amounts of all individually immaterial EREEERE RN FE D SEBE
associates that are accounted for using the equity
method:
2020 2019
i et 33 —NEF
HK$’000 HK$'000
F#Er TFET
At 31 December: R+=—RA=+—8:
Carrying amounts of interests EmREE 8,691 8,953
Year ended 31 December: BEZ+=-HA=+—H
IEEE :
Loss from operations Pl =] (872) (810)
Total comprehensive income THE RSB (872) (810)
TECEHEFER EHEIRERERAF
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

n‘li\

B 3% R B 5 (4R)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HEZ=-T-_TF+_A=+—HILFE

23.

INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES
(Continued)

The Group has not recognised loss for the year
amounting to approximately HK$299,000 (2019:
HK$449,000) for Topanga Asia Limited (“Topanga
Asia”) and its subsidiary Topanga Technology
(Huizhou) Limited (“Topanga Huizhou”). The
accumulated losses not recognised were
approximately HK$748,000 (2019: HK$449,000).

As at 31 December 2020, the bank and cash
balances of the Group’ associates in the PRC
denominated in RMB amounted to approximately
HK$5,473,000 (2019: HK$6,531,000). Conversion of
RMB into foreign currencies is subject to the PRC’s
Foreign Exchange Control Regulations and
Administration of Settlement, Sale and Payment of
Foreign Exchange Regulations.

In the prior year, the Group held 38.9% interests in
Topanga Asia and Topanga Huizhou respectively and
accounted for the investments as associates. On 16
October 2020, the Group disposed of whole
interests in Topanga Asia and Topanga Huizhou to a

23.

REEQNF2RE ()

AEBRERYZZREERAE ([0
2D REWNBARY =R EM) BR
AE(ISmm82BM ) RFRZEIELY
299,000 7T (=& — fL £ : 449,000%
7_1) ° ﬂiﬁ@ o Z%n*)&ﬁ?gﬁjz{j748 0001%71:
(ZZF— R4 : 449,000 7T) °

N_E-FEF+-_A=+—08 A£ER
R B ERRIAARESEMNIETRIR
G 48 5 495,473,000 T (ZF — N F -
6,531,000/87T) ° i AR i BINEER
HRBACOMNES HHER) R(ERE - SRR
NEEERTE)ET -

RZRFEE AEESFEEDe=Z RS
Sn5 8N 38.9% e - WIANEE A FIIRE
HE CRIZEZTFETHIRA  AEBU
350,000 TRERE=THESI=Z LY
AN ERER RGBT IEEE

third party for proceeds of HK$350,000. This RAERZ  FTEWT
transaction has resulted in the recognition of a gain
in profit or loss, calculated as follows:
HK$’000
FET
Proceed of disposal HERE 350
Less: Carrying amount of 38.9% investment on the date & RAEEZEFEH 2 H
of loss of significant influence 38.9% % E R ERMAE -
Gain on disposal of associates k= np NI 350

Ka Shui International Holdings Limited Annual Report 2020



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

24.

25.

FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FVTOCI

R E B R Y R ()

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE—_ZE-_ZF+-_A=+—HIFE

24, BRNFEHFAEMEZERE 2SR

BE
2020 2019
—E-FTH —T-hF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FHETT F&T
Unlisted equity, at fair value BATEZIELTIRA - -
Impairment loss VERIEN SR - —

The investment was disposed upon disposal of a
subsidiary during the year ended 31 December 2020
(note 39(b)). At 31 December 2019, the investee
company has ceased business in previous years and
the management has made full impairment loss for
the investment.

DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

RELEZZE_FF+_A=F+—HIEFE "
R EEE R EH B QR KD E (KT
39b) RZE—NF+ZA=+—8 " #
BRERFTEREFNRIEBRERED
HILEIREEL 2 EURERIE -

25. FTEEmEsE
2020 2019
—E-FF —E—hF
HK$°000 HK$’000
F#EiT FEIT

Financial liabilities LRERE
Fair value of cross currency interest

rate swaps N{E

RNEEN X =

1,341 -

The cross currency interest rate swaps are measured
at FVTPL. The Group has entered into cross
currency interest rate swaps to sell EURO (“EUR”)
and buy RMB at fixed exchange rate and interest
rate. The fair value of the derivatives are determined
with reference to the EURIBOR plus a spread and
the market forward exchange rate at year end, and
the fixed forward rates stated in contracts.

The notional amounts of EUR cross currency interest
rate swaps are EUR2,770,000 (2019: Nil) and
EUR2,570,000 (2019: Nil) (equivalent to
approximately RMB43,256,000 in aggregate (2019:
Nil) at the date of inception of the swaps).

XX B8N R R IR A FE ABRR
B ARECFIURXEEM K= - LE
EERRMEHERT ([BT]) REAA
R¥E - TETANRFEDSEBRTRT
REXFEMEERFROMBSERBESE
AREHFIANETERMERMEE

B TIXXEEMNEXBEHNEZESEA
2,770,000 (=2 — N F : &) K
2,570,000BT (=2 — N4 « &) (RIEEET
A A XESEROARMEEA3,256,000
TL(ZE—NEFE #|)) -

TECZEFR RHEREZEREARAA
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

=B B A R R MY R ()

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HZ=—T-_TF+_A=+—HBILFE

26. INVENTORIES 26. &

2020 2019
—EB-EHE —E—NEF
HK$’000 HK$°000
FET FET
Raw materials RH R 56,568 50,420

Consumables supplies and SEFEMEERERZ I
spare parts 13,935 11,141
Work in progress RS 72,558 68,410
Finished goods SR B 93,493 135,721
236,554 265,692
Less: Allowance for inventories B FERE (55,888) (49,735)
180,666 215,957

27. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES 27. EZREBERIIE

2020 2019
—E-FF —ET-hF
HK$°000 HK$°000
FHET FET
Trade receivables B 5l sE 390,881 340,524
Bills receivables E R EWGRIE 3,395 —
394,276 340,524
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

A B R Y ()

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE—_ZE-_ZF+-_A=+—HIFE

27. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES 27. B REBERWIE (F)
(Continued)
The Group’s trading terms with customers are mainly $E@E51¥IE‘Z*%I§L‘M*E%EUE?? °
on credit. The credit terms generally range from 30 EEH—BNTHREE B&REI0E120H
to 120 days (2019: 30 to 120 days) after the end of —E-NF: 30:1205) t%%ﬁﬁm
the month in which the invoices issued. Each SIEEREE o A& BB BARESIAR(E]
customer has a maximum credit limit. The Group FEJ%Z RIE - ME ST R BRI ﬁ%
seeks to maintain strict control over its outstanding BZRWNETIE (NGBS EBEZHH8 R
receivables. Overdue balances are reviewed regularly RO IIAT
by the directors. The ageing analysis of trade
receivables, based on the invoice date, and net of
allowance, is stated as follows:
2020 2019
—E-EF —E-NF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FHET
0 to 30 days 0% 30H 173,159 127,728
31 to 60 days 31260H 108,461 95,767
61 to 90 days 612 90H 87,624 48,495
91 to 180 days 912180H 21,460 68,429
Over 180 days 180H LA I 767 448
391,471 340,867
Less: Allowance for bad and W EERRREECBE
doubtful debts (590) (343)
390,881 340,524
As at 31 December 2020, total bills received RZEBEZZEF+A=+—10 x&EEHE

amounted to approximately HK$3,395,000 (2019: Nil)
are held by the Group for future settlement of trade
receivables. The Group continues to recognise their
full carrying amounts at the end of the reporting
period. All bills received by the Group are with a
maturity period of less than one year.

At 31 December 2020, an allowance was made for
estimated irrecoverable trade and bills receivables of
approximately HK$590,000 (2019: HK$343,000)
(note 6(b)).

BEWER Z K% 43,395,0008 T (=
T—NF &) AERKE S EWRIED
BE  AEBRREPREERDE DI
FREE - AEERENAATE 2K M EI H 8

PRI AR—4F -

R-E-_ZTFE+-A=+—8 " gEst+
AT e E 5 & U RIB (R B A

590,000/ T (=&
(FfzE6(D)) °

— FLEE : 343,000 7T)

TECZEFR RHEREZEREARAA
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

=B B A R R MY R ()

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HZ=—T-_TF+_A=+—HBILFE

27. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES 27.

(Continued)
The carrying amount of the Group’s trade receivables
are denominated in the following currencies:

BEZREBRWE (&)

AEBEEZREKANKREEATINERE
SifE -

2020 2019
—E-FF —ZT—hF
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FET
HK$ BT 30,663 24,558
UsD ESN 271,186 258,918
RMB AR 88,483 56,259
Others Hfb 1,139 1,132
391,471 340,867
Less: Allowance for bad and o R MR BR 2 BB
doubtful debts (590) (343)
390,881 340,524
28. CONTRACT ASSETS/CONTRACT 28. AHBEE AHNER
LIABILITIES
2020 2019
Contract assets BEHEE —ECEF —E—NEF
HK$°000 HK$°000
FHET FET
Arising from sales of moulds RIEAHEMEL 1,472 4,639
Arising from sales of OEM products ~ HIRREREEREE
FrES 11,126 13,092
12,598 17,731
Receivables from contracts with BBV IEREERFE 1558
customers within the scope of HENEREFPZEHZ
HKFRS 15, which are included in JEWFHE (BERIEEE S
“Trade and bills receivables” R EEERGRIANA) 394,276 340,524
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28.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

CONTRACT ASSETS/CONTRACT
LIABILITIES (Continued)

Amounts relating to contract assets are balances due
from customers under sales contracts that arise
when the Group’s unconditional right to receive
payments from customers is not in line with (i) the
progress of the OEM products manufactured under
contracts in which the Group has enforceable right to
payment; and (i) when the control of moulds which
are billed together with products is passed to
customers. Payment for OEM products and moulds
is not due from the customer until the products are
delivered to the customer, and therefore a contract
asset is recognised (i) over the period in which the
OEM products are manufactured and (i) when the
control of moulds are transferred to the customers to
represent the Group’s right to consideration for the
services transferred to date.

The significant decrease in the contract assets
balance in current year is the result of the decrease
in OEM products manufactured and moulds transfer
to customers during the reporting period.

The amount of contract assets that is expected to be
recovered after more than one year is approximately
HK$1,414,000 (2019: HK$4,546,000).

BHER

Contract liabilities

A B R Y ()

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HHEZE =T —_ZTF+_A=+—HIFE

28. AWEE EHNEE &)
HENWEENBNEBEREATHE ZER
HFRE P YRR 2 BRI DA TN A — 2 () 1%
AEBEERABHNTRZANMEE
MRBEEEEMAOER - K () EREMR—H
BHRECRARGREBRERFE B
ERREFPHEAONER RERRXHN
BEPE BURREPHNRREEREER N
BANFIR - Bt - SHEERN TERH
ROEREREEMEEDRR MR
HAEtlgEBsgr (AAKECER LS
RIERF K ERE) B -

AEEANEERBABRIZHNRSE
HALENRREREERUARERLER
MREPRAE -

FEH—FUEATRENENEESEAD
1,414,000 70 (—Z — JL4HF : 4,546,000/

Billings in advance of performance
obligation arising from sales of OEM
products

HERRBREERELRE
HEERTEURIA

JL) °
2020 2019
—E-FF —E—-NF
HK$°000 HK$'000
F#EiT FETT
14,031 1,005

Contract liabilities relating to sales of OEM products
and moulds are balances due to customers under
contracts with customers. They arise because
customers pay deposits for the sales contract which
exceed the revenue recognised to date.

HEREREERMEAFEEMEENEGH
BERENEPAXNAMGER - ZNA
DREPXNNBEERNZEBRBRESD
FER VU A -

TECZEFR RHEREZEREARAA
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

A B R B A ()

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HEZ=-T-_TF+_A=+—HILFE

28. CONTRACT ASSETS/CONTRACT
LIABILITIES (Continued)
The significant increase in the contract liabilities
balance in current year is mainly due to the increase
in advances received from customers during the
reporting period.

Movements in contract liabilities:

28.

BREE ERNEE &)

AEEANABEBRAIRIEN T2EMH
KR E BB &2 B IR DN AT B -

2019
ot et 3 ZT-NF
HK$’000 HK$’000
F#ET FHET
Balance at 1 January arising from HERZBREERN —A
sales of OEM products —B & 1,005 1,500
Decrease in contract liabilities as a FNERBAEBHENEE
result of recognising revenue during A BEET AR ALE
the year was included in the &R
contract liabilities at the beginning of
the period (1,005) (1,500)
Increase in contract liabilities as a HERIBREERREA
result of billing in advance of sales WBURREERANARE
of OEM products and moulds o 13,898 1,016
Effect of foreign exchange rate fEXSan e
changes 133 (11)
Balance at 31 December Rt A=1+—HB#&& 14,031 1,005

29. RESTRICTED BANK BALANCES AND

BANK AND CASH BALANCES

The Group’s restricted bank balances represent
balance of approximately RMB1,659,000 (equivalent
to approximately HK$1,975,000) (2019:
RMB1,656,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$1,835,000)) to guarantee for the use of natural
gas in the PRC.

The cash at banks earned interest at floating interest

rates ranging from 0.001% to 0.35% per annum
(2019: 0.001% to 0.35% per annum).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
A B R Y ()

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE—_ZE-_ZF+-_A=+—HIFE

29. RESTRICTED BANK BALANCES AND 29. BRBIBRITERERBITIRBESLERS
BANK AND CASH BALANCES (&)
(Continued)
The carrying amounts of bank and cash balances are RITRBH AR ZEEHBENATIEEAE
denominated in the following currencies: A7 :
2020 2019
k-t 3 3 —ZT-NF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
HK$ BT 27,172 47,144
UsD ETT 89,714 51,465
RMB AR 137,230 160,977
EUR BT 2,499 2,610
Others EAh 71 56
256,686 262,252
Under the PRC’s Foreign Exchange Control R B B CONE S HIMER B R CHETE - BE
Regulations and Administration of Settlement, Sales RINSEEERE)  AEBERTAEAE
and Payment of Foreign Exchange Regulations, the BEMARINEZEFRIRITAARE K1
Group is permitted to exchange RMB for foreign s o

currencies through the banks that are authorised to
conduct foreign exchange business.

30. TRADE PAYABLES, OTHER PAYABLES 30. ESEMNMIE  HttENRIERE
AND ACCRUALS FEH
The ageing analysis of trade payables, based on the B ZEMNFIBERNE BB ENERER DT
date of receipt of goods, is as follows: O
2020 2019
fant- k- o3 3 —E-NF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
0 to 30 days 0zZ30H 80,976 68,995
31 to 60 days 31260H 53,568 63,427
61 to 90 days 61E90H 31,903 38,897
91 to 180 days 91£2180H 14,456 32,385
Over 180 days 1808 LA E 8,416 5,310
189,319 209,014

—E-SEER EnERERAREAE 235



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
A B R B ()

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HZ=—T-_TF+_A=+—HBILFE

30. TRADE PAYABLES, OTHER PAYABLES 30. BESEIRIE - Hitt BN RIBERE
AND ACCRUALS (Continued) STER(E)
The carrying amount of the Group’s trade payables AEBESENREBEERBEATIEE R
are denominated in the following currencies: B
2020 2019
—E-FTF —T-hF
HK$’000 HK$000
F#iT FET
HK$ BT 4,418 4,232
usb ET 28,368 33,034
RMB AR 156,533 171,689
Others Eih - 59
189,319 209,014
Other payables and accruals comprise the following: HMENRBERETERBEUTSIE
2020 2019
—E-EF —E-NF
HK$’000 HK$000
F#iT FET
Accrued wages et T & 41,012 33,745
Other accrued expenses EMETER 36,924 30,662
Other payables o FE T 5RIR 21,157 18,165
99,093 82,572
The carrying amount of the Group’s other payables AEBEMENFERETERANETDE
and accruals is denominated in the following R TEETIE
currencies:
2020 2019
—E-FF —E-NF
HK$’000 HK$'000
F#ET FET
HK$ BT 8,400 6,536
usD ETT 10,173 10,804
RMB ARE 80,520 65,232
99,093 82,572
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31.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

BANK BORROWINGS
The analysis of the carrying
borrowings is as follows:

amount of bank

R E B R Y R ()

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE—_ZE-_ZF+-_A=+—HIFE

31. SRITER

RITERNEREESFTOT -

2020 2019
- e £ 2 “ENF
HK$’000 HK$'000
F#ET FET
Current liabilities nREBAE
Portion of bank borrowings due for AR —FRE|HEERTT
repayment within one year B E D 40,997 201,532
Portion of bank borrowings due for AR —FEFHEENBES
repayment after one year which REREERROBRITE
contains a repayment on demand ER 1D
clause 65,961 —
106,958 201,532
Non-current liabilities REERE
Portion of bank borrowings due for AR —FEIHHEENTE
repayment after one year which do &R B RIEE IEFRAIRTT
not contain repayment on demand B E D
clause 46,500 57,514

The interest-bearing bank borrowings, including the
bank borrowings repayable on demand, are carried at
amortised cost. None of the portion of bank
borrowings due for repayment after one year which
contain a repayment on demand clause that is
classified as current liabilities is expected to be
settled within one year.

AERTER (BRARZREENRITE
B THR BN G BR - B —F IR B HE
BENESREBREEGRFESBRRDA
BRIRITEREOERBAR —FRFE -

TECZEFR RHEREZEREARAA
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

=B B A R R MY R ()

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HZ=—T-_TF+_A=+—HBILFE

31. BANK BORROWINGS (Continued)

At 31 December 2020, interest-bearing bank loans

were due for repayment as follows:

31.

fﬁ‘dﬂﬁm( )

E’\Jaﬁ%ﬁﬁﬂ%?ﬂlﬂ?i

B HER

2020 2019
ket J- o — N4
HK$’000 HK$'000
F#ET FET
Portion of bank borrowings due for B —FRZIHEENETT
repayment within one year B Ek 40,997 201,532
Portion of bank borrowings due for AR —FERHEERE (BS
repayment after one year which RESREEIET) OVIRTT
contains a repayment on demand BRGED (4 E(a))
clause (note (a)):
After 1 year but within 2 years —FZREMFZA 55,280 -
After 2 years but within 5 years MEFEZEERF2ZA 10,681 —
65,961 —
Portion of bank borrowings due for —~ ZBR—FE R HEE (T
repayment after one year which do SR EREZE K30 IR
not contain a repayment on TEZIHG -
demand clause:
After 1 year but within 2 years —FZBREMFZA 36,000 33,514
After 2 years but within 5 years MFEZBERFZA 10,500 24,000
46,500 57,514
153,458 259,046
Note: oz
(@) The amounts due are based on the scheduled repayment (@) HERFBEBDRER BEAENETERAAE

& WEREMREREEGRROPZE -

dates set out in the loan agreements and ignore the effect
of any repayment on demand clause.
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31.

BANK BORROWINGS (Continued)

Six (2019: Six) of the bank facilities are subject to
the fulfilment of covenants relating to certain of the
Group’s financial ratios, as are commonly found in
lending arrangements with financial institutions.
Should the Group breach the covenants, the drawn
down facilities would become repayable on demand.
In addition, some of the Group’s bank loan
agreements contain clauses which give the lenders
the right at their sole discretion to demand
immediate repayment at any time irrespective of
whether the Group has complied with the covenants
and met the scheduled repayment obligations.

The Group regularly monitors its compliance with
these covenants, and is up to date with the
scheduled repayments of the bank borrowings.
Further details of the Group’s management of
liquidity risk are set out in note 6(c). There have been
no breaches in the financial covenants of any
interest-bearing borrowings for the years ended 31
December 2019 and 2020.

All bank borrowings were arranged at floating interest
rate. The range of the interest rates per annum at 31
December 2020 was as follows:

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

R E B R Y R ()

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE—_ZE-_ZF+-_A=+—HIFE

31. RITER (&)
NMEA(ZE-AF: AE)RTRERES
NEBEBARBEETHMBL R 225 #%
EREBENESBEBRI L2 ERL
RHR - WARBEER BRI AEFA
ZBMEREARERER - I AEEE
TRITEFBREZGERTFETERAZE
BB RERE I EREN B EE BN
MERAREEEETRERTAEEE

REBTHEENERHZET  TiRE
RITERNBETCERPELERE - A&EH
TR nBEcRBOE - SHBHENNE
Bc) REZ-_ZE—NER_ZE_ZTF+_
A=+—RALFE BEERTWTEE
2B IEE o

FARTRADEEBFIEH S - RZF
—BF+-A=+- AHENEBENT -

2020 2019
—EC¥H —ZE-NF
% %

per annum per annum
5% 55

FBFIE

Floating rate

2.0% to 2.5%

3.5% to 5.3%

TECZEFR RHEREZEREARAA
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
A B R B ()

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HZ=—T-_TF+_A=+—HBILFE

31.

32.

BANK BORROWINGS (Continued) 31. RITER(E)
The carrying amount of the bank borrowings is RITEREABEN T E® B EEN
denominated in the following currencies:
2020 2019
=t =t 1 —2-hEF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
HKS BT 108,447 259,046
EUR E 45,011 -
153,458 259,046
BANKING FACILITIES 32. RITEE

As at 31 December 2020, the Group had available
banking facilities of approximately HK$719,755,000
(2019: HK$658,000,000), which were utilised to the
extent of approximately HK$153,000,000 (2019:
HK$259,000,000). These banking facilities were
secured by corporate guarantees provided by the
Company and certain subsidiaries of the Group.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
A B R Y ()

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE—_ZE-_ZF+-_A=+—HIFE

33. LEASE LIABILITIES 33. HEE®E

Present value of
Minimum lease payments minimum lease payments

RERERE REEEMRRRE

2020 2019 2020 2019
—g-os [REEUEN —w-2x BREIPE
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
izl ¢ BREZA  TET

Within one year —FR 9,622 6,000 9,033 5,681
In the second to fifth years, £ _-FEZERF
inclusive (BIEERWE) 9,292 6,079 9,045 5,908
18,914 12,079 18,078 11,589
Less: Future finance charges  Jil : KRB EE (836) (490) N/A N/A
Present value of lease HEFRERE
obligations 18,078 11,589 18,078 11,589
Less: Amount due for B ZEARBIEER
settlement within 12 Z R (B RRA
months (shown under MEBEERET)
current liabilities) (9,033) (5,681)

Amount due for settlement +ZEABEHENZ

after 12 months EQE] 9,045 5,908
Lease payables are denominated in following EREEDZETIEMEE
currencies:

2020 2019

—T-EF —E-hF

HK$’000 HK$'000

F#EiT FET

HK$ BT 1,464 3,437
UsD E 4,710 4,864
RMB ARHE 11,904 3,288
18,078 11,589
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
A B R B A ()

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HEZ=-T-_TF+_A=+—HILFE

34. DEFERRED TAX ASSETS/LIABILITIES 34. BEBBEE BE
The following is the deferred tax liabilities and assets NTAAEERFEFACERNELEHRIES
recognised by the Group, and the movements BEREEEMABAED

thereon, during the year:

Deferred tax liabilities: FRIERIBEE
Temporary
differences

Undistributed  Accelerated Revaluation of  arising from

earnings of tax leasehold the adoption
subsidiaries  depreciation lands of HKFRS 15 Others Total
ROEEMH
HEER
MEBAT HELH F15RELEZ
APRkZEBH MERERE BEEMR ErER Hit @zt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET FET FET FET FHET
At 1 January 2019 RZZ-N&—A—8 - - 35,811 969 - 36,780
Charge to other comprehensive RERXEEEM2 TR
income for the year - - 3,714 - - 3,714
Charge/(credit) to profit or loss RERZE/(ANR) ZEE
for the year (note 13) (Hiit13) - 62 (2,149) 264 9% (1,729)
Exchange differences EHEZE - - (523) (25) () (549)
At 31 December 2019 and RZZE-hF
1 January 2020 +-A=+-8k
ZZ-T45-fF-H - 62 36,853 1,208 93 38,216
Charge to other comprehensive RERNZEZAMEE
income for the year Wz - - 1,389 - - 1,389
Effect on deferred tax balances Hit 2 ER R R g
resulting from a change in tax rate EERBERNTE
in other comprehensive income - - (12,880) - - (12,880)
Effect on deferred tax balances BabEn B HETEHE
resulting from a change in tax rate BRNTE(Wit13)
in profit or loss (note 13) - - 1,390 - - 1,390
Charge/(credit) to profit or loss RERZE/(NR) ZEH
for the year (note 13) (Hii£13) 5,952 (62) (765) (873) (15) 4,237
Exchange differences ERES - - 2,220 38 - 2,258
At 31 December 2020 RZBZZF
+ZA=+—H 5,952 - 28,207 373 78 34,610
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
B 7% R R Mt 5 ()

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE—_ZE-_ZF+-_A=+—HIFE

e

==

34. DEFERRED TAX ASSETS/LIABILITIES 34, ELEFEBEEE BE (8)
(Continued)
Deferred tax assets: RIEFIEE E
Fair value
adjustment on
Decelerated tax business
Tax losses depreciation combination Total
£RaHN
BEBR REBERE ATEAE @zt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET
At 1 January 2019 RZE-NE—A—H 7,938 141 215 8,294
Credit/(charge) to proft or loss ~ RERAE/ ()28
for the year (note 13) (H5213) 3,660 (141) (63) 3,456
Exchange differences EHES (234) - ) (237)
At 31 December 2019 and RZZ-N&
1 January 2020 TZAZT-BR
—E-R¥-A-H 11,364 - 149 11,513
(Charge)/credit to profit or loss ~ RER(Z8)/AEEEE
for the year (note 13) (H:213) (1,790) 381 (37) (1,446)
Effect of change of tax rate to ~ MERMEHEHBEFEN
profit or loss for the year PR3
(note 13) (4,611) - - (4,611)
Exchange differences EREE 463 - 9 472
At 31 December 2020 R-ZZ_ZF
+-A=t-8 5,426 381 121 5,928
The following is the analysis of the deferred tax MEEHMBIRARME - BEWRIBLARR (K
balances (after offset) for consolidated statement of HE) 2t
financial position purposes:
2020 2019
=t B —F-NnF
HK$’000 HK$’000
F#EIT FEIT
Deferred tax liabilities FERIEEE 28,803 26,852
Deferred tax assets BELEFRIEEE (121) (149)
28,682 26,703

“ECEEFER EHERERERLA
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

nvi\

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HEZ=-T-_TF+_A=+—HILFE

B 3% R B 5 (4R)

34. DEFERRED TAX ASSETS/LIABILITIES

(Continued)

At 31 December 2020, the Group had unused tax
losses of approximately HK$236,338,000 (2019:
HK$277,499,000) which are available for offset
against future profits. A deferred tax asset has been
recognised in respect of approximately
HK$36,175,000 (2019: HK$45,458,000) of such
losses. No deferred tax asset has been recognised in
respect of the remaining tax losses due to the
unpredictability of future profit streams. Included in
the unrecognised tax losses are losses of
approximately HK$23,006,000 (2019:
HK$19,363,000) which may be carried forward
indefinitely. The remaining unrecognised tax losses of

34.

ELERRERE BE (&)

R-E-_TF+_A=+—H XAEBEF
7 B) F3 B 18 5 18 49236,338,0008 7T (= F
— L8 1 277,499,000 7T) AT £t 1 85 K K
HA o BLEZEEEA36,175,0008 T (=&
— L4 ¢ 45,458,000/ 70) R A ELETR A
BE BERZSEHNGHREBEEERAE
ERIBEEE  BARERERTEFRA
*%%ﬁﬁ%ﬁ#@%%%ﬁ%m@mo
# (==& — L& £ 19,363,000/ 7T)

ﬁ@%ﬁ%o%szﬁmmE%Em
177,157,000 Tt (=& — L & :
212,628,000 L) 1§ N5 A B HA -

approximately HK$177,157,000 (2019:
HK$212,628,000) will expire as follows:

2020 2019
—EC-TH —hF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FEir FHET
Year 2020 —EFTF - 11,051
Year 2021 —E-—F 9,074 29,172
Year 2022 —E-— 136,202 139,239
Year 2023 —E=4F 9,926 10,215
Year 2024 —EOF 18,163 16,119
Year 2025 _7_£¢ 2,040 —
Year 2034 = HF - 926
Year 2035 —F _£¢ - 2,955
Year 2036 ZE=REF 1,752 2,951
177,157 212,628

At 31 December 2020, the aggregate amount of
temporary differences associated with undistributed
earnings of subsidiaries operated in the PRC is
approximately HK$32,835,000 (2019:
HK$229,772,000). No liability has been recognised in
respect of these temporary differences because the
Group is in a position to control the timing of
reversal of the temporary differences and it is
probable that such differences will not be reversed in
the foreseeable future.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
SE U B EmR M A (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 B#EZ—_ZE_ZTF+_A=+—HIEFE

35. SHARE CAPITAL 35. A
Number of
Shares Amount
& E &8
HK$'000
FET
Authorised: JETE ¢
Ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each SREECAB LT ER
At 1 January 2019, 31 December RZE—NF—H—HB"
2019, 1 January 2020 and —E-NF+=A
31 December 2020 =+—H -ZZ=ZZF
—A—BER-_Z_ZTF
+=—A=+—H 5,000,000,000 500,000
Issued and fully paid: EEITRHRE
Ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each FRAEECAABITH L @R
At 1 January 2019, 31 December RZE—-—NF—H—H"
2019, 1 January 2020 and —E-NF+=A
31 December 2020 =+—H -ZTZZF
—A—BN-_ZE-ZTF
+=—A=+—H 893,761,400 89,376

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities
in the Group will be able to continue as a going
concern while maximising the return to stakeholders
through the optimisation of the debt and equity
balance. The Group’s overall strategy remains
unchanged from the previous year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of cash
and cash equivalents and total equity, comprising
issued share capital, reserves, retained earnings and
non-controlling interests. The directors of the
Company review the capital structure on a semi-
annual basis. As part of this review, the directors
consider the cost of capital and the risks associated
with each class of capital. Based on
recommendations of the directors, the Group will
balance its overall capital structure through the
payment of dividends, new share issues and share
buy-backs as well as the issue of new debt or the
redemption of existing debt.

AEBEEBHERUBRAEEAN 2 BB
BRI EEE  MishERABEBELE
BREDEHRINEHRADE - AEBEE
EREEFRR -

AEBENEARBEEREMNERAREA
B REmEE  BREETRA  #FiE R
BRANEIFERERS - ARREFEFF
mEf —IREARE o NEITRNE - EFE
BEARARBBERERNAR - RE
EENER  ARERERRMNEE - %7
R EERDIARBETHERLERR
BEE BATFHEEBEALRE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
A B R B A ()

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HEZ=-T-_TF+_A=+—HILFE

35.

SHARE CAPITAL (Continued)
The net debt to equity ratio at the year end is as
follows:

35. BRAN(4&)

RELNBEFREERLENT

2020 2019

—E-FHE —T-NF

HK$’000 HK$’000

F#ET FET

Debt (note (a)) BE (Wit @) 171,536 270,635
Less: Restricted bank deposits B BREIRITFE R (1,975) (1,835)
Bank and cash balances RITRE S &5 (256,686) (262,252)

Net debt BEFHE (87,125) 6,548
Equity (note (b)) Wz (K73 b)) 1,179,308 1,007,955
Net debt to equity ratio BEFEMAEREX N/AF#E A 0.6%

Notes:

(a) Debt is defined as bank borrowings and lease liabilities as
detailed in notes 31 and 33 to the consolidated financial
statements.

(b) Equity includes all capital and reserves of the Group.

The only externally imposed capital requirements for
the Group are (i) in order to maintain its listing on the
Stock Exchange it has to have a public float of at
least 25% of its shares; and (i) to meet financial
covenants attached to the interest-bearing
borrowings. The Group receives reports from major
shareholders and other connected persons on any
changes in shares held by them to ensure the
continuing compliance with the 25% limit throughout
the year. As at 31 December 2020, 34.12% (2019:
29.64%) of the shares were in public hands. There
have been no breaches in the financial covenants of
any interest-bearing borrowings as at 31 December
2019 and 2020.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
A B R Y ()

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE—_ZE-_ZF+-_A=+—HIFE

36. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 36. RATBBMRRAERRFEE
AND RESERVES MOVEMENT OF THE
COMPANY
(a) Statement of financial position of the (@) AFATHBRAR
Company
2020 2019
—ET-FEF —E-NF
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
B at FETT FET
Non-current assets EREBEE
Investments in subsidiaries REERRIMIEE 466,940 466,940
Current assets REEE
Prepayments, deposits and FERRIE  Ee Rk
other receivables H b pE U FRIE 226 231
Bank and cash balances WITRIR 2 368 117
594 348
Current liabilities REBBEE
Other payables and accruals £ fth & Z 18 &
ETE R 3 20
Due to subsidiaries AL ENGIE S 164,273 135,951
Financial guarantee contracts B BERALH AR
liabilities 5,783 15,089
170,059 151,060
Net current liabilities RBERETFE (169,465) (150,712)
NET ASSETS HEFE 297,475 316,228
Capital and reserves BARRGHE
Share capital [N 89,376 89,376
Reserves s 36(b) 208,099 226,852
TOTAL EQUITY i 297,475 316,228
Approved by the Board of Directors on 29 REFGN_ZE-_—F=A=-+NH
March 2021 and are signed on its behalf by: B WA TEEFREREE
Lee Yuen Fat Wong Wing Chuen
FimEE =ik
Director Director
EFE o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

=B B A R R MY R ()

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HZ=—T-_TF+_A=+—HBILFE

36. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 36. ARTBHMBEMRRAREFHEEELE (F)
AND RESERVES MOVEMENT OF THE
COMPANY (Continued)
(b) Reserves movement of the Company (b) AATIZHEEEE
Share Retained
premium profits Total
B ipits(E REEF il 5
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET
At 1 January 2019 RZZE—NE—A—H 204,650 43,801 248,451
Dividend paid BERERE - (31,282) (31,282)
Profit for the year F R 7 - 9,683 9,683
At 31 December 2019 RZZE—NF
+-A=+—8H 204,650 22,202 226,852
At 1 January 2020 RZZE-TF—H—H 204,650 22,202 226,852
Dividends paid BT E - (26,813) (26,813)
Profit for the year F s - 8,060 8,060
At 31 December 2020 RZZEZTF
+-A=+—H 204,650 3,449 208,099
37. RESERVES 37. f#E
(a) The Group (a) E&KE

The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the
movements therein are presented in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income and consolidated

statements of changes in equity.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

37. RESERVES (Continued)

(b) Nature and purpose of reserves

U]

(1)

(i)

Share premium

Share premium represents premium
arising from the issue of shares at a price
in excess of their par value per share.
Under the Companies Law of the
Cayman Islands, the funds in the share
premium account of the Company are
distributable to the shareholders of the
Company provided that immediately
following the date on which the dividend
is proposed to be distributed, the
Company will be in a position to pay off
its debts as they fall due in the ordinary
course of business.

Merger reserve

The merger reserve represents the
aggregate of (i) the nominal value of the
shares issued by Ka Fung Metal
Manufactory Company Limited on 18
January 2005 in exchange for the
business of Ka Fung Metal Manufactory,
an unincorporated partnership established
in Hong Kong and controlled by Mr. Lee;
and (i) the nominal value of the shares
issued by the Company in exchange for
the entire shareholdings of Ka Shui
(Holdings) Company Limited.

Capital reserve

The capital reserve represents (i) the
amount of minority interests in Ka Fung
Metal Manufactory Company Limited and
Ka Fung Metal Manufactory acquired by
the Group; (i) the adjustment of non-
controlling interest arising from further
acquisition of the equity interest up to
79.7% in Topanga Asia and up to 100%
in Wuhu Lenka during the year ended 31
December 2015; and (jiii) the adjustment
of non-controlling interest arising from the
deemed disposal of Topanga Asia.

A B R Y ()

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HHEZE =T —_ZTF+_A=+—HIFE

s (&)

(b) fEEZHEEREH
() Bxfpiaf®

BiaENERRESNERE
BER)BRZ TR M E £ /R
B -REFEHERBE K
RA DR BRANES A
DIERTARAIRE - HEREE
REEZEDIRZAE  ARQF
BABERENEENABEREKERE
R HAET

(i) EHEE
BHHERIE A T RIRRYARM : ()
FLTBEMBARIATN
ZERF-ATN\B BB
EEBHEMM (—HIFRRRDE
EMAKZEE R EFEX
S WHFFRAEES]) ZEBM
BITHRMEE - R ARE R
BREhEBEARAFNEH
Bt B ITRIA D EME ©

(i) BARFEE
ERFBERICSERERES
BRAHmERAFEEZZEE
B 5 R D BROAR SR A 25 M) BURE
(IWEE-_ZE—HF+ A
T+ —HIEFERE - FSWE
YR EET9.T% N E R Z S
1009% f% 8 M 22 A4 2 FEE R i 2
R R RIEHES 5=
8 B IR R i s 2 T EE o

249



250

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e B R I R ()

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HEZ=-T-_TF+_A=+—HILFE

37. RESERVES (Continued)

(b)

Nature and purpose of reserves
(Continued)

(i)

(iv)

v)

Capital reserve (Continued)

During the year ended 31 December
2020, the adjustment of non-controlling
interest arising from further acquisition of
the equity interest up to 79.7% in
Topanga Asia was transferred to retained
earnings upon the disposal of Topanga
Asia.

Foreign currency translation reserve
The foreign currency translation reserve
comprises all foreign exchange
differences arising from the translation of
the financial statements of foreign
operations. The reserve is dealt with in
accordance with the accounting policies
set out in note 4(d)(iii) to the
consolidated financial statements.

Statutory reserve

The statutory reserve comprises the PRC
statutory reserve fund which is non-
distributable.

As stipulated by the relevant laws and
regulations for foreign investment
enterprises in the PRC, the Company’s
PRC subsidiaries are required to transfer
10% of their profit after taxation
calculated under PRC accounting rules
and regulations to the statutory reserve
fund, until the accumulated total of the
statutory reserve fund reaches 50% of
their registered capital. The statutory
surplus reserve fund can be used to
make up prior year losses or applied in
conversion into capital.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
A B R Y ()

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE—_ZE-_ZF+-_A=+—HIFE

37. RESERVES (Continued)

(b)

Nature and purpose of reserves
(Continued)

(vi)

(vii)

Land revaluation reserve

The land revaluation reserve has been set
up and is dealt with in accordance with
the accounting policies adopted for
leasehold lands in note 4(f) to the
consolidated financial statements.

Financial assets at FVTOCI reserve

The financial assets at FVTOCI reserve
comprises the cumulative net change in
the fair value of financial assets at
FVTOCI held at the end of the reporting
period and is dealt with in accordance
with the accounting policy in note 4(m) to
the consolidated financial statements.

38. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS

(a)

Share Option Scheme

Pursuant to a resolution passed in the annual
general meeting of the Company held on 19
May 2017, a new share option scheme (“2017
Scheme”) was adopted.

37. f#fE (&)

(b)

EEzHERBH (&)

(vi)

(vii)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e B R I R ()

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HEZ=-T-_TF+_A=+—HILFE

38. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (Continued)

(a)

Share Option Scheme (Continued)

The purpose of the 2017 Scheme is to (i)
motivate the eligible participants to optimise
their performance and efficiency for the benefit
of the Group; and (i) attract and retain or
otherwise maintain ongoing business
relationship with the eligible participants whose
contributions are, will or expected to be
beneficial to the Group. Eligible participants of
the 2017 Scheme include (i) any director,
employee, consultant, professional, customer,
supplier, agent, partner, adviser of or
contractor to the Group or a company in which
the Group holds an interest or a subsidiary of
such company (the “Affiliate”); or (i) the trustee
of any trust the beneficiary of which or any
discretionary trust the discretionary objects of
which include any director, employee,
consultant, professional, customer, supplier,
agent, partner, adviser of or contractor to the
Group or an Affiliate; or (i) a company
beneficially owned by any director, employee,
consultant, professional, customer, supplier,
agent, partner, adviser of or contractor to the
Group or an Affiliate. The 2017 Scheme
became effective on 19 May 2017 and, unless
otherwise cancelled or amended, will remain in
force for 10 years from that date.

The maximum number of unexercised share
options currently permitted to be granted under
the 2017 Scheme is an amount equivalent,
upon their exercise, to 10% of the shares of
the Company in issue at any time. The
maximum number of shares issuable under
share options to each eligible participant in the
2017 Scheme within any 12-month period is
limited to 1% of the shares of the Company in
issue at any time. Any further grant of share
options in excess of this limit is subject to
shareholders’ approval in a general meeting.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

38. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (Continued)

(a)

Share Option Scheme (Continued)

Share options granted to a director, chief
executive or substantial shareholder of the
Company, or to any of their associates, are
subject to approval in advance by the
independent non-executive directors. In
addition, any share options granted to a
substantial shareholder or an independent non-
executive director of the Company, or to any of
their associates, in excess of 0.1% of the
shares of the Company in issue at any time or
with an aggregate value (based on the closing
price of the Company’s shares at the date of
the grant) in excess of HK$5 million, within any
12-month period, are subject to shareholders’
approval in advance in a general meeting.

The offer of a grant of share options may be
accepted within 30 days from the date of the
offer, upon payment of a nominal consideration
of HK$10 in total by the grantee. The exercise
period of the share options granted is
determinable by the directors, and commences
after meeting certain performance targets or
certain vesting period that may be set by the
directors, and ends on a date which is not
later than ten years from the date of the offer
of the share options or the expiry date of the
2017 Scheme, if earlier.

The exercise price of the share options is
determinable by the directors, but may not be
less than the highest of (i) the Stock Exchange
closing price of the Company’s shares on the
date of the offer of the share options; (i) the
average Stock Exchange closing price of the
Company’s shares for the five trading days
immediately preceding the date of the offer;
and (i) the nominal value of the Company’s
shares on the date of the offer, when
applicable.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e B R I R ()

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HEZ=-T-_TF+_A=+—HILFE

38. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (Continued)

(a)

(b)

Share Option Scheme (Continued)
Share options do not confer rights on the
holder to dividends or to vote at shareholders’
meetings.

No share options have been granted under the
2017 Scheme since its adoption.

Share Award Scheme

The Company adopted a share award scheme
(the “Share Award Scheme”) on 10 January
2013 (“Adoption Date”) for a period of 10
years. The purpose and objective of the Share
Award Scheme are to recognise the
contributions by certain employees and persons
of the Group and to provide them with
incentives in order to retain them for the
continual operation and development of the
Group and to attract suitable personnel for
further development of the Group. The
Company has set up a Share Award Scheme
Trust. Pursuant to the Share Award Scheme,
new awarded shares may be allotted and
issued to the independent trustee under
general mandates granted or to be granted by
the shareholders at general meetings of the
Company from time to time and be held in
trust for relevant participants until such shares
are vested with the relevant participants in
accordance with the provisions of the Share
Award Scheme.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

38. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (Continued)

(b)

Share Award Scheme (Continued)
Subject to any early termination as may be
determined by the Board of the Company, the
Share Award Scheme shall be valid and
effective for a period of ten years commencing
on the Adoption Date.

The maximum number of shares awarded
under the Share Award Scheme shall not
exceed 5% of the issued share capital of the
Company as at the Adoption Date.

The maximum number of shares which may be
awarded to a selected person under the Share
Award Scheme shall not exceed 1% of the
issued share capital of the Company as at the
Adoption Date.

As at 31 December 2020, the number of
awarded shares available to grant under the
Share Award Scheme was 44,311,770 (2019:
44,311,770). For the year ended 31 December
2020, no awarded shares were granted
pursuant to the Share Award Scheme (2019:
Nil).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
A B R B A ()

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HZ=—T-_TF+_A=+—HBILFE

39. NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT
OF CASH FLOWS

39. mEBRERERM:EE

(a) Cash flows from operating activities (a) WEXBZHEERE
2020 2019
—T-%E —T-NEF
HK$°000 HK$’000
F#ET FET
Profit from operations =] 161,403 113,677
Adjustments for: EEE T5IF%E -
Interest income A B A (816) (747)
Impairment losses on trade B SRR IBREER
receivables 236 117
Bad debt written off R EH 64 491
Reversal of allowance on due from an & U B & 7 B) 2008 25 4 [
associate (1,799) —
Allowance for inventories, net GERETFE 4,093 15,868
Inventories written off FE M - 11,504
Net loss on disposal of property, HEME - BEMREZFER
plant and equipment 1,507 4,956
Property, plant and equipment ERE: ek
written off 3,309 221
Impairment losses on property, plant mE - KEREEREBE
and equipment - 3,326
Loss/(gain) on revaluation of land THEESEGER(RE) 903 (313)
Net fair value loss on derivative TESRIARATEEER
financial instruments 2,128 —
Depreciation of property, plant and ME - BBERREITE
equipment 76,152 78,355
Depreciation on right-of-use assets FREBAENE 15,260 10,428
Operating profit before movements in kil &iBE ¢ FENATHLEEFI
working capital 262,440 237,883
Decrease/(increase) in inventories BERL,/ () 41,261 (1,295)
Decrease in right of return assets REBREERD 16 -
(Increase)/decrease in restricted bank AR ISR 1TET (GE0),/ KD
balances (4) 3,654
(Increase)/decrease in trade and bills B 5 REBEUGIE (Em), R
receivables (46,174) 34,204
Decrease/(increase) in contract assets A X EEM D,/ (HE M) 5,631 (3,235)
Decrease/(increase) in prepayments, BAFIE - e R EMERE
deposits and other receivables WA/ (M) 3,142 (6,790)
Decrease in trade payables B 5 & FIRR (32,993) (51,276)
Increase/(decrease) in contract liabilities & 4 & &0,/ CGrl4) 12,893 (484)
Increase/(decrease) in other payables HEpE NRIEREER
and accruals 2m,/ Chd) 11,609 (11,467)
Change in fair value on derivative TESRTARTEEZSE
financial instruments (861) -
Cash generated from operations KEMBERS 256,960 201,194
Income tax paid ERAEH (45,293) (30,372)
Interest paid on bank borrowings BARRITERFE (6,189) (11,128)
Interest paid on lease liabilities BENHEEEEHNE (651) 377)
Net cash generated from operating KEEBMEREFE
activities 204,827 159,317
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

39. NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT
OF CASH FLOWS (Continued)

(b)

Disposal of a subsidiary

On 1 September 2020, the Group entered into
an equity transfer agreement with an
independent third party to dispose of the
Group’s 100% entire equity interest in Infinite
Fortune Investments Limited (“Infinite Fortune”).

R E B R Y R ()

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE—_ZE-_ZF+-_A=+—HIFE

39. ZEBRETREBRMTE (&)

(b) HEMBAT
R-E-TFHA—H AEEEF
VE=ZFRIVREEEDGE  WHE
REERERREBRAR ([EBR
&1)100% 2 EpALHE - =HIRE R —
RIEEZER AR - HERZE_TF

Infinite Fortune was an investment holding THZTEHZTEK -
company. The disposal was completed on 27
October 2020.
Net assets at the date of disposal were as REERHMNFEENT ¢
follows:

HK$’000

FEIT

Due to a fellow subsidiary JEAS [B) 2 B /B A &) (9)
Net liabilities disposed of HEFEE (9
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary HENEB QR KkE 9
Total consideration BwRE *

Consideration satisfied by

AT A A

Cash & *
Net cash inflow arising from disposal: REEELEZFRESTA
Cash consideration received BERERESRE *

Cash and cash equivalents disposed of

HERSNERREIEA -

*  Less than HK$1,000

* /b H1,00078 7T

“ECEEFER EHERERERLA

257



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
A B R B ()

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HZ=—T-_TF+_A=+—HBILFE

39. NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT
OF CASH FLOWS (Continued)

39. ZEBRETMEBRMETE (&)

(c¢) Major non-cash transaction (c) EEHFHREXS
Included in the additions of property, plant and FFAREME KBIRZ[EERD
equipment was an amount of approximately 3,511,000 T (=2 — 1L &
HK$3,511,000 (2019: HK$516,000) which was 516,000/87T) » ThHENBEYE -
transferred from deposits paid for acquisition of HEBERBENIRSEA -
property, plant and equipment.
Additions of right-of-use assets during the year FRFERAEEEL ML 14,102,000
of approximately HK$14,102,000 (2019: TT(ZZF— L F : 3,829,000/ 7T)
HK$3,829,000) were financed by lease mAEaERN -
liabilities.

(d) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from (d) BHEEHBELENEBHIR

financing activities

The table below details changes in the Group’s
liabilities arising from financing activities,
including both cash and non-cash changes.
Liabilities arising from financing activities are
those for which cash flows were, or future

TRAFMAEEREZDHAELNA
EEE) (BRASNIFREES) - @
BEBMELANBBEDKABERNA
SERERERERADERMER
PRERE -

cash flows will be, classified in the Group’s
consolidated statement of cash flows as cash
flows from financing activities.

Addition Lease Cash Flows, Interest
net (Note) expenses

Exchange Reclassify 31 December
difference upon disposal 2020

—8%%
R &8 +=R
EXSE =1-AH
HK$'000 HK$°000

1 January
2020 of leases  modification

k- e 24
-A-8
HK$'000

BRER
REEY (W)
HK$'000 HK$'000

HHEE
HK$'000
FET FET FET FET FET FET FET FET

HEHX
HK$'000

EnzH
HK$'000

Bank borrowings (note 37) BITERWats1) 259,046 - - (114,273) 6,189 2,496 - 153,458
Lease liabilities (note 33) REBE(H#33) 11,589 14,102 (229) (8,744) 651 709 - 18,078
Due to associates ERBERATE 1,305 - - (1,799) - 9 485 -

271,940 14,102 (229)  (124,816) 6,840 3,214 485 171,536
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #H#E T -_TH&+_-_A=+—RILFEE

R E B R Y R ()

39. NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT 39. ZmEBRERERMT (E)
OF CASH FLOWS (Continued)
(d) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from (d RS EFBELEMNEBEHKRE)
financing activities (Continued)
Impact on
initial Restated
1 January application of ~ baance at 1 Addition of ~ Cash Flows, Interest Exchange 31 December
2019 HKFRS 16 January 2019 leases net (Notg) expenses difference 2019
i
BRIBRE RZT-NE “I-NE
“E-hE BAE6%Kz —A-HZ FRET +-A
-A-8 ¥e  Eifn  MUHEE (m#)  FeE%  EXEE =1-8
HKS000 — HKSO00  HKSO00 — HKSO00  HKSO00  HKSO0O  HKSD00  HKS000
FET FET FET FET FET FET FET FET
Bank borrowings (note 31)  RITHER (H#31) 304,702 - 324,702 - (76,784) 11,128 - 259,046
Lease liabiliies (note 33 MEE{E (#:#33) - 11,749 11,749 3,829 (4,311) 408 (86) 11,589
Due from associates [ERBENRIRE (108) - (108) - 92 - - (16)
Due to associates ERBEARITE 3,257 - 3,257 - (1,947) - ) 1,305
327,851 11,749 339,600 3,829 (82,950) 11,536 o) 271,92

Note: Included in cash flows was interest paid which was
included in cash flows from operating activities.

e AAREREBEFALEFHRER
EMCHFE -

“ECEEFER EHERERERLA
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
A B R B ()

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HZ=—T-_TF+_A=+—HBILFE

39. NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT 39. EREMEXRMET ()
OF CASH FLOWS (Continued)

(e) Total cash outflow for leases (e) HERRELEH
Amounts included in the cash flow statements FARERELANEERETI®
for leases comprise the following: #
2020 2019
—EC-TH —T-hF
HK$’000 HK$'000
F#&iT FET
Within operating cash flows EREREMNEZA 737 2,625
Within investing cash flows FRERESREZNA - 660
Within financing cash flows EREREMNEZN 8,093 3,934
8,830 7,219
These amounts relate to the following: W ESREE T SIEGH
2020 2019
—ECTH —T-NF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FET
Lease rental paid BES 8,830 6,559
Payments for right-of-use assets 1 Fi#E & & < 5k - 660
8,830 7,219
40. OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS 40. REHERIE
The Group as lessor AEEEBHAAN
The Group leases its property under operating lease AEEZRCEHETHENBEYSE - HE
arrangements, with leases negotiated for a term of R—EEZENF(ZE-NF: —FELF) °
one to five years (2019: one to five years). The terms HERB-MUBITMSEAEESHES
of the leases generally provide for periodic rent TR 2K o
adjustments according to the then prevailing market
conditions.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

40. OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS

(Continued)

The Group as lessor (Continued)
At 31 December 2020, minimum lease payments
receivable on leases are as follows:

R E B R Y R ()

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE—_ZE-_ZF+-_A=+—HIFE

40. REHEHAIE (8)
AEEEBHEAN(E)

R-ZE_TFE+_A=1+—H AKEHE
WREBEEFRIBEAEMT :

2020 2019

—E-FTH —T-hF

HK$’000 HK$'000

F#iT FET

Within one year —F A 120 112
In the second year B _F 120 112
In the third year F=F 70 112
In the fourth year FUNF - 65
310 401

Operating leases relate to factory owned by the
Group leased to a retailer with lease terms of 5
years. The lessee does not have an option to
purchase the property at the expiry of the lease
period.

The Group as lessee

The Group regularly entered into short-term leases for
warehouses, staff quarters and factories. As at 31
December 2020, the portfolio of short-term leases is
similar to the portfolio of short-term leases to which
the short-term lease expense disclosed in note 20.
As at 31 December 2020, the outstanding lease
commitments relating to these warehouses, offices
and factories is approximately HK$11,000 (2019:
HK$24,000).

R AEEEENIHEE FTEERZIR
EHE HEHR/RSF ABEABEEHEE
HMEREBEZYE -

XEEEBRHEAN
AREBETHIIYEE - BIESMIKRE
HHEE RN-_TE-_ZTFE+-_A=+—H"
REHEREHEA AR TR HENE
HAEXEAUNEHEEREHS - ©
ZZE-TF+-A=+—H HZZAE -
PN EM Tz T e T & %G A4911,000
BT (ZZT— N4 : 24,00087T) °

“ECEEFER EHERERERLA
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

A B R B A ()

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HZ=—T-_TF+_A=+—HBILFE

41. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS
The Group’s capital commitments at the end of the
reporting period are as follows:

41, BAREE
R|EMRITER  AEBMEARED
—|? :

2020 2019
—E_-FTF —E-NF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FETT

Commitment in respect of acquisition UXREHZE - N RE

of property, plant and equipment AYE (W)
(note)

44,222 47,321

Note: The amount represents the unpaid contractual commitment
for the acquisition of property, plant and equipment after
netting off with the deposits paid for acquisition of property,
plant and equipment included in the consolidated statement
of financial position.

42. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(@ In addition to those related party translations
and balances disclosed elsewhere in the
consolidated financial statements, the Group
had the following transactions with its related
parties during the year:

Hiet - R R  BERREBORNT A DA
7 WEMR B AGA BN R UE D
X EERRENCDHES

42. BBAERS
@ B® ??é%%ﬁi’%ﬁ’r@*ﬁfﬁﬁﬁ&aﬁﬁ’]
FE]HHF}\i mﬁﬁﬂ\ ’ ilﬂqﬂi%@
o £ 2 B Tyiﬁﬁb&??&% :

2020 2019
—E-FTE —E-NF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FETT FET

Purchase from an associate A E A REE

]

- 29

(b)  The above transactions were entered with the
related parties on terms mutually agreed by
individual parties. In the opinion of the directors
of the Group, these related party transactions
were conducted on normal commercial terms
and in the ordinary and usual course of the
Group’s business.

(c) During the year, compensation paid by the
Group to the key management personnel,
which were the directors and chief executive
officer of the Company, was disclosed in note
16 to the consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

43.

44.

45.

COMPARATIVE FIGURES

Certain comparative figures have been reclassified to
conform to the current year’s presentation. The new
classification of the accounting items was considered
to provide a more appropriate presentation of the
state of affairs of the Group.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD
On 29 March 2021, the Board of Directors proposed
to declare a final dividend of HK3.0 cents (2019:
HK2.0 cents) totaling approximately HK$26,813,000
(2019: HK$17,875,000) per ordinary share to its
shareholders, as further disclosed in note 17 to the
consolidated financial statements.

APPROVAL OF THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The consolidated financial statements were approved
and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors
on 29 March 2021.

R E B R Y R ()

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE—_ZE-_ZF+-_A=+—HIFE

43. Lk EF
FUGREFOEBTHEUFTARNEE
MEBERAR - GHEBNT O ERRAR
WAEBHRROERE M -

44, /EHERFE
R-ZE-_—F=A-+hHhB BEE€g#
MREERSREBRIOBEW(ZZE—A
2.0/l #£54926,813,00058 7T (= F
— N4 17,875,000/ 70) 2 REARR & - I
E— TS EBERNGREVBHRERME7 -

45. #LEFESHMBERE

RGEMBREER=_Z=—F=A=1+h
AEEESUELRETIE -

TECZEFR RHEREZEREARAA
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FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY
LIEHERE

Year ended 31 December
BE+-A=+—HLFE
2016 2017 2018 2019 2020
ZERF ZE—+tF ZZE-N\F ZZT-hF et
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
FET FET FET FET FET

RESULTS E 3
Revenue A 1,742,476 1,738,738 1,852,329 1,554,364 1,469,237
Profit before tax F 35 Al g A 106,154 81,993 125,907 101,331 154,050
Income tax expense FrefimAx (46,252) (45,862) (12,505) (14,569) (31,295)
Profit for the year F R 7 59,902 36,131 113,402 86,762 122,755
Attributable to: AT AL
— Owners of the — ARG fEm
Company BAEA 59,243 33,998 113,556 88,705 123,991
— Non-controlling — FEERR G
interests 659 2,133 (154) (1,943) (1,236)
59,902 36,131 113,402 86,762 122,755
As at 31 December
R+=-A=+—H
2016 2017 2018 2019 2020
TE-RE ZE—+F T N\F T NF [k
HK$'000  HK$000  HK$000 — HK$000 | /€3l
FET FEIT FET FET F#ET
ASSETS AND BERERE
LIABILITIES
Total assets BEE 1,865,747 1,768,096 1,719,695 1,635,386 1,697,045
Total liabilities wEE (1,094,240)  (901,453)  (761,835)  (627,431)  (517,737)
Net assets FEE 771,507 866,643 957,860 1,007,955 1,179,308
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Ka Shui International Holdings Limited
RInEPRREARAT
Room A, 29th Floor, Tower B, Billion Centre, 1 Wang Kwong Road,
Kowloon Bay, Kowloon, Hong Kong
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Tel B5E : (852) 3759 8900
Fax &H : (852) 2412 1743

Website #1t : www.kashui.com



	COVER
	CONTENTS
	CORPORATE INFORMATION
	FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
	KEY INFORMATION FOR SHAREHOLDERS
	CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
	MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
	DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
	DIRECTORS’ REPORT
	CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
	ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
	INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
	CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
	CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
	CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
	CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
	CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
	NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
	FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY
	BACK COVER



